
 
 
 
 
 

   

 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

April 23, 2020 │ 10:00 a.m. 
To be held by Video Conference  

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the members of the DCTA Board of Directors will be meeting via video 

conference link and the meeting will be made available to the public at the following web address: 
https://meet662935157.adobeconnect.com/dctaboard/  

 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER     
 
 
BRIEF ORIENTATION TO NAVIGATING THE VIDEO CONFERENCE LINK 
 
 
GUEST PRESENTER 
 

1. Chris Yeary, Vice President – Sales & Use Taxes, with Avenu Insights & Analytics will be presenting 
an overview of the sales tax information provided by the Comptroller and an update on recent 
legislation involving sales tax for remote sellers and marketplace providers and sellers. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the Board of Directors on any agenda items or 
other matters relating to the DCTA. Anyone wishing to address the Board of Directors should complete a Citizen 
Comment Registration Card and submit it to the DCTA Administration prior to the start of the Board of Director 
meeting. There is a three (3) minute time limit for each citizen. Anyone wishing to speak shall be courteous and 
cordial. The Board of Directors is not permitted to take action on any subject raised by a speaker during Citizen 
Comments. However, the Board of Directors may have the item placed on a future agenda for action; refer the 
item to the DCTA Administration for further study or action; briefly state existing DCTA policy; or provide a brief 
statement of factual information in response to the inquiry. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consider Approval of March 26, 2020 Minutes  
Action Item   
Presenter:   Dianne Costa, Highland Village, Board Chair 
Item Summary:  Approval of the March 26, 2020 meeting minutes will be requested. 
Backup Information: Consent Item 1: March 26, 2020 Minutes 

 
 
 
 

1

https://meet662935157.adobeconnect.com/dctaboard/


 

DCTA BOD Meeting Agenda  p 2 of 6 
 

 
 

2. Consider Approval of Monthly Financial Statements for March 2020 and Quarterly Reports for 
Q2 FY20 
Action Item  
Presenter:   Marisa Perry, CFO/VP of Finance  
Item Summary:  Board approval will be requested of the following items: 

o Financial Statements for March 2020 
o Capital Projects Budget Report for March 2020 
o Quarterly Investment Report Q2 FY20 
o Quarterly Grants Report Q2 FY20 

Backup Information: Memo 1: Monthly Financial Statements and Capital Projects Budget 
Report for March 2020 
Exhibit 1(a): Monthly Financial Statements – March 2020 
Exhibit 1(b): Capital Projects Budget Report for March 2020 
Exhibit 2: Quarterly Investment Report Q2 FY20 
Exhibit 3: Quarterly Grants Report Q2 FY20 
 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
 

1. Monthly Financial Reports   
Item Summary:  DCTA staff will answer questions of the Board regarding updates on 

financial items.  
Backup Information: Memo 1: Monthly Sales Tax Receipts 

Exhibit 1: FY20 Monthly Sales Tax Report 
Memo 2: Monthly Mobility-as-a-Service Update 
Memo 3: Budget Information 
 

2. Transformation Initiative Update    
Item Summary:  DCTA staff will answer questions of the Board regarding the 

Transformation Initiative Update.  
Backup Information: Memo: Transformation Initiative Update 

Exhibit 1: Transformation and Budget Calendar 
Exhibit 2: DCTA Purchasing List (April 2020 – December 2020) 

 
3. Performance Measures by Route  

Item Summary:  DCTA staff will provide Performance Measures by Route for 2019.  
Backup Information: Memo: Performance Measures by Route  

Exhibit 1: Performance Measures by Route for FY2019 
 

4. Monsignor King Outreach Center to Our Daily Bread Shuttle Update  
Item Summary:  DCTA staff will provide an update on the Monsignor King Outreach 

Center to Our Daily Bread Shuttle.  
Backup Information: Memo: Monsignor King Outreach Center to Our Daily Bread Shuttle 

Update 
 Exhibit 1: Service Request Letter from the City of Denton 

Exhibit 2: MK101 Route and Schedule 
Exhibit 3: MK101 Ridership Report 

2



 

DCTA BOD Meeting Agenda  p 3 of 6 
 

 
 

5. Public Transit Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) Overview  
Item Summary:  DCTA staff will provide an overview of the Public Transportation Agency 

Safety Plan Final Rule that  requires operators of public transportation 
systems that receive federal funds under the Federal Transit 
Administration’s (FTA) Urbanized Area Formula Grants to develop safety 
plans that include the processes and procedures to implement Safety 
Management Systems.     

Backup Information: Memo: Public Transit Agency Safety Plan Overview 
     Exhibit 1: Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan Final Rule 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 

1. Coronavirus (COVID-19) Response Update  
Discussion Item 
Presenter:   Kristina Holcomb, Deputy CEO 
Item Summary:  DCTA Staff will provide an update on Coronavirus (COVID-19) regarding 

DCTA operations and staffing and the ever-changing environment on 
issues and the Agency’s response during this health emergency. 

Backup Information: N/A 
 

2. Suspension of Service 
Discussion Item 
Presenter:   Michelle Bloomer, VP Operations  
Item Summary:  Suspension of Denton Connect Route 5 and Route 8  
Backup Information: Memo: Suspension of Denton Connect Route 5 and Route 8 
 Exhibit 1: Denton Connect Route 5 Map and Schedule 

Exhibit 2: Denton Connect Route 6 Map and Schedule 
Exhibit 3: Denton Connect Route 7 Map and Schedule 
Exhibit 4: Denton Connect Route 8 Map and Schedule 

 
3. Contracted Service Agreements Overview  

Discussion Item  
Presenters:                     Raymond Suarez, CEO 
   Marisa Perry, CFO/VP Finance  
Item Summary:  DCTA Staff will provide a summary of FY2019 revenues and expenses for 

each contracted service. 
Backup Information: Exhibit 1: Contracted Service Summary  

Exhibit 2:  Detail from FY2019 Cost Allocation Model 
 

4. Discussion and Approval of Contract Service Agreement Administrative Fee Policy 
Action Item  
Presenter:                     Marisa Perry, CFO/VP Finance 
Item Summary:  Board approval will be requested of an Administrative Fee Policy to be 

applied to DCTA’s contracted services. 
Backup Information: Memo: Approval of Administrative Fee Policy for DCTA Contracted 

Services 
 Exhibit 1: Administrative Fee Policy  

3



 

DCTA BOD Meeting Agenda  p 4 of 6 
 

 
 
       

5. Consider Approval to Amend the North Central Texas College (NCTC) Contracted Service 
Agreement 
Action Item  
Presenter:   Nicole Recker, VP Marketing & Administration  
Item Summary:  Approval of amendment to NCTC contract in order for DCTA to 

determine an updated, and comprehensive, hourly rate for service.  
Backup Information: Memo: Discuss North Central Texas College (NCTC) Contracted Service 

Agreement 
 Exhibit 1: December 2019 NCTC Contract Amendment  

Exhibit 2: NCTC Parent Contract 
Exhibit 3: NCTC Campus Shuttle Map  

 
6. Consider Approval to Amend the City of McKinney Interlocal Agreement Providing Service to the 

McKinney Urban Transit District (MUTD) by Authorizing a Month-to-Month Extension through 
September 30, 2020  
Action Item  
Presenter:   Lindsey Baker, Director of Strategic Partnerships 
Item Summary:  The City of McKinney Interlocal Agreement providing service to the 

McKinney Urban Transit District (MUTD) expires on May 31, 2020. Staff is 
requesting the Board of Directors consider approving an amendment to 
the ILA allowing for a Month-to-Month Extension through September 
30, 2020. 

Backup Information: Memo: Consider Approval to Amend City of McKinney Interlocal 
Agreement Providing Service to the McKinney Urban Transit District 
(MUTD) by Authorizing a Month-to-Month Extension through 
September 30, 2020 

    Exhibit 1: City of McKinney Original Interlocal Agreement 
Exhibit 2: City of McKinney 2019 Extension Letter 
Exhibit 3: Map of MUTD Service Area 
Exhibit 4: City of McKinney Budget Cycle 

 
7. Board Strategic Guidance Session: DCTA’s 5-year Look-back 

Discussion Item 
Presenter:   Raymond Suarez, CEO  
Item Summary:  As DCTA staff begins the FY 2021 budget process, staff will provide 

information regarding the past 5 years of performance data, major events 
that have influenced agency and operational performance, a summary of 
the progress made over the past 18 months and a summary look-back at 
the creation and progress to date of the North Texas Mobility 
Corporation, Local Government Corporation.   

Backup Information: Memo: Board Strategic Guidance Session: DCTA’s 5-year Look-back 
Exhibit 1: Historical Events Impacting DCTA Finances and Operations 
Exhibit 2: Ridership and Performance Measures 
Exhibit 3: Financial Information 
Exhibit 4: NTMC Historical Perspective and Progress to Date 

 
 

4



 

DCTA BOD Meeting Agenda  p 5 of 6 
 

 
 

8. FY21 Budget Discussion 
Discussion Item 
Presenter:   Raymond Suarez, CEO 
   Marisa Perry, CFO / VP of Finance 
Item Summary:  DCTA Staff will discuss the proposed direction of the agency in 

preparation for the start of the FY21 budget process. 
Backup Information: N/A 
 
 

9. Discussion of Local & Regional Transportation and Legislative Issues 
Information Item 
Presenters:   Dianne Costa, Highland Village, Board Chair 
   Raymond Suarez, CEO 
   Kristina Holcomb, Deputy CEO  
Item Summary:  The Board Chair and staff will provide an update on local and regional 

transportation initiatives and discuss state and federal legislative issues. 
Backup Information: N/A 

 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND BOARD MEMBER REQUESTS 

Staff will discuss proposed future agenda items. Board members may request an informational item or action 
item to be added to the next Board meeting agenda.  

Backup Information: Exhibit 1: Board Agenda Outlook as of 04.17.2020 
 
 

REPORT ON ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Pursuant to Texas Government Section 551.0415 the Board of Directors may report on following items: (1) 
expression of thanks, congratulations, or condolences; (2) information about holiday schedules; (3) 
recognition of individuals; (4) reminders about upcoming DCTA and Member City events; (5) information 
about community events; and (6) announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 

 
 
CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION – A PRIVATE SKYPE CONFERENCE NUMBER WILL BE PROVIDED TO VOTING 
BOARD MEMBERS VIA EMAIL PRIOR TO THE MEETING FOR CLOSED SESSION 

The Board may convene the Regular Board Meeting into Closed Executive Session for the following: 
A. As Authorized by Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Directors Meeting 

may be Convened into Closed Executive Session for the Purpose of Deliberation regarding Real 
Property:  Discuss acquisition, sale or lease of real property related to long-range service plan 
within the cities of Denton, Lewisville, Highland Village, or the A-train corridor. 

B. As Authorized by Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the Board Meeting may be 
Convened into Closed Executive Session for Deliberation of Personnel: Annual CEO’s 
Performance Review. 

 
RECONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during Executive Session. 
  
 

5



 

DCTA BOD Meeting Agenda  p 6 of 6 
 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 

Board Members: 
Dianne Costa, Highland Village, Chair 

TJ Gilmore, Lewisville, Vice Chair 
Sam Burke, Denton County Seat 2, Secretary 

Cesar Molina, Denton County Seat 1 
Chris Watts, Denton  

 
Non-Voting Board Members: 

Mark Miller, Ron Trees, Connie White, Carter Wilson, Tom Winterburn, Joe Perez 
 

Staff Liaison:  
Raymond Suarez, CEO 

 
 
 
 

The Denton County Transportation Authority meeting rooms are wheelchair accessible. Access to the building and 
special parking are available at the main entrance. Requests for sign interpreters or special services must be received 
forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting time by emailing bpedron@dcta.net or calling Brandy Pedron at 
972.221.4600. 
 
This notice was posted on 4/17/2020 at 4:17 PM. 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Brandy Pedron, Executive Administrator | FOIA Requests 

6



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes for:      March 26, 2020 

Board of Directors 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
with Dianne Costa, Vice Chair presiding on March 26, 2020 virtually. 

Attendance 

Voting Members 
Dianne Costa, Chair, Highland Village 
TJ Gilmore, Vice Chair, Lewisville 
Sam Burke, Denton County  
John Ryan, Denton Alternate 
Cesar Molina, Denton County  

Non-voting Members 
Tom Winterburn, Corinth 
Mark Miller, Flower Mound 
Carter Wilson, Frisco 
Connie White, Small Cities 
Joe Perez, The Colony 

Legal Counsel 
Joe Gorfida, NJDHS 

   DCTA Executive Staff  
Raymond Suarez, Chief Executive Officer 
Kristina Holcomb, Deputy Chief Executive 

Officer 
Marisa Perry, Chief Financial Officer/Vice 

President of Finance 
Nicole Recker, Vice President of Marketing 

and Administration 

Other DCTA Staff Attendees 
Javier Trilla, Director of Information Technology 
Lindsey Baker, Director of Strategic Partnerships 
Athena Forrester, Assistant Vice President of 

Regulatory Compliance/DBE Liaison 
Amber Karkauskas, Controller 
Ann Boulden, Director of Capital Development 
Tim Palermo, Senior Regional Planner 
Amanda Riddle, Senior Manager of Budget 
Christa Christian, Senior Procurement Specialist 
Jennifer Lovelady, Human Resource Assistant 
Kyler Hagler, Network Administrator 
Whitney Trayler, Grants Manager 
Brandy Pedron, Executive Administrator 

Public Attendees 
Claire Powell, Lewisville Alternate 
Michael Leavitt, Highland Village Alternate 
Paul Christina, Denton County Alternate 
Stan Nixon, UNT Assistant Director, Transit and 

Special Projects 
Peggy Hinkle-Wolf, DRC 
Brandi Bird, Bird Advocacy & Consulting (at 12:46 pm) 
Randall Chrisman 
Newport 
D 
Ehren Binga 
Jack 
Logan 

ROLLCALL – Chair Costa performed a rollcall prior to calling the meeting to order.  

CALL TO ORDER – Chair Costa called the meeting to order and announced the presence of a quorum at 10:12 am. 

PUBLIC COMMENT – There were no public comments made.  

7

Consent Item 1



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of February 27, 2020 Minutes

2. Approval of Monthly Financial Statements for February 2020
- A Motion to approve Consent Agenda item 1 and 2 as presented was made by Sam Burke. The motion 

was seconded by Cesar Molina. All board members voted yes. Motion passed unanimously by the 
Board with no abstentions. 

INFORMATIONAL REPORTS – The following information reports were presented to the Board in the Board Packets 
for review.  

1. Monthly Financial Reports for February 2020 – No questions were asked.  

2. Social Service Agency Round Table Recap Report – No questions were asked.  

3. Highland Village Connect Shuttle and Enhanced Lyft Subsidy Program Cost Comparison – Board Member 
Sam Burke had no questions as this time and stated that the information was well presented. Alternate John 
Ryan stated that as discussed with Board Member Watts, it was good information but what had been asked 
for in the past was a breakdown of all modes apposed to just the connect shuttle versus Lyft. And asked if 
that was still in the works. Raymond Suarez replied yes and that DCTA needed to get a cost model of the 
FY19 information which has been done. He is reviewing it and then DCTA staff will get that information out 
to the Board.  

4. Transformation Initiative Update – Nicole Recker gave a brief update of the Transformation Initiative and 
noted that we are on track regarding the timeline. For Board consideration: DCTA has received a request 
from 5 bidders to extend the date beyond the current due date of April 3rd by 10am for the final bid proposal. 
Nicole Recker noted that extending the due date will push back the final approval from the Board from the 
May 28th deadline to the June board meeting. Nicole Recker asked the Board if they would like to continue 
with the April 3rd deadline or consider an extension:  

- Board Members agreed to extend the final proposal deadline by two weeks. Nicole Recker stated 
that an email would go out to the bidders notifying them of the extension and a new timeline will 
be sent to the Board in the Friday email this week.  

REGULAR AGENDA 

1. Coronavirus (COVID-19) Response Update Regarding DCTA Operations Service Modifications & Staffing
- Raymond Suarez began the discussion informing the Board of the amount of work provided by staff 

during this time. Kristina Holcomb gave a detailed briefing of DCTA’s response and action to COVID-
19, partnerships with regional agencies, effects on ridership, cleaning strategies, response
procurements, and the need to fill the NTMC general manager critical position with an up-to six-
month contract or until filled by hiring or through the RFP process. Staff answered questions of the 
Board regarding COVID-19 responses and actions.  

2. Consider Resolution R20-03 Electing a Secretary to the DCTA Board of Directors
- Vice Chair Gilmore made a nomination to elect Sam Burke as DCTA Board Secretary. Board Member 

Cesar Molina seconded the nomination. All board members voted in favor and the nomination 
carries. 

8

Consent Item 1



 

3. Discuss North Central Texas College (NCTC) Contracted Service Agreement – Nicole Recker briefed the 
Board on this item. To ensure continuation of service to North Central Texas College (NCTC), NCTC desires 
to extend the current agreement for an additional six (6) months.  This extension will allow time for DCTA 
to adopt a cost allocation model that will provide clear guidance on the hourly rates and administrative fee 
policy to be used in future agreements for contracted services. Back in December, the Board requested and 
approved a six-month extension of the existing contract service agreement for campus shuttle services 
instead of the staff’s recommendation of a year extension as the current contract is structured. Staff plans 
to bring this back next month for approval.  The Board discussed and sought clarification behind the six-
month extension request and the Board does not feel it proper for a six-month extension at this time. Staff 
will bring this back for discussion in April and will have further clarification and additional information to 
allow the Board to decide on how much DCTA wants to charge for administrative fees. 

4. Discuss City of McKinney Interlocal Agreement Providing Service to the McKinney Urban Transit District
(MUTD) – Lindsey Baker briefed the Board on this item similar to the prior item on the agenda. The City of 
McKinney Interlocal Agreement expires on May 31, 2020. DCTA staff is working with City staff to amend the 
current services provided based on their changing and expanding needs. The intent of both parties is to 
execute a new interlocal agreement consistent with those changing needs. To ensure continuation of service 
to the MUTD during these negotiations, the City of McKinney and DCTA staff are considering requesting an 
extension of the current agreement for an additional six months.  This extension will allow time for DCTA 
to adopt a cost allocation model that will provide clear guidance on the hourly rates and administrative fee 
policy to be used in future agreements for contracted services. 

5. Consider Approval of Task Order 12 with Lyft for Contract 17-03 On-Demand Rideshare Services for
University of North Texas (UNT) Late Night Ride Service – Nicole Recker briefed the Board on this item. 
UNT has requested DCTA continue to provide the late-night Lyft program.   The program would continue 
to be available for all active students within a designated area that includes most of the main campus, Oak 
Street Hall, Fry Street, and the West Campus (including Apogee Stadium and Mean Green Village).  Students 
entering a special promotion code, between the hours or 2:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m., in the Lyft app, will get 
the full cost of their ride covered. Lyft sets the price structure and UNT reimburses 100%. This is a pass-
through cost.  

- A Motion to approve the Task Order 12 with Lyft for Contract 17-03 On-Demand Rideshare Services 
for University of North Texas (UNT) Late Night Ride Service was made by Sam Burke. The motion 
was seconded by Vice Chair Gilmore. All Board members voted in favor. Motion carries and is passed 
unanimously by the Board with no abstentions.  

6. Consider Award of RFP 20-04 for Public Relations Software Services – Nicole Recker briefed the Board on 
this item. A comprehensive public relations software solution is needed to assist DCTA’s Marketing and 
Communications department with turnkey solutions to target and engage with local, regional and national 
media outlets, and appropriately measure coverage and engagement. DCTA has contracted for such
software solutions for the last five years. The contract shall be for three (3) years with the option to renew 
for two (2) additional one (1) year terms.  The anticipated expenses for FY 2020 are $25,000.  Annual expenses 
beginning in FY 2021 will be $25,000, for a total expenditure of $125,000.00 (if option periods are exercised). 
Funding for this agreement in available within the FY 2020 budget.  Expenses for future fiscal years will be 
included in the annual operating budget. 

- A Motion to approve RFP 20-04 for Public Relations Software Services was made by Secretary Burke. 
The motion was seconded by Cesar Molina. Chair Costa, John Ryan, Cesar Molina, and Secretary 
Burke all voted in favor. Vice Chair Gilmore voted not in favor. Motion carries. 

9

Consent Item 1



 

7. Consider Approval of Chevrolet Auto Parts Contract – Raymond Suarez briefed the Board on this item. On 
January 14, 2020, DCTA issued RFB 20-06 for the purchase of Chevrolet Titan Bus Parts.  A total of 3,172 email 
notices were sent to potential bidders. One (1) bid was received. Parts will be ordered on an as needed basis 
to perform repairs and preventative maintenance on existing fleet. The contract shall be for one (1) year. 
The anticipated expenses for FY 2020 are not to exceed $100,000.  Funding for this agreement is available 
within the FY 20 operating budget.  Expenses for future fiscal years will be included in the annual
maintenance parts budget. 

- A Motion to approve the Chevrolet Auto Parts Contract was made by Secretary Burke. The motion 
was seconded by Vice Chair Gilmore. All Board members voted in favor. Motion carries and is passed 
unanimously by the Board with no abstentions.  

8. Comptroller Sales Tax Proposed Rule Changes and Budgetary Implications – Marisa Perry updated the Board 
on the summary of the proposed rule changes posted by the Comptroller and laid out the primary changes. 
Specifically, if an internet order is fulfilled from a location in Texas that is not a place of business of the 
seller in Texas, the sale is consummated at the location in Texas to which the order is shipped or delivered, 
or at which the purchaser of the item takes possession. In other words, the sales taxes are sourced to the 
destination to which the order is delivered. DCTA has reached out to the member cities who’s sales tax 
feeds into DCTA. Denton viewed themselves as neutral. Highland Village is in favor of the change. Lewisville 
is opposed to this change. DCTA staff recommends DCTA remain neutral on this item since it impacts each 
of our member cities differently. Comptroller has this open for commentary until April 3rd. 

- Vice Chair Gilmore expressed some concerns regarding statements made by staff. Raymond Suarez 
confirmed that we will sit down with the City of Lewisville to understand how they are getting that 
projection number and once we understand we can take that information to the other member 
cities. 

9. Budget Process Strategic Direction – Raymond Suarez briefed the Board on the Budget Process Strategic 
Direction. DCTA typically has strategic vision and focus from the Board beginning January to March. We 
need some high-level discussion with the Board for guidance towards the Budget. Raymond laid out the 
FY21 Baseline assumptions which were presented in the presentation. Marisa Perry updated items that will 
be shared and how the budget process will take place as well as presenting the proposed budget calendar 
and budget workshop dates. 

10. Hydrogen Ecosystem Initiative Update – Raymond Suarez updated the Board on the Hydrogen Ecosystem 
Initiative and where it stands in the region, where they are at in the process and the details of the grants 
associated with this initiative. DCTA is only at a point of submitting proposals. 

11. Discussion of Regional Transportation and Legislative Issues
- Dianne Costa is proud to be in a County where the citizens and elected officials support trails. There 

are so many people out on the trails right now.  
- Raymond Suarez adds that people are doing good job of listening to our leaders with the stay home 

orders.  
- Kristina Holcomb is working with FTA on funding for COVID -19. 

10

Consent Item 1



 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND BOARD MEMBER REQUESTS – Chair Costa made mention of the Board Agenda 
Outlook included in the Board packets and noted that at this point there is no good way for DCTA to go into closed 
session and come out it. Vice Chair Gilmore suggests reaching out to the City of Lewisville and see how they were 
able to go into closed session.  

- Vice Chair Gilmore listed the following items he would like to add to future agenda items: a joint 
NTMC and DCTA Board meeting, Overview of strategy, intent, and goals before we build the FY21 
budget. Perhaps facilitated workshop on a Saturday or regular scheduled Board meeting day.
Secretary Sam and Vice Chair Gilmore agreed for a two-part overview; first one providing a 5-year 
look-back and the second meeting to be a productive meeting for setting goals, strategy and intent. 

REPORT ON ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
- DCTA is hosting the Rail Trail Event has been canceled until further notice 
- DCTA is working with the independent school districts for at-home community outreach efforts 

ADJOURN – Motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Secretary Burke and seconded by Vice Chair Gilmore. All 
in favor.  The meeting was adjourned at 12:52 p.m. 

The minutes of the March 26, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting were passed and approved by a vote on this 23rd day of April 
2020. 

___________________________________ 
 Dianne Costa, Chair 

ATTEST 

_____________________________________ 

11

Consent Item 1



 

Consent Item 2 

Board of Directors Memo     April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Monthly Financial Statements for March 2020 

Background 
The financial statements are presented monthly to the Board of Directors for acceptance. The reports presented for 
the period ending March 31, 2020 include the Statement of Change in Net Position, Statement of Net Position, and 
Capital Projects Fund.  These reports provide a comparison of budget vs. actual for the fiscal year as of the current 
month.  

The following are major variances between year-to-date budget and year-to-date actuals, which are annotated on the 
Statement of Change in Net Position. 

• Note A: Passenger Revenues – YTD unfavorable by $9k mainly due to lower than budgeted ridership.  YTD FY20
rail ridership of 180k is 15% less than budgeted ridership of 212k.  YTD FY20 bus ridership of 1.2 million is 17% less
than budgeted ridership of 1.4 million.  Ridership continually declined throughout the month of March as
employers moved to telecommuting arrangements and stay at home orders went into effect across the region in
response to COVID-19.  This unfavorable variance is partially offset by higher than anticipated rail average fare per
rider.  YTD rail revenue per rider of $1.89 is 26% higher than the FY20 budgeted fare per rail rider of $1.50 ($22k
increased revenue).

YTD FY20 
Actual 

Ridership 

YTD FY20 
Budgeted 
Ridership 

% 
Variance, 
Actual to 
Budget 

YTD FY19 
Actual 

Ridership 

% 
Variance, 
Actual to 
Prior Year 

Total Rail Ridership  180,353  212,323 -15%  171,770 5% 

Connect  263,484  252,258 4%  225,024 17% 

Access & Zone Service  19,690  35,549 -45%  13,610 45% 

Frisco (A) 4,524  2,967 52%  4,671 -3%

Collin County Transit (A) 7,496  1,297 478%  3,452 117%

North Texas Xpress 6,280  6,055 4%  5,056 24%

University of North Texas (B) 885,832  1,141,805 -22%  982,414 -10%

North Central Texas College (B) 5,784  6,617 -13%  5,892 -2%

Special Movements (B) 4,763 - N/A  1,923 148%

Total Bus Ridership  1,197,853  1,446,547 -17%  1,242,042 -4%

Total Ridership  1,378,206  1,658,870 -17%  1,413,812 -3%

(A) Includes Demand Response service and Taxi service
(B) These ridership numbers are not linked to passenger revenues and are shown for information purposes only to include

all system ridership.

• Note B: Contract Service Revenue – YTD unfavorable by $78k primarily due to lower than budgeted fuel revenues.
Average YTD pass-through fuel cost is $2.03/gallon compared to budgeted $3.00/gallon and YTD usage of 67k
gallons is 9% lower than budgeted usage of 73k gallons ($85k decreased revenue).  This unfavorable variance is
partially offset by higher than budgeted revenue hours.  YTD revenue hours for contract service of 28,249 are 3%
higher than budgeted ($15k increased revenue).

12



Consent Item 2 

• Note C: Sales Tax Revenue – March sales tax revenue is not yet received and is accrued for the month based on
budget. Sales tax generated in March will be received in May. The Sales Tax Report included in this agenda packet
provides a more detailed Budget to Actual comparison of sales tax receipts collected through April, representing
sales tax generated through February.  Impacts from COVID-19 are expected in sales tax generated in March which
will be received and reported to the Board in May.

• Note D: Federal/State Grants - Capital – YTD unfavorable by $1.7 million due to delays in payments and corresponding 
reimbursements for fleet purchases.  Reimbursements will be requested after payments have been made.

YTD FY20 
Actual Revenue 

YTD FY20 
Budgeted 
Revenue 

Variance, 
Actual to 
Budget 

Fleet $     - $    1,361,341 $       (1,361,341) 
Positive Train Control (PTC) 275,728 380,000 (104,272) 
Safety & Security 66,155 - 66,155
Hike & Bike Trail – Eagle Point 438,548  780,389 (341,841) 

$     780,431     $        2,521,730     $   (1,741,299) 

• Note E: Federal/State Grants - Operating – YTD unfavorable by $2.2 million mainly due to timing differences of
Operating and ADA Assistance funding. The next annual Program of Projects funding is expected later in the fiscal
year, at which point reimbursements will be requested.

YTD FY20 
Actual 

Revenue 

YTD FY20 
Budgeted 
Revenue 

Variance, 
Actual to 
Budget 

Bus PM  $   549,560  $   690,876  $     (141,316) 

Rail PM  711,538  506,592  204,946 

Operating Assistance - 1,876,666  (1,876,666) 

ADA Assistance  176,672 575,075  (398,403) 

Vanpool  79,500  60,000  19,500 

NCTCOG NTX 35W JARC 40,547 - 40,547
$         1,557,817 $       3,709,209 $       (2,151,392) 

Identified Need 
Provides the Board a review of DCTA’s financial position and the agency’s performance to budget. 

Recommendation  
Staff recommends acceptance. 

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1(a): Monthly Financial Statements – March 2020 
Exhibit 1(b): Capital Projects Budget Report – March 2020 

Submitted by:  _____________________________ 
Amber Karkauskas, Controller 

Final Review:  _____________________________ 
Marisa Perry, CPA, Chief Financial Officer/VP of Finance 

13



Consent Item 2, Exhibit 1(a)

Description Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Annual Budget

Revenue and Other Income
Passenger Revenues 68,344$             109,859$        (41,515)$          619,673$         628,286$        (8,613)$            1,212,321$           Note A
Contract Service Revenues 230,711 363,495          (132,784)          2,186,133          2,263,980       (77,847)           4,416,160           Note B
Sales Tax Revenues 2,730,928          2,751,567        (20,639)           14,841,869       14,586,778      255,091          29,019,184         Note C
Federal/State Grants - Capital 6,443 160,000         (153,557)          780,431           2,521,730        (1,741,299)       5,753,410           Note D
Federal/State Grants - Operating 240,063             251,964          (11,901)             1,557,817          3,709,209       (2,151,392)        5,130,419            Note E

Total Revenues and Other Income 3,276,489          3,636,885       (360,396)         19,985,923       23,709,983     (3,724,060)      45,531,494         

Operating Expenses
Salary, Wages and Benefits 345,391 416,148           70,757            2,262,022        2,491,173         229,151           4,996,191            
Services 201,925              346,487          144,562           1,236,718          1,939,481        702,763          3,903,117            
Materials and Supplies 186,079             301,500          115,421            1,147,695         1,505,638        357,943          3,094,917           
Utilities 34,937 45,998            11,061              174,116             263,988          89,872            527,988             
Insurance 135,632              146,024          10,392            827,058          876,144          49,086           1,752,329            
Purchased Transportation Services 849,265             879,634          30,369            5,130,190         5,321,168         190,978          10,601,706         
Miscellaneous 9,529 21,835             12,306            104,246           216,949          112,703           387,237              
Leases and Rentals 19,012 19,162             150 105,871            114,797           8,926              229,633              
Depreciation 794,313 903,417          109,104           4,785,055        5,185,526        400,471          10,612,052          

Total Operating Expenses 2,576,083          3,080,205      504,122          15,772,970       17,914,864      2,141,894        36,105,170          

Income Before Non-Operating 
Revenues and Expenses

700,406            556,680         143,726           4,212,953         5,795,119         (1,582,166)       9,426,324           

Non-Operating Revenues / (Expense)
Investment Income 69,405               33,333             36,072            275,330           199,998          75,332             400,000            
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets - - - - - - - 
Fare Evasion Fee - 83 (83) - 498 (498) 1,000 
Other Income - Miscellaneous 31 -                     31 114,239 51,000            63,239            51,000
Long Term Debt Interest/Expense (75,546)              (75,790)           244 (454,449)         (454,740)        291 (909,480)           

Total Non-Operating Revenues / 
(Expenses)

(6,110) (42,374)           36,264            (64,881)            (203,244)         138,363           (457,480)            

Income (Loss) before Transfers 694,296             514,306          179,990          4,148,072        5,591,875        (1,443,803)       8,968,844          

Transfers Out (779,320)            (742,669)         (36,651)            (4,384,485)       (4,433,408)      48,923            (8,781,700)          
Total Transfers (779,320)            (742,669)         (36,651)            (4,384,485)       (4,433,408)      48,923            (8,781,700)          

Change in Net Position (85,024)$            (228,363)$       143,339$         (236,412)$         1,158,467$      (1,394,880)$    187,144$             

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

MONTH AND YEAR TO DATE MARCH 31, 2020

(UNAUDITED)

Month Ended March 31, 2020 Year to Date March 31, 2020

14



March 31, 2020 February 29, 2020 Change

Assets
Current Assets

Operating Cash & Cash Equivalents 9,334,799$ 9,247,082$  87,717$  
Reserves: Cash & Cash Equivalents 11,988,269 13,024,859 (1,036,589) 
Reserves: Investments 6,103,849 5,015,667 1,088,182 
Accounts & Notes Receivable 6,981,341 6,896,821 84,520 
Prepaid Expenses 856,620 996,209 (139,588) 
Inventory 34,848 40,811 (5,962) 
Restricted Asset-Cash and Equivalents 2,528,469 2,356,034 172,435 
Total Current Assets 37,828,196 37,577,482 250,714 

Non-Current Assets
Land 17,394,147 17,394,147 - 
Land Improvements 11,953,783 9,017,865 2,935,918 
Machinery & Equipment 5,202,014 5,202,014 - 
Vehicles 93,020,696 93,020,696 - 
Computers & Software 1,387,627 1,387,627 - 
Intangible Assets 16,997,155 16,997,155 - 
Construction in Progress 18,822,748 21,727,146 (2,904,397) 
Other Capital Assets, Net  234,616,978 234,616,978 - 
Accumulated Depreciation (82,381,708) (81,587,395) (794,313) 
Total Non-Current Assets 317,013,439 317,776,232 (762,793) 

Total Assets 354,841,635 355,353,714 (512,079) 

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 369,652 369,652 - 

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 369,652 369,652 - 

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 567,887 608,200 (40,314)
Deferred Revenues 68,507 76,345 (7,838) 
Interest Payable - 378,903 (378,903) 
Retainage Payable 623,545 623,545 - 
Total Current Liabilities 1,259,938 1,686,994 (427,055) 

Non-Current Liabilities
Rail Easement Payable 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 
Bonds Payable 25,230,000 25,230,000 - 
Net Pension Liability 109,285 109,285 - 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 26,339,285 26,339,285 - 

Total Liabilities 27,599,223 28,026,279 (427,055) 

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 47,683 47,683 - 

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 47,683 47,683 - 

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 293,688,041     293,688,041 - 
Unrestricted 34,112,752 34,112,752 - 
Change in Net Position (236,412) (151,388) (85,024) 

Total Net Position 327,564,381$ 327,649,405$  (85,024)$

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF MARCH 31, 2020

(UNAUDITED)

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 1(a)

15



Description Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Annual Budget

Operating Expenses
Salary, Wages and Benefits 757,966$        717,007$         (40,959)$         4,266,971$      4,269,476$     2,505$            8,460,824$         
Services 9,702 7,920 (1,782) 45,304            47,520            2,216 95,040
Insurance 9,748              11,052              1,304 58,479            66,312             7,833 132,636 
Miscellaneous 1,904 6,690              4,786              13,730             50,100            36,370             93,200 

Total Operating Expenses 779,320          742,669          (36,651)            4,384,485        4,433,408       48,923            8,781,700           

Income (Loss) before Transfers (779,320)         (742,669)         (36,651)            (4,384,485)      (4,433,408)      48,923            (8,781,700)          

Transfers In 779,320          742,669          36,651             4,384,485        4,433,408       (48,923)           8,781,700           
Total Transfers 779,320          742,669          36,651             4,384,485        4,433,408       (48,923)           8,781,700           

Change in Net Position -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

MONTH AND YEAR TO DATE MARCH 31, 2020

(UNAUDITED)

Month Ended March 31, 2020 Year to Date March 31, 2020

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 1(a)

16



March 31, 2020 February 29, 2020 Change

Assets
Operating Cash & Cash Equivalents 223,457$  257,791$  (34,334)$  
Accounts & Notes Receivable 1,725 1,725 - 
Prepaid Expenses 58,460 68,208 (9,748)

Total Assets 283,642 327,724 (44,082) 

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 283,642 327,724 (44,082) 

Total Liabilities 283,642 327,724 (44,082) 

Net Position
Change in Net Position - - - 

Total Net Position -$  -$  -$  

NORTH TEXAS MOBILITY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF MARCH 31, 2020

(UNAUDITED)

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 1(a)

17



Consent Item 2, Exhibit 1(b)  

Capital Project Number/Name Project Budget

March 2020 
Actuals 
Booked

Actuals
Life To Date

$ Under/
(Over) Budget

% of Budget 
(As of March 
2020 Close)

Construction Work in Progress

G&A Capital Projects
Total 10302 · Infrastructure Acquisition 400,000$           -$  259,996$           140,004$            65%
Total 10403 · Server/Network Infrastructure 350,000             10,274             326,636             23,364 93%

Total G&A Capital Projects 750,000            10,274            586,632            163,368 78%

Bus Capital Projects
Total 50306 · Major Maintenance - Bus 125,000 - - 125,000 0%
Total 50411 · Integrated Fare Payment 600,000             - - 600,000             0%
Total 50513 · Fleet {2019} 1,481,000            - - 1,481,000            0%
Total 50514 · Fleet {2020} 1,062,600           - - 1,062,600           0%

Total Bus Capital Projects 3,268,600         - - 3,268,600         0%

Rail Capital Projects
Total 61406.1 · Positive Train Control Implementation 16,720,141           - 15,631,363 1,088,778            93%
Total 61406.2 · Positive Train Control Enhancements 5,000,000          - 52,476 4,947,524           1%
Total 61409 · Stadler Diagnostic Laptops 80,000 - - 80,000 0%
Total 61605 · Brownfield Remediation 385,000              3,060              319,705              65,295 83%
Total 61715 · Trail Safety Improvements 181,157 - 132,388 48,769 73%
Total 61716 · Lewisville Bike Trail - Eagle Point Section - CLOSED 2,995,873            15,512 2,935,919 59,954 98%
Total 61720 · Major Maintenance - Rail 2,024,826           2,674 1,053,303 971,523 52%
Total 61722 · Safety & Security Improvements 2020 200,000             - 11,600 188,400 6%

Total Rail Capital Projects 27,586,997        21,246            20,136,755        7,450,242          73%

Total Construction Work in Progress 31,605,597$       31,520$          20,723,387$     10,882,210$       66%

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

AS OF MARCH 31, 2020

18



Denton County Transportation Authority

Investment Portfolio Summary

March 31, 2020

For the Quarter Ended

Prepared by

HilltopSecurities Asset Management

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

19



Table of Contents / Market Recap

Report Name

Executive Summary

Benchmark Comparison

Detail of Security Holdings

Change in Value

Earned Income

Investment Transactions

Amortization and Accretion

Projected Fixed Income Cash Flows

Certification Page

MARKET RECAP - MARCH 2020: 

On February 24th the World Health Organization’s director general told journalists that the COVID-19 

virus was not yet a global pandemic and that “it is still possible to contain the virus.” But within days, 

the reality could no longer be denied and on March 11th the WHO finally made it official. Financial 

markets had determined weeks earlier that the novel coronavirus was going to be a big problem and 

stocks around the world were hammered. The ensuing flight to safety rally sent U.S. Treasury yields to 

record lows. Meanwhile, other fixed income sectors came under enormous selling pressure as 

investors foresaw massive credit deterioration and companies worked to build up cash reserves to 

weather the storm. On March 3rd, in an emergency move, the Federal Reserve cut the fed funds 

target rate by 50 basis points, noting in typically understated fashion, “The coronavirus poses evolving 

risks to economic activity.” At the time, many market participants saw the Fed’s move as a panicked 

reaction and they responded by panicking themselves, sending stock markets tumbling. The hits kept 

coming: outbreaks of COVID-19 erupted in Seattle and New York and have now spread to most major 

metropolitan areas; sports leagues began suspending and then cancelling games, seasons, and 

tournaments; conference organizers around the nation cancelled events; schools sent students home; 

local governments started by ordering restaurants to close and banning public gatherings before 

eventually issuing mandatory “stay-at-home” orders for all non-essential activities.” This list goes on 

and on.

With the economic engine switched to off, policy makers were forced to respond. On Sunday, March 

15th, the Fed pulled out all the stops, slicing the fed funds rate by a full percentage point to a range of 

0%-0.25%. The Fed also implemented massive quantitative easing, expanded repo operations, 

lowered the interest rate on excess reserves, and established a lending facility to support money 

market funds and the commercial paper market. There was more to come. By the third week of March, 

first time claims for unemployment benefits would skyrocket with nearly 3.3 million Americans filing for 

benefits. This would spur Congress to pass the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, or 

“CARES Act”, a massive $2 trillion relief package intended to cushion the blow for both employees and 

employers, as well as provide support for the many companies buckling under the strain of the sudden 

stoppage of business. Central banks and governments around the world would join the U.S. in cutting 

interest rates and passing relief measures. 

We won’t bother recapping March’s slate of economic data. Suffice it to say, in the weeks and months 

ahead we will bear witness to an abrupt economic downturn unlike anything we have ever seen. While 

the data will be terrible, the impact on lives and livelihoods will be worse. The major U.S. stock indexes 

suffered declines of more than 30% from the record highs reached in mid-February, clawing back 

three years of gains. A post-CARES Act rally in the final week of the month would briefly stem the 

slide. U.S. Treasury yields plummeted during March with the two-year note closing the month at 0.25% 

and the 10-year at 0.67%. At one point in late March, much of the curve inside of a year was trading at 

negative yields. It appears a deep (hopefully short-lived) recession is imminent. A zero rate 

environment is the new norm for the foreseeable future.

Page 2 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

20



Denton County Transportation Authority
Investment Officers' Certification

This report is prepared for the Denton County Transportation Authority (the “Entity”) in accordance with Chapter 2256 of the Texas Public Funds Investment 

Act ("PFIA"). Section 2256.023(a) of the PFIA states that: “Not less than quarterly, the investment officer shall prepare and submit to the governing body of the 

entity a written report of the investment transactions for all funds covered by this chapter for the preceding reporting period.” This report is signed by the Entity’s 

investment officers and includes the disclosures required in the PFIA. To the extent possible, market prices have been obtained from independent pricing 

sources.

The investment portfolio complied with the PFIA and the Entity’s approved Investment Policy and Strategy throughout the period. All investment transactions 

made in the portfolio during this period were made on behalf of the Entity and were made in full compliance with the PFIA and the approved Investment Policy.

March 31, 2020

For the Quarter Ended

Officer Names and Titles:

Name: Marisa Perry, CPA Title: Chief Financial Officer/VP of Finance

Name: Raymond Suarez Title: Chief Executive Officer

Page 3 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

21



Executive Summary
As of 03/31/20  

Denton County Transportation Authority

 28,581,131.32

 28,577,660.72

 28,573,048.52

 3,470.60 Unrealized Gain /(Loss)

Par Value

Book Value

Beginning Values as of 12/31/19     

Market Value

Market Value %  100.01%

Weighted Avg. YTW

Weighted Avg. YTM  1.565%

 1.565%

Account Summary

Ending Values as of 03/31/20    

 30,232,154.31 

 30,183,181.05 

 30,128,305.41 

 48,973.26 

 100.16%

 1.012%

 1.012%

Allocation by Security Type

AGCY BULLET 13%

BANK DEP 3%
LGIP 75%

MMF 1%
TREASURY 7%

Total: 100%

TEXSTAR 75%
FHLB 13%
US TREAS 7%
WF 4%

Total: 100%

Allocation by Issuer

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Overnight 2 - 90 Days 6 - 12 Months 1 - 2 Years

80%

3%

8% 9%

Maturity Distribution %

Weighted Average Days to Maturity:  74

AAA 96%

Collateralized 4%

Total: 100%

Credit Quality

Page 1 of 1Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:51 pm

Page 4 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

22



As of  03/31/2020

Benchmark Comparison
Denton County Transportation Authority

0.00%

0.40%

0.80%

1.20%

1.60%

2.00%

2.40%

2.80%

Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20

 1-YR CMT  3-MO CMT  6-MO CMT  TEXPOOL
Denton County
Transportation Authority

Note 2:   Benchmark data for TexPool is the monthly average yield.  

Note 1:   CMT stands for Constant Maturity Treasury. This data is published in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 and represents an average of all actively traded Treasury securities having that time remaining until maturity. This is a 

standard industry benchmark for Treasury securities. The CMT benchmarks are moving averages. The 3-month CMT is the daily average for the previous 3 months, the 6-month CMT is the daily average for the previous 6 months, and the 

1-year and 2-year CMT's are the daily averages for the previous 12-months.  

Page 1 of 1Print Time:   2:51 pmPrint Date:  4/9/2020

Page 5 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

23



Mty DateCUSIP Sec. Description CPN Par Value Orig Cost Book Value Market Value

Detail of Security Holdings
As of  03/31/2020

Sec. Type

Mkt

 Price

Days 

to Mty

Days 

to CallNext Call

Denton County Transportation Authority

YTM
Settle

 Date YTWCall Type

Purch

 Price

2011 Bond Fund

 895,786.34  895,786.34  895,786.34  895,786.34WF-MANA Wells Fargo Managed Rate  1BANK DEP  100.000  100.000  0.180  0.180

 895,786.34  895,786.34  895,786.34  895,786.34  1Total for  2011 Bond Fund  100.000  100.000  0.180  0.180

Additional Reserve Fund

 571,982.01  571,982.01  571,982.01  571,982.01TEXSTAR TexSTAR  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.957  0.957

 571,982.01  571,982.01  571,982.01  571,982.01  1Total for  Additional Reserve Fund  100.000  100.000  0.957  0.957

Bond Fund

 1,632,682.59  1,632,682.59  1,632,682.59  1,632,682.59TEXSTAR TexSTAR  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.957  0.957

 1,632,682.59  1,632,682.59  1,632,682.59  1,632,682.59  1Total for  Bond Fund  100.000  100.000  0.957  0.957

Operating Fund

 438,518.75  438,518.75  438,518.75  438,518.75WF-SWEEP Wells Fargo Sweep  1MMF  100.000  100.000  0.000  0.000

 438,518.75  438,518.75  438,518.75  438,518.75  1Total for  Operating Fund  100.000  100.000  0.000  0.000

Reserve Fund

 11,416,287.32  11,416,287.32  11,416,287.32  11,416,287.32TEXSTAR TexSTAR  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.957  0.957

 1,000,000.00  998,242.19  999,656.35  1,001,703.6010/03/19  1.787  1.787U.S. Treasury912828X96 TREAS NOTE  1.500 05/15/20  99.824  100.170  45

 1,000,000.00  1,008,360.00  1,003,993.01  1,011,381.6009/12/19  1.819  1.819FHLB3130AEWA4 AGCY BULET  2.625 10/01/20  100.836  101.138  184

 1,500,000.00  1,497,540.00  1,497,857.09  1,513,263.0002/14/20  1.539  1.539FHLB3130A7CV5 AGCY BULET  1.375 02/18/21  99.836  100.884  324

 1,000,000.00  1,009,414.06  1,007,882.74  1,023,203.1001/17/20  1.606  1.606U.S. Treasury9128284G2 TREAS NOTE  2.375 04/15/21  100.941  102.320  380

 1,500,000.00  1,546,650.00  1,545,486.45  1,554,297.6003/13/20  0.677  0.677FHLB313378CR0 AGCY BULET  2.250 03/11/22  103.110  103.620  710

 17,416,287.32  17,476,493.57  17,471,162.96  17,520,136.22  126Total for  Reserve Fund  100.353  100.605  1.117  1.117

Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:51 pm Page 1 of 2

Page 6 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

24



Mty DateCUSIP Sec. Description CPN Par Value Orig Cost Book Value Market Value

Detail of Security Holdings
As of  03/31/2020

Sec. Type

Mkt

 Price

Days 

to Mty

Days 

to CallNext Call

Denton County Transportation Authority

YTM
Settle

 Date YTWCall Type

Purch

 Price

Sales Tax Fund

 9,173,048.40  9,173,048.40  9,173,048.40  9,173,048.40TEXSTAR TexSTAR  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.957  0.957

 9,173,048.40  9,173,048.40  9,173,048.40  9,173,048.40  1Total for  Sales Tax Fund  100.000  100.000  0.957  0.957

 30,128,305.41  30,188,511.66  30,183,181.05  30,232,154.31  74Total for  Denton County Transportation Authority  100.205  100.350  1.012  1.012 0

Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:51 pm Page 2 of 2

Page 7 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

25



CUSIP

Change in Value
From 12/31/2019 to 03/31/2020

Amortization /

Accretion 

Realized 

Gain/(Loss) Book Value

Cost of 

Purchases

 

Market ValueMarket Value

 

Book Value

Maturities /

Calls / Sales

Denton County Transportation Authority

Change in 

Mkt Value

12/31/19 03/31/20 03/31/2012/31/19Security Type Security Description

2011 Bond Fund

WF-MANA  0.00  895,786.34  969,616.55  895,786.34 969,616.55  152.50  0.00 (73,982.71)BANK DEP (73,830.21)Wells Fargo Managed Rate

 895,786.34  0.00 Total for  2011 Bond Fund  969,616.55  895,786.34 969,616.55  152.50 (73,982.71)  0.00 (73,830.21)

Additional Reserve Fund

TEXSTAR  0.00  571,982.01  313,101.52  571,982.01 313,101.52  258,880.49  0.00  0.00 LGIP  258,880.49 TexSTAR

 571,982.01  0.00 Total for  Additional Reserve Fund  313,101.52  571,982.01 313,101.52  258,880.49  0.00  0.00  258,880.49 

Bond Fund

TEXSTAR  0.00  1,632,682.59  702,997.92  1,632,682.59 702,997.92  929,684.67  0.00  0.00 LGIP  929,684.67 TexSTAR

 1,632,682.59  0.00 Total for  Bond Fund  702,997.92  1,632,682.59 702,997.92  929,684.67  0.00  0.00  929,684.67 

Operating Fund

WF-MANA  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 BANK DEP  0.00 Wells Fargo Managed Rate

WF-SWEEP  0.00  438,518.75  624,885.31  438,518.75 624,885.31  860,038.66  0.00 (1,046,405.22)MMF (186,366.56)Wells Fargo Sweep

 438,518.75  0.00 Total for  Operating Fund  624,885.31  438,518.75 624,885.31  860,038.66 (1,046,405.22)  0.00 (186,366.56)

Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:52 pm Page 1 of 2

Page 8 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

26



CUSIP

Change in Value
From 12/31/2019 to 03/31/2020

Amortization /

Accretion 

Realized 

Gain/(Loss) Book Value

Cost of 

Purchases

 

Market ValueMarket Value

 

Book Value

Maturities /

Calls / Sales

Denton County Transportation Authority

Change in 

Mkt Value

12/31/19 03/31/20 03/31/2012/31/19Security Type Security Description

Reserve Fund

TEXSTAR  0.00  11,416,287.32  12,421,519.98  11,416,287.32 12,421,519.98  31,821.27  0.00 (1,037,053.93)LGIP (1,005,232.66)TexSTAR

WF-PREM  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 BANK DEP  0.00 Wells Fargo Premium Rate

3130AFVS3  0.00  0.00  1,000,995.50  0.00 999,952.02  0.00  47.98 (1,000,000.00)AGCY BULET (1,000,995.50)FHLB  2.500  02/13/20

912828X96  0.00  999,656.35  999,492.20  1,001,703.60 998,945.62  0.00  710.73  0.00 TREAS NOTE  2,211.40 U.S. Treasury  1.500  05/15/20

3130AEWA4  0.00  1,003,993.01  1,007,223.60  1,011,381.60 1,005,971.51  0.00 (1,978.50) 0.00 AGCY BULET  4,158.00 FHLB  2.625  10/01/20

3130A7CV5  0.00  1,497,857.09  0.00  1,513,263.00 0.00  1,497,540.00  317.09  0.00 AGCY BULET  1,513,263.00 FHLB  1.375  02/18/21

9128284G2  0.00  1,007,882.74  0.00  1,023,203.10 0.00  1,009,414.06 (1,531.32) 0.00 TREAS NOTE  1,023,203.10 U.S. Treasury  2.375  04/15/21

3134GTA45  188.53  0.00  1,000,060.60  0.00 999,806.69  0.00  4.78 (1,000,000.00)AGCY CALL (1,000,060.60)FHLMC  2.200  07/15/21

3130AH2R3  56.14  0.00  500,310.90  0.00 499,936.36  0.00  7.50 (500,000.00)AGCY CALL (500,310.90)FHLB  2.000  09/13/21

313378CR0  0.00  1,545,486.45  0.00  1,554,297.60 0.00  1,546,650.00 (1,163.55) 0.00 AGCY BULET  1,554,297.60 FHLB  2.250  03/11/22

 17,471,162.96  244.67 Total for  Reserve Fund  16,929,602.78  17,520,136.22 16,926,132.18  4,085,425.33 (3,537,053.93) (3,585.29)  590,533.44 

Sales Tax Fund

TEXSTAR  0.00  9,173,048.40  9,040,927.24  9,173,048.40 9,040,927.24  289,144.95  0.00 (157,023.79)LGIP  132,121.16 TexSTAR

 9,173,048.40  0.00 Total for  Sales Tax Fund  9,040,927.24  9,173,048.40 9,040,927.24  289,144.95 (157,023.79)  0.00  132,121.16 

 244.67  30,183,181.05 Total for  Denton County Transportation Authority  28,581,131.32  30,232,154.31 28,577,660.72  6,423,326.60 (4,814,465.65) (3,585.29)  1,651,022.99 

Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:52 pm Page 2 of 2

Page 9 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

27



From 12/31/2019 to 03/31/2020

Denton County Transportation Authority

Beg. Accrued Net Income Security DescriptionCUSIP Disc Accr / 

Prem Amort

Earned Income

Interest Earned Interest Rec'd / 

Sold / Matured
Interest Purchased Ending AccruedSecurity Type

2011 Bond Fund

WF-MANA Wells Fargo Managed Rate  0.00  462.50  0.00  0.00  462.50  462.50 BANK DEP  0.00 

 0.00  462.50  0.00  462.50  0.00  462.50 Total for  2011 Bond Fund  0.00 

Additional Reserve Fund

TEXSTAR TexSTAR  0.00  1,632.49  0.00  0.00  1,632.49  1,632.49 LGIP  0.00 

 0.00  1,632.49  0.00  1,632.49  0.00  1,632.49 Total for  Additional Reserve Fund  0.00 

Bond Fund

TEXSTAR TexSTAR  0.00  4,133.92  0.00  0.00  4,133.92  4,133.92 LGIP  0.00 

 0.00  4,133.92  0.00  4,133.92  0.00  4,133.92 Total for  Bond Fund  0.00 

Operating Fund

 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 Total for  Operating Fund  0.00 

Reserve Fund

TEXSTAR TexSTAR  0.00  41,417.34  0.00  0.00  41,417.34  41,417.34 LGIP  0.00 

3130AFVS3 FHLB  2.500  02/13/20  0.00  2,964.65  9,583.33  0.00  2,916.67  12,500.00 AGCY BULET  47.98 

912828X96 U.S. Treasury  1.500  05/15/20  0.00  4,460.73  1,936.81  5,686.81  3,750.00  0.00 TREAS NOTE  710.73 

3130AEWA4 FHLB  2.625  10/01/20  0.00  4,584.00  6,562.50  13,125.00  6,562.50  0.00 AGCY BULET (1,978.50)

3130A7CV5 FHLB  1.375  02/18/21 (10,083.33)  3,009.80  0.00  2,463.54  2,692.71  10,312.50 AGCY BULET  317.09 

9128284G2 U.S. Treasury  2.375  04/15/21 (6,099.73)  3,335.48  0.00  10,966.53  4,866.80  0.00 TREAS NOTE (1,531.32)

3134GTA45 FHLMC  2.200  07/15/21  0.00  860.34  10,144.44  0.00  855.56  11,000.00 AGCY CALL  4.78 

3130AH2R3 FHLB  2.000  09/13/21  0.00  2,007.50  3,055.56  0.00  2,000.00  5,055.56 AGCY CALL  7.50 

313378CR0 FHLB  2.250  03/11/22 (187.50)  523.95  0.00  1,875.00  1,687.50  0.00 AGCY BULET (1,163.55)

(16,370.56)  63,163.79  34,116.88  66,749.08  31,282.64  80,285.40 Total for  Reserve Fund (3,585.29)

Print Time:   2:52 pmPrint Date:  4/9/2020 Page 1 of 2

Page 10 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

28



From 12/31/2019 to 03/31/2020

Denton County Transportation Authority

Beg. Accrued Net Income Security DescriptionCUSIP Disc Accr / 

Prem Amort

Earned Income

Interest Earned Interest Rec'd / 

Sold / Matured
Interest Purchased Ending AccruedSecurity Type

Sales Tax Fund

TEXSTAR TexSTAR  0.00  32,809.38  0.00  0.00  32,809.38  32,809.38 LGIP  0.00 

 0.00  32,809.38  0.00  32,809.38  0.00  32,809.38 Total for  Sales Tax Fund  0.00 

(16,370.56)  102,202.08  31,282.64  34,116.88  105,787.37  119,323.69 Total for  Denton County Transportation Authority (3,585.29)

Print Time:   2:52 pmPrint Date:  4/9/2020 Page 2 of 2

Page 11 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

29



Investment Transactions

CUSIP Price Total AmountSecurity Description

From  01/01/2020 to 03/31/2020

Security

Type Coupon Mty Date Call Date

Trade

 Date

Settle

 Date Par Value

Denton County Transportation Authority

Realized

Gain / Loss YTM YTW
    Principal 

    Amount

Int Purchased /

Received 

Reserve Fund

Calls

 100.00007/15/21 2.200FHLMCAGCY CALL3134GTA4501/15/2001/14/20  1,000,000.00  1,000,000.00  188.53  2.213  2.200 0.00  1,000,000.00 01/15/20

 100.00009/13/21 2.000FHLBAGCY CALL3130AH2R303/13/2003/12/20  500,000.00  500,000.00  56.14  2.008  2.000 0.00  500,000.00 03/13/20

 1,500,000.00  1,500,000.00 Total for:  Calls  244.67  2.144  2.133 1,500,000.00  0.00 

Maturities

 100.00002/13/20 2.500FHLBAGCY BULET3130AFVS302/13/2002/13/20  1,000,000.00  1,000,000.00  2.542 0.00  1,000,000.00 

 1,000,000.00  1,000,000.00 Total for:  Maturities  2.542 1,000,000.00  0.00 

Purchases

 100.94104/15/21 2.375U.S. TreasuryTREAS NOTE9128284G201/17/2001/16/20  1,000,000.00  1,015,513.79  1.606  1.606 6,099.73  1,009,414.06 

 99.83602/18/21 1.375FHLBAGCY BULET3130A7CV502/14/2002/13/20  1,500,000.00  1,507,623.33  1.539  1.539 10,083.33  1,497,540.00 

 103.11003/11/22 2.250FHLBAGCY BULET313378CR003/13/2003/12/20  1,500,000.00  1,546,837.50  0.677  0.677 187.50  1,546,650.00 

 4,069,974.62  4,000,000.00 Total for:  Purchases  1.233  1.233 4,053,604.06  16,370.56 

Income Payments

07/15/21 2.200FHLMCAGCY CALL3134GTA4501/15/2001/15/20  11,000.00  11,000.00  0.00 

02/13/20 2.500FHLBAGCY BULET3130AFVS302/13/2002/13/20  12,500.00  12,500.00  0.00 

02/18/21 1.375FHLBAGCY BULET3130A7CV502/18/2002/18/20  10,312.50  10,312.50  0.00 

09/13/21 2.000FHLBAGCY CALL3130AH2R303/13/2003/13/20  5,055.56  5,055.56  0.00 

 38,868.06 Total for:  Income Payments  0.00  38,868.06 

Page 1 of 2Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:52 pm

Page 12 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

30



Investment Transactions

CUSIP Price Total AmountSecurity Description

From  01/01/2020 to 03/31/2020

Security

Type Coupon Mty Date Call Date

Trade

 Date

Settle

 Date Par Value

Denton County Transportation Authority

Realized

Gain / Loss YTM YTW
    Principal 

    Amount

Int Purchased /

Received 

YTWYTMRealized G/LTotal AmountQuantityTransaction Type

 1,500,000.00  1,500,000.00Total Calls  244.67  2.144  2.133

 1,000,000.00  1,000,000.00Total Maturities  2.542

 4,069,974.62  4,000,000.00Total Purchases  1.233  1.233

 38,868.06  0.00Total Income Payments

Total for All Portfolios

Page 2 of 2Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:52 pm

Page 13 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

31



CUSIP

Amortization and Accretion
From 12/31/2019 to 03/31/2020

Purchase QtySettle Date
Orig

Price Original Cost
Amrt/Accr

for Period

Total Amrt/Accr

Since Purch

Remaining

Disc / Prem Book ValueNext Call Date

Denton County Transportation Authority

Security DescriptionSecurity Type

Reserve Fund

3130AFVS3  0.00  47.98  0.00  0.00  0.0003/20/19  99.962  0.00FHLB  2.500  02/13/20AGCY BULET

912828X96  998,242.19  710.73  1,414.16  343.65  1,000,000.0010/03/19  99.824  999,656.35U.S. Treasury  1.500  05/15/20TREAS NOTE

3130AEWA4  1,008,360.00 (1,978.50) (4,366.99) (3,993.01) 1,000,000.0009/12/19  100.836  1,003,993.01FHLB  2.625  10/01/20AGCY BULET

3130A7CV5  1,497,540.00  317.09  317.09  2,142.91  1,500,000.0002/14/20  99.836  1,497,857.09FHLB  1.375  02/18/21AGCY BULET

9128284G2  1,009,414.06 (1,531.32) (1,531.32) (7,882.74) 1,000,000.0001/17/20  100.941  1,007,882.74U.S. Treasury  2.375  04/15/21TREAS NOTE

3134GTA45  0.00  4.78  0.00  0.00  0.0007/15/19  99.975  0.00FHLMC  2.200  07/15/21AGCY CALL 01/15/20

3130AH2R3  0.00  7.50  0.00  0.00  0.0009/12/19  99.985  0.00FHLB  2.000  09/13/21AGCY CALL 03/13/20

313378CR0  1,546,650.00 (1,163.55) (1,163.55) (45,486.45) 1,500,000.0003/13/20  103.110  1,545,486.45FHLB  2.250  03/11/22AGCY BULET

(3,585.29) 6,060,206.25Total for  Reserve Fund (5,330.61) (54,875.64) 6,000,000.00  6,054,875.64

 6,060,206.25 (3,585.29)Total for  Denton County Transportation Authority (5,330.61) (54,875.64) 6,000,000.00  6,054,875.64 0.00  0

Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:52 pm Page 1 of 1

Page 14 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

32



CUSIP Pay Date Interest

Denton County Transportation Authority

Projected Cash Flows

Total AmountSecurity Type

Cash Flows for next 180 days from  03/31/2020

Security Description Principal

Reserve Fund

 13,125.00  13,125.003130AEWA4 AGCY BULET FHLB  2.625  10/01/20 04/01/20  0.00

 11,875.00  11,875.009128284G2 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury  2.375  04/15/21 04/15/20  0.00

 7,500.00  1,007,500.00912828X96 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury  1.500  05/15/20 05/15/20  1,000,000.00

 10,312.50  10,312.503130A7CV5 AGCY BULET FHLB  1.375  02/18/21 08/18/20  0.00

 16,875.00  16,875.00313378CR0 AGCY BULET FHLB  2.250  03/11/22 09/11/20  0.00

 1,059,687.50Total for  Reserve Fund  59,687.50  1,000,000.00

Page 1 of 2Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:52 pm

Page 15 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

33



CUSIP Pay Date Interest

Denton County Transportation Authority

Projected Cash Flows

Total AmountSecurity Type

Cash Flows for next 180 days from  03/31/2020

Security Description Principal

 25,000.00  25,000.00April 2020  0.00

 7,500.00  1,007,500.00May 2020  1,000,000.00

 10,312.50  10,312.50August 2020  0.00

 16,875.00  16,875.00September 2020  0.00

 59,687.50  1,059,687.50Total Projected Cash Flows for  Denton County Transportation Authority  1,000,000.00

Total for All Portfolios

Page 2 of 2Print Date:  4/9/2020 Print Time:   2:52 pm

Page 16 of 16

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 2

34



 
 

Consent Item 2, Exhibit 3 

Board of Directors Memo                            April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Quarterly Grants Update Q2 FY2020 
 
Grant Activities This Period 
DCTA currently has 7 open grants that provide reimbursements for various capital projects, rail and bus 
preventive maintenance, operating assistance and ADA paratransit service. The grant funding sources include 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA), North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG), and Texas 
Department of Transportation (TxDOT). Total grant balance was $7.6 million as of 3/31/2020.  Of this total, 
$1.4 million is obligated for Positive Train Control, and $5.8 million is obligated for the FY16-18 Program of 
Projects.  This quarter, the DCTA staff submitted an application for FTA’s FY20 Low or No Emission Grant 
Program.  Details of the proposed hydrogen ecosystem project were presented to the DCTA Board of 
Directors at the March 2020 Board meeting.  
 

 
  
  

5307 - Denton-Lewisville 
UZA, $5,425,244

5339 - Denton-Lewisville 
UZA, $377,955

STP-MM / STP-FLEX, 
$1,526,924

5316 - JARC, $27,615
5317 - NF, $238,156

GRANTS FUNDING LEVELS $7.6 MILLION AS OF 3/31/2020

35



Consent Item 2, Exhibit 3 

Pending Funding and Other Grant Activity 
$1.6 million of the Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality (CMAQ) funding for bus purchases for 35W North 
Texas Xpress services is following the May 2020 TIP modification cycle to be de-obligated from NCTCOG 
and re-obligated to DCTA through FTA.  The grant for the purchase of the 35W North Texas Xpress buses will 
utilize Transportation Development Credits (TDCs) in lieu of the local match. DCTA will receive $11.3 million 
in CMAQ funding from NCTCOG for land acquisition purchases and development. NCTCOG expects to 
submit the final de-obligation amendment to FTA in May 2020, making the funds available for DCTA’s 
obligation by the end of FY20.   

DCTA was awarded $4 million for the Positive Train Control (PTC) Enhancements proposal submitted in June 
2018 to Federal Railroad Administration’s (FRA) Consolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements 
(CRISI) Grants Program. Staff obtained pre-award authority effective June 2019 and is working with FRA to 
execute the grant by Q3 of FY20. 

In October 2019, the Regional Transportation Council (RTC) approved the addition of FY19 Program of 
Projects (POP) formula funding to the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) in the amount of $9.1 
million.  In February 2020, FTA released its annual appropriations of formula funding in which DCTA was 
apportioned $8.8 million.  Staff will meet in the fall of 2020 to strategically program the funds.  

Submitted by: ___________________________ 
Whitney Trayler 
Grants Manager 

Final Review: ____________________________ 
Marisa Perry, CPA 
Chief Financial Officer/VP of Finance 

Program 
Q1 FY20 
Balance 

Q2 FY20 
Balance Grant Activity 

Denton-Lewisville UZA (5307) $6,270,070 $5,425,244 
Fleet Replacement, Preventive Maintenance, 
Safety & Security, ADA Paratransit 

STP-MM / STP-FLEX $1,854,572 $1,526,924 Positive Train Control Implementation & Vanpool 
Job Access, Reverse Commute (JARC) 
(5316) $52,544 $27,615 

35W North Texas Xpress (NTX) Operating 
Assistance  

New Freedom (NF) Funding (5317) $240,000 $238,156 Mobility Management 
Bus and Bus Facilities (5339) $377,955 $377,955 Fleet Replacement 
TXDOT (FHWA) $227,202 $0 A-train Rail Trail (Eagle Point Section)
Total $ 9,022,343 $ 7,595,894 

36



 
 

 

Informational Report 1 

 
Board of Directors Memo                              April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Monthly Sales Tax Receipts 
 
Background 
Sales tax represents the single largest source of revenue for DCTA at 62.94% for the Fiscal Year 2020 budget.  
The annual sales tax budget for FY20 is $29,019,184. Because of its importance in funding of DCTA’s ongoing 
operations, the Board adopted a Budget Contingency Plan that outlines the Agency’s response when declines 
in sales tax hit a specific target.   

 

For the month of April, receipts were favorable compared to budget.  
• Sales tax for sales generated at retail in the month of February and received in April was $2,114,448.  
• This represents an increase of 2.42% or $49,884 compared to budget for the month. 
• Compared to the same month last year, sales tax receipts are $90,366 or 4.46% higher.   

 
 Member city collections for the month compared to prior year are as follows: 

o City of Lewisville up 0.72%  
o City of Denton up 7.26%  
o City of Highland Village up 1.56%  

 
Identified Need 
Provides the Board of Directors a monthly status on Sales Tax collections. 
 
Recommendation 
For information only.  No action required. 
 
Exhibits 
Exhibit 1: FY20 Monthly Sales Tax Report 

 
 
 
Submitted By: ____________________________ 
 Amanda Riddle 
 Senior Manager of Budget 
 
 
Final Review: ____________________________ 
 Marisa Perry, CPA 
 Chief Financial Officer/VP of Finance 
 

37



Informational Report 1, Exhibit 1

Sales Generated 
in Month of:

Received in 
Month of:

2019-2020 Year 
Budget

2019-2020
Year Actual

Variance Actual 
to Budget

CY Actual to 
CY Budget % 

Variance
2018-2019 Year 

Actual
Variance Actual to 

Prior Year

CY Actual to 
PY Actual % 

Variance

October December 2,353,270$              2,329,419$           (23,851)$  -1.01% 2,307,128$             22,291$  0.97%

November January 2,338,596$              2,188,220$          (150,376)$  -6.43% 2,292,741$              (104,521)$  -4.56%

December February 2,888,362$              3,191,714$            303,352$  10.50% 2,831,728$              359,986$  12.71%

January March 2,111,018$  2,268,362$          157,344$  7.45% 2,069,625$            198,737$  9.60%

February April 2,064,564$             2,114,448$           49,884$  2.42% 2,024,082$            90,366$  4.46%

March May 2,525,343$  2,475,826$             

April June 2,534,129$  2,484,440$            

May July 2,234,810$              2,307,292$             

June August 2,627,865$              2,656,359$             

July September 2,225,018$              2,447,195$             

August October 2,441,366$  2,312,424$              

September November 2,674,843$              2,552,054$             

YTD Total 29,019,184$             12,092,163$         336,353$  2.86% 28,760,896$          566,859$  4.92%

Sources: Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts and DCTA Finance Department
Prepared By: Denton County Transportation Authority Finance Department

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SALES TAX REPORT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL AND PREVIOUS YEAR COMPARISON

April 13, 2020

38



Sales 
Generated in 

Month of:
Received in 
Month of:

2018-2019
Year Actual

2019-2020 
Year Actual

Variance Actual 
to 

Prior Year

CY Actual to PY 
Actual % 
Variance

Sales 
Generated in 

Month of:
Received in 
Month of:

2018-2019
Year Actual

2019-2020 
Year Actual

Variance Actual 
to 

Prior Year

CY Actual to 
PY Actual % 

Variance

October December 3,287,654$          3,282,870$         (4,784)$              -0.15% October December 319,132$             357,488$           38,356$              12.02%
November January 3,193,613$           2,904,782$        (288,831)$           -9.04% November January 311,524$             356,224$            44,700$             14.35%
December February 4,003,626$         4,407,090$        403,465$           10.08% December February 446,811$            521,121$              74,309$             16.63%
January March 3,029,803$         3,148,942$         119,140$             3.93% January March 283,228$            338,734$            55,507$             19.60%
February April 2,965,849$         2,987,194$         21,344$              0.72% February April 258,782$           262,811$             4,029$  1.56%
March May 3,631,625$          March May 344,912$            
April June 3,806,587$         April June 304,322$            
May July 3,253,159$           May July 340,531$            
June August 3,620,748$         June August 523,000$           
July September 3,382,881$          July September 322,509$           
August October 3,226,407$         August October 316,585$            
September November 3,574,678$          September November 382,932$            

YTD Total 40,976,630$       16,730,878$       250,333$            1.52% YTD Total 4,154,270$         1,836,378$          216,901$            13.39%

Sales 
Generated in 

Month of:
Received in 
Month of:

2018-2019
Year Actual

2019-2020 
Year Actual

Variance Actual 
to 

Prior Year

CY Actual to 
PY Actual % 

Variance

October December 2,875,467$          2,887,178$         11,711$  0.41%
November January 2,933,274$          2,911,334$          (21,940)$             -0.75%
December February 3,667,687$         4,230,616$         562,929$           15.35%
January March 2,435,272$          2,902,937$         467,665$           19.20%
February April 2,397,631$           2,571,667$          174,036$            7.26%
March May 3,229,426$          
April June 2,945,196$          
May July 2,897,074$         
June August 3,479,089$         
July September 3,190,582$          
August October 2,955,618$          
September November 3,396,022$         

YTD Total 36,402,338$        15,503,732$        1,194,400$         8.35%

Sources: Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts and DCTA Finance Department
Prepared By: Denton County Transportation Authority Finance Department

CITY OF DENTON

April 13, 2020

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

MEMBER CITIES SALES TAX REPORT

MONTH ALLOCATION IS RECEIVED FROM COMPTROLLER

PREVIOUS YEAR COMPARISON

CITY OF LEWISVILLE CITY OF HIGHLAND VILLAGE

Informational Report 1, Exhibit 1

39



Transit Agency Current Rate
Net Payment
This Period

Comparable 
Payment Prior Year % Change

Payments YTD    
(Calendar)

Prior Year Payments 
YTD (Calendar) % Change

Austin MTA 1.00% 20,288,216$  19,447,199$  4.32% 92,070,652$  83,657,429$  10.05%

Corpus Christi MTA 0.50% 2,593,497$  2,533,698$  2.36% 11,308,663$  11,116,686$  1.72%

Dallas MTA 1.00% 45,371,259$  46,200,236$  -1.79% 217,484,395$  206,145,233$  5.50%

Denton CTA 0.50% 2,114,448$  2,024,082$  4.46% 9,762,744$  9,218,176$  5.90%

El Paso CTD 0.50% 3,634,912$  3,395,453$  7.05% 16,851,634$  15,298,259$  10.15%

Fort Worth MTA 0.50% 5,885,729$  5,982,785$  -1.62% 27,700,599$  26,949,845$  2.78%

Houston MTA 1.00% 57,502,606$  55,803,145$  3.04% 269,167,146$  252,198,085$  6.72%

Laredo CTD 0.25% 598,852$  666,166$  -10.10% 2,914,263$  2,826,508$  3.10%

San Antonio ATD 0.25% 5,217,946$  5,434,250$  -3.98% 24,134,386$  23,235,904$  3.86%

San Antonio MTA 0.50% 11,530,583$  12,002,435$  -3.93% 53,964,729$  51,145,372$  5.51%

TOTALS 154,738,048$              153,489,451$  0.81% 725,359,211$  681,791,498$  6.39%

Sources:   Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts and DCTA Finance Department
Prepared By: Denton County Transportation Authority Finance Department
April 13, 2020

ALL TRANSIT AGENCIES 

MONTHLY SALES AND USE TAX COMPARISON SUMMARY

Informational Report 1, Exhibit 1

40



Informational Report 1, Memo 2 

Board of Directors Memo    April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Monthly Mobility-as-a-Service Update 

Background 
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was released on January 16, 2019 for Mobility as a Service (MaaS).  Firms were invited to 
submit proposals (for both federal and non-federal funding project categories) to provide innovative mobility service 
to DCTA member cities, DCTA contract communities, partner organizations, as well as large employment centers and 
other areas as the need arises.  On March 12, 2019, DCTA received thirty-seven (37) proposals in response to the RFP. 
Thirty-three (33) proposals were deemed responsive and were evaluated by the evaluation team.  The evaluation team 
rejected two proposals that scored less than seventy (70) points and recommended award to thirty-one (31) firms.  The 
Board of Directors approved the award of Mobility-as-a-Service to thirty-one firms and reduced the total annual 
contract value of $2,400,000 to $75,000 for all task orders issued under the master on-call contracts. One of the 
recommended firms will not execute a contract due to business operational changes; therefore, thirty (30) firms remain 
eligible for contract execution.  As requested by the Board of Directors, staff is providing a monthly update on all 
Mobility-as-a-Service commitments, activities and expenditures.  

To date, the following twenty-six contracts have been fully executed: 
• AJL International
• Bird Rides
• Bubbl Investments, LLC.
• Dashboard Story dba DUET
• DemandTrans Solutions
• DoubleMap
• Downtowner Holdings, LLC.
• First Transit
• Ford Smart Mobility, LLC.

• Irving Holdings
• Iteris
• Kapsch
• Lyft
• Moovel
• Moovit
• MV Transportation
• Muve: Quebec, Inc.
• Quebec, Inc. dba Transit

• RideCo
• Rideshark Corporation
• River North (Via)
• Roundtrip
• Routematch
• Spare Labs, Inc.
• Spare Labs, Inc. (with First

Transit)
• Transdev North America

The remaining four contracts, all with software companies (Passport, SeatsX, Token Transit and Transloc), have been 
placed on hold until a need arises to enter into a contract for software.  

Financial Impact 
No task orders have been issued to date. 

Identified Need 
Provides the Board of Directors a monthly status on Mobility-as-a-Service Contracts. 

Recommendation 
For information only.  No action required. 

Submitted By:  ____________________________ 
Sarah Martinez 
Director of Procurement 

Final Review: ____________________________ 
Raymond Suarez 
Chief Executive Officer 

41



 
 

 

Informational Report 1 Memo 3 

Board of Directors Memo                            April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Budget Information 
 
 
There were no budget transfers completed in the month of March to report. 

 
 
Identified Need 
Provides the Board of Directors a monthly status on any budget transfers completed. 
 
Recommendation 
For information only.  No action required. 
 
Exhibits 
N/A 
 
 
 
Submitted By: ____________________________ 
 Amanda Riddle 
 Senior Manager of Budget 
 
 
Final Review: ____________________________ 
 Marisa Perry, CPA 
 Chief Financial Officer/VP of Finance 
 
 
 
 
 

 

42



 
 

 

Informational Report 2 

 
Board of Directors Memo                            April 23, 2020       
SUBJECT: Transformation Initiative Update 
 
Background 
The Transformation Initiative is an agency-wide study to help the DCTA Board of Directors develop a cohesive 
vision for DCTA’s future, improve operations, address perceived concerns, and respond to evolving markets, 
technology and consumer preferences.  

 
Financial Impact 
A cost for the study, and any additional services, will be disclosed in the bid proposals received on  
April 17, 2020. 
 
Timeline Update 
Completed Steps (all on schedule) 

⋅ January 23, 2020 – Board approved scope of work and timeline with modifications 
⋅ January 24, 2020 – Updated scope and timeline were sent to the Board in a Friday email 
⋅ February 10, 2020 – Bid package was released; key consultants were notified 
⋅ February 10, 2020 – Evaluation committee was notified, and meetings were scheduled for the bid 

process 
⋅ March 4, 2020 – Pre-proposal conference, with 10 bidders in attendance (in person and via phone) 
⋅ March 13, 2020 – All bidder questions due 
⋅ March 25, 2020 – All bidder questions answered (total of 78 questions) 
⋅ March 26, 2020 – Overall timeline was adjusted and communicated to bidders via BidSync and to the 

DCTA Board of Directors 
 
Next Steps 

⋅ April 17, 2020 – All final bids due by 2 p.m. (this reflects the extended timeline approved on 3/26) 
⋅ April 22, 2020 – Meeting at 1:30 p.m. for digital distribution of final bid packages 
⋅ May 6, 2020 – Individual evaluations complete and submitted to procurement 
⋅ May 7, 2020 – Evaluation committee meeting to discuss individual evaluations and determine top 

candidates to be scheduled for a presentation (presentations for the week of 5/18) 
⋅ Week of May 18, 2020 – Top candidate presentations 
⋅ Week of May 25, 2020 – Evaluation committee meeting to determine final bidder recommendation 
⋅ Early-June 2020 – Board packet preparation 
⋅ June 25, 2020 – Final recommendation taken to DCTA Board of Directors for approval 

 
 

 
 
 
Submitted By: ____________________________ 
 Nicole Recker, VP of Marketing & Administration  

 

43



TRANSFORMATION + BUDGET CALENDAR Informational Report 2, Exhibit 1 
UPDATED 4.14.2020 

APRIL 2020 
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
All Final 
Transforma�on 
Proposals Due (2 

 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
Eval Com Mee�ng to 
Distro Proposals (1:30 
p.m.) 

26 27 28 29 30 

44



TRANSFORMATION + BUDGET CALENDAR 
UPDATED 4.14.2020 

MAY 2020 
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
Individual Evals 
Completed 

Eval Com Mee�ng 
(discuss top 
choice/evalua�ons) 

Schedule In-Person 
Vendor Presos  
(Week of 5/18) 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
In-Person Vendor 
Presos (or via Skype) 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
DCTA Holiday 
(Memorial Day) 

Eval Com Mee�ng to 
Determine Final 
Recommended Bidder 

31 

Informational Report 2, Exhibit 1 

45



TRANSFORMATION + BUDGET CALENDAR 
UPDATED 4.14.2020 

JUNE 2020 
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
Create Board Memo 
and Task Order #1 for 
Board Packet 

Board Memo and 
Suppor�ng Docs Due 
for Packet (12 p.m.) 

FY ’21 Budget 
Workshop with Board 
(#1) 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
Board Approval of 
Transforma�on 
Consultant + Task 
Order #1 28 29 30 

Informational Report 2, Exhibit 1 

46



TRANSFORMATION + BUDGET CALENDAR 
UPDATED 4.14.2020 

JULY 2020 
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

1 2 3 4 
DCTA Holiday  
(4th of July) 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
FY ’21 Budget 
Workshop with Board 
(#2; if needed) 

26 27 28 29 30 31 
Goal for Contract + 
Task Order to be 
Complete 

Informational Report 2, Exhibit 1 

47



TRANSFORMATION + BUDGET CALENDAR 
UPDATED 4.14.2020 

AUGUST 2020 
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
FY ’21 Budget 
Presenta�on + Public 
Hearing 

30 31 

Informational Report 2, Exhibit 1 

48



TRANSFORMATION + BUDGET CALENDAR 
UPDATED 4.14.2020 

SEPTEMBER 2020 
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY 

1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
DCTA Holiday 
(Labor Day) 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
FY ’21 Budget 
Adop�on 

27 28 29 30 
Goal to Receive Trans 
Ini�a�ve Analysis + 
Recommenda�ons 

OCTOBER 1, 2020 MARKS THE FIRST DAY OF FY ‘21 

Informational Report 2, Exhibit 1 

49



DCTA PURCHASING LIST (APR 2020 - DEC 2020)

VENDOR PROJECT EXPIRATION DATE
BOARD ACTION 

REQUIRED?
BOARD ACTION NOTES

TAKE TO BOARD FOR DISCUSSION (3-
month notice)

City of McKinney ILA for Transporation Services
Expires 5/31/2020 (current term); 
Annual renewals after initial term 

YES N/A April

Lyft
On Demand Rideshare Services (TNC) - Parent 
Contract

Expires 7/6/2020 (initial term); 
Annual renewals after initial term

NO

Awarded by the Board March 2017 for an initial 
term of 2 years with 3/1 year terms.  Individual 
tasks orders (over $75k) are taken to the board 
for approval

N/A

Lyft
Frisco Lyft Program for Elderly and Disabled - Task 
Order

Expires 6/30/2020 (only a budget 
increase from 6/30 - 9/30; like 
parent contract w/City of Frisco)

NO Low-dollar expense (<$15K) N/A

Lyft
City of Lewisville to Flower Mound Services - Task 
Order

Expires 9/19/2020 (initial Term); 
Annual renewals after initial term

NO Low-dollar expense (<$50K) N/A

Irving Holdings
On-Demand Rideshare Services (TNC) - Parent 
Contract

Expires 5/8/2020 (current term is 
year 1 of renewals); two additional 
renewals remaining

NO

Awarded by the Board March 2017 for an initial 
term of 2 years with 3/1 year terms.  Individual 
tasks orders (over $75k) are taken to the board 
for approval

N/A

Irving Holdings Taxi Voucher Program - Parent Contract 
Expires 8/24/2020 (current term is 
year 1 of renewals); two additional 
renewals available

NO
individial task orders (over $75K) taken to board 
for approval

N/A

Irving Holdings Tax Voucher Program-City of McKinney Task Order
Expires 09/30/2020; current term is 
a renewal term 

No N/A June

North Central Texas College ILA Bus Service 
Expires 6/30/2020; no 
extensions/renewals available

YES N/A April

Denton Electric
Service Agreement for Electrical Services at Facilities (as 
needed)

Expires 7/1/2020; no renewals 
available

NO Low-dollar expense (<$5K) N/A

Southwest Fire & Security
Fire Alarm Inspection and Monitoring at Bus O&M and 
DDTC (required)

Expires 7/10/2020 (initial term); 
annual renewals

NO Low-dollar expense (<$3K) N/A

Reeder Distributors
Lift Service Agreement - Maintenance for Portable Bus 
Lifts (as needed)

Expires 8/31/2020; no renewals NO Low-dollar expense (<$5K) N/A

AAA Denton Fire & Safety
Fire Maintenance Service Agreement - Fire 
Extinguishers

Expires 8/1/2020; no renewals NO Low-dollar expense (<$500) N/A

Holmes Murphy
Employee Benefits Broker/Consultant - Healthcare 
Benefits

Expires 7/31/2020 (initial term); 
annual renewals 

NO
Extension is budgeted and terms already 
approved by Board

At the time of the award the Board 
approved the initial term of 3 years plus 
the two year renewals

First Southwest Asset 
Management

Investment Advisor Services
Expires 8/17/2020; currently in year 
1 of the 3 renewals

NO
Extension is budgeted and terms already 
approved by Board

At the time of the award the Board 
approved the initial term of 2 years with 3-
1 year renewal terms.  Current term is the 
first renewal. 

Informational Report 2, Exhibit 2

50



McGriff, Seibels & Williams of 
Texas

Insurance Broker Services Agreement Expires 8/23/2020 (final term) YES N/A
May-Current Solicitation to replace this 
contract in progress.  Anticipated to be 
awarded in May. 

Stateside Right of Way Services, 
LLC

Property Acquisition Services
Expires 9/9/2020; no renewals 
without Board approval

YES N/A June

Star Transit ILA for Mobility Services - Use of MaaS Contracts Expires 9/9/2020 NO No cost associated with ILA N/A

Spare Labs On Demand Pilot Program - Lakeway Zone Expires 9/14/2020 (final term)

Staff is utilizing the MaaS contract to enter into a 
new agreement with Spare labs effective 
10/1/2020 (slated for June board meeting for 
approval).  

N/A

VENDOR PROJECT EXPIRATION DATE
BOARD ACTION 

REQUIRED?
BOARD ACTION NOTES

TAKE TO BOARD FOR DISCUSSION (3-
month notice)

City of Frisco ILA for Transportation Services Expires 9/30/2020; annual renewals YES N/A June

Early Morning Software DBE Compliance Software Expires 9/30/2020; annual renewals NO Low-dollar expense (<$7K) N/A

Periscope Holdings dba Bidsync BidSync Services and Subscription Expires 9/30/2020; annual renewals NO Low-dollar expense (~$15K) N/A

Denton County Sheriff's Office ILA for Law Enforcement Services Expires 9/30/2020 YES N/A
October/November (retro adjustment 
may be required)

BizLibrary Online Training Annual Subscription Fee Expires 9/30/2020; annual renewals NO Low-dollar expense (<$7,500) N/A

Black Top LLC Lease of Lakeway Property Expires 9/30/2020 YES N/A July

Capital Edge Federal Legislative Consulting
Expires 9/30/2020 (current term); 
first renewal option

NO
Awarded by the Board in September 2017 for 
the initial term of 2 years and the 3 annual 
renewals. 

N/A

City of Coppell ILA for Mobility Services
Expires 9/30/2020 (initial term); 
annual renewals

YES
August 2019 the Board approved the 1 year 
term with annual renewals

June

Lyft City of Coppell Lyft Zone - Task Order Expires 9/30/2020 (initial term) YES N/A June

DART
Shared Services Agreement - ILA for Platform 
Maintenance

Expires 9/30/2020; annual renewals YES N/A May

Star Tran
Fleet Maintenance and Inventory Software Annual 
Renewal (Bus Ops)

Expires 10/1/2020; annual renewal NO Low-dollar expense (<$10K) N/A

Brinks Incorporated Armored Car Services at Bus & DDTC Expires 10/2/2020; annual renewals NO Low-dollar expense (<$14K) N/A

CTJ Maintenance Janitorial Services at Admin Building Expires 10/7/2020; with extensions NO Low-dollar expense (<$10K) N/A

Lockwood Andrews Newnam On-Call A&E Services - Rail (as needed)
Expires 10/5/2020 (initial term); 
with annual renewals

NO

In September 2017, the Board approved the 
initial term of 3 years with 3 annual renwals. 
Individual task Orders (over $75K) are taken to 
the board for approval

N/A

Informational Report 2, Exhibit 2

51



Jacobs Engineering
On-Call A&E Services - General / Environmental (as 
needed)

Expires 10/25/2020 (initial terms); 
with annual renewals

NO

In September 2017, the Board approved the 
initial term of 3 years with 3 annual renwals. 
Individual task Orders (over $75K)  are taken to 
the board for approval

N/A

Alstom Signaling Positive Train Control Expires 2/20/2022, warranty period YES N/A N/A

Trane Building Services
Service Agreement for Building Automation System at 
Rail - Annual Fee

Expires 10/31/2020 (initial term); 
annual renewal 

NO Low-dollar expense (<$2K) N/A

Trillium GTFS Data Maintenance
Expires 11/30/2020 (initial term); 
annual renewals

NO Low-dollar expense (<$6K) N/A

S&A Systems
Fleetwatch Software Support for the Electronic tracking 
systems for bus fleet

Expires 12/31/2020; annual 
renewals

NO; low-dollar 
expense (???)

N/A

Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & 
Smith LLC

Legal Services
Expires 12/31/2020 (initial term); 
annual renewals after the initial term

YES N/A September/October

NEW Printing Services
Expiration will be based on contract 
execution after Board approval

YES N/A May

NEW Web Services
Expiration will be based on contract 
execution after Board approval

No N/A May

NEW Canopy Remediation
 One time repair; contract term until 
project is completed

YES N/A May

NEW 21 Arboc Buses
One time purchase after Board 
approval

YES N/A May

NEW (Alstom) Change Order for Extended FRA Review N/A YES N/A May

VENDOR PROJECT EXPIRATION DATE
BOARD ACTION 

REQUIRED?
BOARD ACTION NOTES

TAKE TO BOARD FOR DISCUSSION (3-
month notice)

NEW Cummins Auto Parts Expires 9/30/21; no renewals YES N/A May/June

NEW Non-Revenue Vehicles
One time purchase after Board 
approval

YES N/A May/June

NEW Transformation Intiative (Consultant + Task Order #1) 3 yrs, 1-2yr term YES N/A June

NEW Fleet Paint and Body 3 yrs, 2-1 yr terms YES N/A June
NEW Insurance Broker Services Agreement Expires 7/31/23; annual renewals YES N/A May

NOTE: This list is effective as of 4/15/2020 and does not include any new procurements that have not been identified at this time

Informational Report 2, Exhibit 2

52



Informational Report 3 

Board of Directors Memo   April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Performance Measures by Route 

Background 
DCTA executed a work authorization with Texas A&M Transportation Institute (TTI) in September 2018 to 
develop a multi-modal service costing model to fully allocate costs to each of DCTA’s transit modes and 
services.  The cost allocation model has been presented to the DCTA Board of Directors and the city managers 
and staff of the three member cities. The model enables expenses to be summarized by service type, geographic 
area, service mode and route.  As part of the model, TTI included industry standard performance measures which 
include: 

• Service Effectiveness Measures:
o Passengers Per Revenue Hour
o Passengers Per Revenue Mile

• Cost Efficiency Measures:
o Cost Per Revenue Hour
o Cost Per Revenue Mile
o Cost Per Total Vehicle Hour
o Cost Per Total Vehicle Mile

• Cost Effectiveness Measure:
o Cost Per Passenger Trip

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1: Performance Measures by Route for FY2019 

Submitted by:  _____________________________ 
Marisa Perry, CPA 
Chief Financial Officer/VP of Finance 

Final Review:  _____________________________ 
Raymond Suarez 
CEO 

53



Informational Report 3, Exhibit 1

COST 
EFFECTIVENESS 

MEASURE

ROUTE SERVICE GROUP CITY / ENTITY

PASSENGERS 
PER

REVENUE 
HOUR

PASSENGERS 
PER

REVENUE
MILE

COST
PER

REVENUE 
HOUR

COST
PER

REVENUE 
MILE

COST PER 
TOTAL 

VEHICLE 
HOUR

COST PER 
TOTAL 

VEHICLE 
MILE

COST
PER 

PASSENGER
TRIP

FIXED ROUTE - SERVICE TOTALS 16.96 1.43 95.19$           8.04$            89.55$           7.46$            5.61$  
Bernard Street UNT Service UNT Service 52.95 7.36 84.45$            11.74$              80.69$            11.28$              1.60$  
Centre Place UNT Service UNT Service 41.08  3.62  92.75$            8.18$               88.08$            7.90$              2.26$   
Colorado Express UNT Service UNT Service 25.04  2.01  94.55$            7.61$               90.32$            7.31$               3.78$   
North Texan UNT Service UNT Service 25.58  3.21  86.61$             10.86$            82.70$            10.04$            3.39$   
Discovery Park UNT Service UNT Service 38.76  2.73  97.96$            6.90$              93.20$            6.70$              2.53$   
Eagle Point UNT Service UNT Service 65.05  9.51  84.32$            12.32$             80.35$            11.53$              1.30$   
Mean Green UNT Service UNT Service 37.89  6.00  84.10$             13.31$              79.68$            12.06$             2.22$   
Mean Green Night Rider UNT Service UNT Service 36.05  3.80  90.63$            9.56$              84.88$            9.01$               2.51$   
Game Day UNT Service UNT Service 50.65  3.18  107.04$          6.72$              95.44$            6.31$               2.11$   
NCTC North NCTC Service NCTC Service 3.65  0.18  100.41$           5.00$              96.77$            4.78$              27.52$   
NCTC South NCTC Service NCTC Service 1.75  0.12  100.00$          6.67$              90.63$            6.18$               57.08$   
Route 1 Denton Connect Denton 5.72  0.41  96.06$            6.90$              92.84$            6.74$              16.79$   
Route 2 Denton Connect Denton 7.42  0.65  94.10$             8.22$              88.34$            7.79$               12.68$   
Route 3 Denton Connect Denton 9.48  0.84  93.74$             8.30$              87.83$            7.93$               9.88$   
Route 4 Denton Connect Denton 5.01  0.38  98.36$            7.40$              92.38$            6.83$              19.62$   
Route 5 Denton Connect Denton 5.64  0.67  88.38$            10.46$             82.91$             9.86$              15.68$   
Route 6 Denton Connect Denton 6.63  0.70  89.63$            9.50$              84.64$            9.06$              13.51$   
Route 7 Denton Connect Denton 14.47  1.24  93.96$            8.07$              88.44$            7.76$               6.49$   
Route 8 Denton Connect Denton 10.03  0.88  93.55$             8.25$              87.94$            7.90$              9.33$   
North Texas Xpress North Texas Xpress Denton 3.31  0.12  120.71$            4.50$              116.86$           4.42$              36.45$   
Route 21 Lewisville Connect Lewisville 4.21  0.31  102.29$           7.63$               94.58$            6.64$              24.28$   
Route 22 Lewisville Connect Lewisville 5.48  0.45  100.26$          8.19$               92.95$            6.96$              18.28$   
Highland Village Connect Highland Village Connect Highland Village 0.34  0.03  98.91$             8.74$              89.74$            7.15$               291.55$   
DEMAND RESPONSE - SERVICE TOTALS 2.21 0.16 130.75$         9.74$            90.38$          7.97$             59.13$  
Access ADA and non-ADA Denton DR Denton 2.14  0.15  118.67$            8.08$              94.23$            7.24$              55.52$   
Access ADA and non-ADA Lewisville DR Lewisville 2.36  0.19  118.86$           9.33$               90.88$            8.08$              50.30$   
Frisco Demand Response Frisco DR Frisco 2.05  0.12  113.80$            6.50$              94.30$            5.01$               55.63$   
Denton Enterprise Airport On-Demand Denton DR Denton 1.50  0.33  398.97$          87.21$             79.56$            34.95$            266.59$   
Lewisville Lakeway Zone Lewisville DR Lewisville 2.61  0.37  97.96$            14.00$            77.24$             12.67$             37.50$   
Collin County Transit - DR Collin County DR Collin 2.30  0.15  169.58$           11.15$               105.76$           6.25$              73.64$   
A-TRAIN - SERVICE TOTALS 29.08 1.23 1,233.92$       52.36$           1,120.90$      49.98$          42.43$  
A-train A-train Denton 29.08  1.23  1,233.92$         52.36$             1,120.90$        49.98$            42.43$   
A-train A-train Lewisville 29.08  1.23  1,233.92$         52.36$             1,120.90$        49.98$            42.43$   
A-train A-train Highland Village 29.08  1.23  1,233.92$         52.36$             1,120.90$        49.98$            42.43$   
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES - SERVICE TOTALS 2.84 0.18 70.80$          4.52$             70.80$          4.52$             24.92$  
Collin County Transit - Taxi Collin County Taxi Collin 2.61  0.14  60.61$            3.36$               60.61$            3.36$               23.24$   
Highland Village Lyft Highland Village Lyft Highland Village 17.06$   
Frisco Taxi Frisco Taxi Frisco 1.70  0.13  46.97$            3.71$               46.97$            3.71$               27.63$   
Frisco Lyft Frisco Lyft Frisco 14.79$   
Alliance Lyft Alliance Lyft Alliance 40.01$   
UNT Lyft UNT Lyft UNT Service 28.36$   
VANPOOL - SERVICE TOTALS 7.18 0.18 7.90$            0.20$            7.90$            0.20$            1.10$  
Commuter Vanpool Vanpool Denton 7.18  0.18  7.90$              0.20$              7.90$              0.20$              1.10$   

GRAND TOTAL - ALL SERVICES COMBINED 14.92 0.96 168.44$         10.87$           153.38$          10.18$           11.29$  

SUMMARY BY ROUTE

COST EFFICIENCY MEASURES
SERVICE EFFECTIVENESS 

MEASURESSUMMARY OF SERVICE

Performance Measures by Route for FY2019

54



COST 
EFFECTIVENESS 

MEASURE

ROUTE SERVICE GROUP CITY / ENTITY

PASSENGERS 
PER

REVENUE 
HOUR

PASSENGERS 
PER

REVENUE
MILE

COST
PER

REVENUE 
HOUR

COST
PER

REVENUE 
MILE

COST PER 
TOTAL 

VEHICLE 
HOUR

COST PER 
TOTAL 

VEHICLE 
MILE

COST
PER 

PASSENGER
TRIP

COST EFFICIENCY MEASURES
SERVICE EFFECTIVENESS 

MEASURESSUMMARY OF SERVICE

Performance Measures by Route for FY2019

UNT Service 40.02  4.05  90.13$             9.12$               85.69$            8.69$              2.25$   
NCTC Service 2.67  0.15  100.20$          5.74$               93.52$             5.41$               37.50$   
Denton Connect 7.80  0.68  93.91$             8.18$               88.45$            7.75$               12.04$   
Lewisville Connect 4.87  0.38  101.24$           7.90$              93.74$             6.80$              20.80$   
Highland Village Connect 0.34  0.03  98.91$             8.74$              89.74$            7.15$               291.55$   
North Texas Xpress 3.31  0.12  120.71$            4.50$              116.86$           4.42$              36.45$   
Denton DR 2.07  0.15  147.51$            10.81$             89.63$            9.29$              71.21$   
Lewisville DR 2.43  0.22  113.03$            10.15$              87.16$             8.85$              46.47$   
Frisco DR 2.05  0.12  113.80$            6.50$              94.30$            5.01$               55.63$   
Collin County DR 2.30  0.15  169.58$           11.15$               105.76$           6.25$              73.64$   
A-train 29.08  1.23  1,233.92$         52.36$             1,120.90$        49.98$            42.43$   
Collin County Taxi 2.61  0.14  60.61$            3.36$               60.61$            3.36$               23.24$   
Highland Village Lyft 17.06$   
Frisco Lyft 14.79$   
Frisco Taxi 1.70  0.13  46.97$            3.71$               46.97$            3.71$               27.63$   
UNT Lyft 28.36$   
Alliance Lyft 40.01$   
Vanpool 7.18  0.18  7.90$              0.20$              7.90$              0.20$              1.10$   

GRAND TOTAL 14.92 0.96 168.44$         10.87$           153.38$          10.18$           11.29$  

UNT Service 40.04  4.05  90.70$            9.18$               86.23$            8.75$              2.27$   
NCTC Service 2.67  0.15  100.20$          5.74$               93.52$             5.41$               37.50$   
Denton 8.09  0.43  145.17$            7.78$               131.14$             7.51$               17.95$   
Lewisville 9.16  0.63  325.24$           22.27$             289.27$          19.81$              35.51$   
Highland Village 3.63  0.29  224.63$          17.76$             203.83$          14.97$             61.88$   
Frisco 2.02  0.13  85.40$            5.58$              76.74$            4.71$               42.22$   
Collin County/MUTD 2.54  0.15  86.52$            4.98$              75.66$            4.28$              34.12$   
Alliance 40.01$   

GRAND TOTAL 14.92 0.96 168.44$         10.87$           153.38$          10.18$           11.29$  

MB Fixed-Route Bus 16.96  1.43  95.19$             8.04$              89.55$            7.46$              5.61$   
DR Demand Response 2.21  0.16  130.75$           9.74$              90.38$            7.97$               59.13$   
CR A-train Commuter Rail 29.08  1.23  1,233.92$         52.36$             1,120.90$        49.98$            42.43$   
TX Demand Response - Taxi 2.21  0.14  54.61$             3.49$              54.61$             3.49$              24.73$   
TN TNC 25.57$   
VP Vanpool 7.18  0.18  7.90$              0.20$              7.90$              0.20$              1.10$   

GRAND TOTAL 14.92 0.96 168.44$         10.87$           153.38$          10.18$           11.29$  

Summary by Service

Summary by Geography / City

Summary by Mode

Informational Report 3, Exhibit 1

55



 
 

 

Informational Report 4 

 
Board of Directors Memo                                  April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Monsignor King Outreach Center to Our Daily Bread Shuttle Update 
 
Background 
In August 2019, the City of Denton requested the DCTA Board consider including $77,000 in the Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2020 Budget to provide service between two critical social service providers  in Denton County.   This 
request was presented to the Board on August 8, 2019 and approved on September 26, 2019 as part of the 
FY2020 Budget. A copy of the City of Denton’s request is provided as Exhibit 1. 
 
The request was to provide service between Monsignor King Outreach Center (MKOC) and Our Daily Bread 
(ODB) Monday through Saturday in the morning only.   The MKOC is an outreach shelter to care for Denton’s 
homeless population and provides meals (dinner and a light breakfast), beds, linens, showers, and guidance 
to local support agencies.   Our Daily Bread is a community soup kitchen that serves free, nutritious lunch 
Monday through Saturday to the hungry and homeless population in Denton County and surrounding areas.   
 
Service was implemented on Monday, January 13, 2020 as Route MK1010, with two (2) shuttles departing 
MKOC at 8:50 am and 9:15 am.  The route and schedule are published, and service is open to the general 
public.  To keep costs low, service is provided Monday through Friday using existing operators coming off of 
peak service, and Saturday service is provided using Xtra Board operators.   
 
To allow for quick deployment, the service was implemented as a fare free promotion.  At its January 23, 
2020 Meeting,  the  Board  directed  staff  to  continue  the  fare  free  promotion  through May  30,  2020  and 
requested a service update in April.   
 
In response to COVID‐19, the City of Denton requested assistance in transporting individuals from MKOC to 
a temporary off‐site housing facility and suspended the MKOC to ODB shuttle until further notice.  The table 
below provides a ridership summary from January 15 – March 24.   More detailed ridership information is 
provided in Exhibit 3.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Trips 
Average  
Trips/Day 

Passengers Per  
Revenue  Hour 

January 2020  479  34.21  93.37 

February 2020  796  33.17  90.45 

March 2020  652  32.60  85.79 

Total  1927  33.22  89.50 

56



Informational Report 4 

Identified Need 
The Board of Directors requested staff provide a service update at their April 2020 meeting.  

Financial Impact 
Operating funds associated with this service, in the amount of $77,000, are included in the FY 2020 Budget.   

Recommendation 
For information only.  No action required. 

Exhibits  
Exhibit 1 ‐ Service Request Letter from the City of Denton 
Exhibit 2 ‐ MK101 Route and Schedule 
Exhibit 3 ‐ MK101 Ridership Report 

Submitted by:  ____________________________ 
Michelle Bloomer, VP of Operations 

Approval:   ____________________________ 
Raymond Suarez, Chief Executive Officer 

57



Informational Report 4, Exhibit 1

58



1

Kuechler, Sarah

From: Michelle Bloomer <mbloomer@dcta.net>
Sent: Thursday, July 25, 2019 1:36 PM
To: Kuechler, Sarah
Cc: Troy Raley; Shaw, Danielle
Subject: RE: Monsignor King Meeting Follow-up

Hi Sarah: 

We only included Monday – Friday, because we only operate peak service during the week.  We were able to keep the 
cost of the shuttle down as we were going to run the shuttle by using a vehicle that had finished for the morning, and 
have it run the route before returning to the yard.   

Since we don’t provide peak service on Saturdays, we would have to bring in a driver for a minimum of 4 hours to run 
the shuttle.  The annual cost for the Saturday service would be approximately $25,000.   

This would bring the total cost of service (Monday – Saturday) to $77,000.  Let me know if you have any additional 
questions.   

Thank you, 

Michelle  

From: Kuechler, Sarah <Sarah.Kuechler@cityofdenton.com>  
Sent: Thursday, July 25, 2019 11:39 AM 
To: Michelle Bloomer <mbloomer@dcta.net>; Shaw, Danielle <Danielle.Shaw@cityofdenton.com> 
Cc: Troy Raley <traley@dcta.net> 
Subject: RE: Monsignor King Meeting Follow‐up 

One more follow‐up question, why only Monday‐Friday? Is it possible to extend to Saturdays? 

Sarah 

From: Michelle Bloomer <mbloomer@dcta.net>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 23, 2019 4:45 PM 
To: Kuechler, Sarah <Sarah.Kuechler@cityofdenton.com>; Shaw, Danielle <Danielle.Shaw@cityofdenton.com> 
Cc: Troy Raley <traley@dcta.net> 
Subject: RE: Monsignor King Meeting Follow‐up 

Hi Sarah:  

We would need to take it to the DCTA Board to add the cost to the budget.  Thank you, 

Michelle 

From: Kuechler, Sarah <Sarah.Kuechler@cityofdenton.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 23, 2019 12:56 PM 
To: Michelle Bloomer <mbloomer@dcta.net>; Shaw, Danielle <Danielle.Shaw@cityofdenton.com> 

Informational Report 4, Exhibit 1

59



2

Cc: Troy Raley <traley@dcta.net> 
Subject: RE: Monsignor King Meeting Follow‐up 
 
Thanks Michelle and Troy. To clarify, would the City be responsible for paying the $53k/year for this service or would this 
be included as a service as a DCTA member? 
 
Thanks, 
Sarah 
 

From: Michelle Bloomer <mbloomer@dcta.net>  
Sent: Monday, July 22, 2019 5:30 PM 
To: Kuechler, Sarah <Sarah.Kuechler@cityofdenton.com>; Shaw, Danielle <Danielle.Shaw@cityofdenton.com> 
Cc: Troy Raley <traley@dcta.net> 
Subject: RE: Monsignor King Meeting Follow‐up 
 
Hi Sarah & Dani:  
 
Per our discussion at the July 1 meeting, Troy has prepared a proposed schedule and cost estimate to run two (2) 
shuttles from Monsignor King Outreach Center (MKOC) to Our Daily Bread:  
 
The service would run Monday through Friday, with the first shuttle leaving MKOC at 8:50 am. The next shuttle would 
leave MKOC at 9:15 am.  The cost of this service is estimated at $53,000 a year.  If we were to dedicate a vehicle (vs. 
using a vehicle coming out of peak service) the cost would almost double.   
 

Monsignor King 
Outreach Center 

WB Morse @ 
Woodrow Lane 

WB Hickory @ 
City Hall E 

Our Daily Bread 
(WB Oak @ Cedar) 

8:50 am  8:52 am  8:58 am  9:01 am 

9:15 am  9:17 am  9:23 am  9:26 am 

 
 

Informational Report 4, Exhibit 1

60



3

 
Please let me know if you have any questions or would like to discuss in more detail.  Thank you, 
 
Michelle 
 
 

From: Michelle Bloomer  
Sent: Monday, July 1, 2019 5:33 PM 
To: Kuechler, Sarah <Sarah.Kuechler@cityofdenton.com>; Danielle Shaw (Danielle.Shaw@cityofdenton.com) 
<Danielle.Shaw@cityofdenton.com> 
Cc: Troy Raley <traley@dcta.net> 
Subject: Monsignor King Meeting Follow‐up 
 
Sarah & Dani:  
 
Thank you for coordinating this afternoon’s meeting with Monsignor King Outreach Center and United Way.  I think we 
had a very positive discussion and are headed in the direction of a solution.  Based on the discussion, DCTA will move 
forward with the following:  
 
Shuttle Service to/from MKOC, Our Daily Bread (ODB), and the Downtown Denton Transit Center (DDTC) 
Mornings only 
Utilize vehicles coming off of peak service 
Provide 2‐3 trips 
Implement January 2020 
 
The above is proposed under the assumption that MKOC would stay open one (1) hour later (9:00 am), and ODB would 
open one (1) hour earlier (9:00 am).  Troy will work on putting together a cost estimate when he gets back from 

Informational Report 4, Exhibit 1

61



4

vacation.  We will share this with you no later than Friday, July 19.  Please let me know if I have left anything off and/or 
you have any questions.   
 
Thank you, 
 
Michelle 
 
Michelle Bloomer 
Vice President, Operations 
 

 
Denton County Transportation Authority 
640 Texas 121 Business, Lewisville, Tx 75057 
Office: (972) 966‐5115 
Cell: (972) 900‐1663 
Email: mbloomer@dcta.net 
 

Informational Report 4, Exhibit 1

62



Informational Report 4, Exhibit 2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



Informational Report 4, Exhibit 3

8:50 AM 9:15 AM Total Service 
Days

Service 
Hours

Revenue 
Hours

8:50 AM 9:15 AM Total 8:50 AM 9:15 AM Total 8:50 AM 9:15 AM Total

January 2020 474 5 479 14 7.51 5.13 33.86 0.36 34.21 126.06 1.33 63.78 184.44 1.95 93.37

February 2020 773 23 796 24 13.2 8.8 32.21 0.96 33.17 117.12 3.48 60.30 175.68 5.23 90.45

March 2020 626 26 652 20 11.36 7.6 31.30 1.30 32.60 110.21 4.58 57.39 164.74 6.84 85.79

Total 1873 54 1927 58 32.07 21.53 32.29 0.93 33.22 116.77 3.37 60.09 173.91 5.01 89.50

Service Revenue
January 3.76 2.57 7.52 5.14
February 6.6 4.4 13.2 8.8
March 5.68 3.8 11.36 7.6

16.04 10.77 32.08 21.54

MONSIGNOR KING OUTREACH CENTER TO OUR DAILY BREAD 
(Service Overview for January - March 2020)

Ridership Service Average Trips Per Day Passengers Per Service Hour Passengers Per Revenue Hour

64



Informational Report 5 

Board of Directors Memo  April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan Overview 

Background 
Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP‐21) granted the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
the  authority  to  establish  and  enforce  a  comprehensive  framework  to  oversee  the  safety  of  public 
transportation throughout the United States.  MAP‐21 expanded the regulatory authority of FTA to oversee 
safety, providing an opportunity to assist transit agencies in moving towards a more holistic, performance‐
based approach to Safety Management Systems (SMS)1.   This authority was continued through the Fixing 
America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act).  

In compliance with MAP‐21 and the FAST Act, FTA adopted the principles and methods of SMS as the basis 
for  enhancing  public  transportation  safety,  and  followed  SMS  principles  in  the  development  of  rules, 
regulations,  policies,  guidance,  best  practices,  and  technical  assistance.    The  Final  Rule,  published  in  the 
Federal Register  in July 2018, requires States and operators of public transportation systems that receive 
federal financial assistance to develop Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans based on the SMS approach. 
A copy of the Federal Register Notice is provided as Exhibit 1.  

 Safety Management System (SMS) refers to a formal, top‐down, organization‐wide approach to managing 
safety risk and assuring  the effectiveness of a  transit agency’s safety risk mitigation,  including systematic 
procedures, practices, and policies for managing risks and hazards.  Each transit agency is required to develop 
a Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) that incorporates SMS principles and methods that are 
tailored to the size, complexity, and scope of the system and the environment it operates in, and consists of 
the following items:  

 Documents the process and activities related to SMS implementation;

 Includes performance targets based on the safety performance measures established under the
National Public Transportation Safety Plan;

 Addresses all applicable  requirements and standards as  set  forth  in FTA’s Public Transportation
Safety Program and the National Public Transportation Safety Plan;

 Establishes a process and timeline for conducting an annual review and update of the PTASP;

To assist transit agencies in developing their PTASP, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 
issued a formal call for participation in a State sponsored PTASP development process in January 2019.  The 
Denton County Transportation Authority (DCTA) opted to participate in the State sponsored process in 
March 2019.  Since then, staff has been an active participant in the development of a plan through 
meetings and sharing of existing safety related documents.  Staff is currently reviewing a draft PTASP 
provided in March by Alliance Transportation Group.   

This item is being presented to the Board of Directors as an information item.  Staff anticipates presenting 
the draft PTASP for Board review and comment at their May meeting and requesting action/approval in 
June.  The deadline for approval/adoption of the PTASP is July 20, 2020.   

65



Informational Report 5 

Identified Need 
Federal requirement (49 C.F.R. Part 673) for any State, local governmental authority, or any other 
operator of a public transportation system that receives Federal financial assistance under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 
53.  This applies  to  DCTA  as  the agency  receives  an  annual  apportionment  of  funds  from  the  FTA  
Urbanized  Area  Formula Program (49 U.S.C 5307).  

Financial Impact 
No cost to the agency for consultant assistance in developing the PTASP.    

Recommendation 
No action required at this time.   Item is provided as an information item. It will be presented at the May 
Board of Directors Meeting for discussion and again in June for Board action/approval.    

Exhibits  
Exhibit 1 – Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan Final Rule 

Submitted by:  ____________________________ 

Michelle Bloomer, VP of Operations 

Approval:   ____________________________ 
Raymond Suarez, Chief Executive Officer 

66



34418 Federal Register/Vol. 83, No. 139/Thursday, July 19, 2018/Rules and Regulations 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Federal Transit Administration 

49 CFR Part 673 

(Docket No. FTA-2015-0021] 

RIN 2132-AB23 

Public Transportation Agency Safety 
Plan 

AGENCY: Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA). DOT. 
ACTION: Final rule. 

SUMMARY: The Federal Transit 
Administration (FT A) is publishing a 
final rule for Public Transportation 
Agency Safety Plans as authorized by 
the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 
21st Century Act (MAP-21). This final 
rule requires States and certain 
operators of public transportation 
systems that receive Federal financial 
assistance under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 to 
develop Public Transportation Agency 
Safety Plans based on the Safety 
Management System approach. 
Operators of public transportation 
systems will be required to implement 
the safety plans. The development and 
implementation of safety plans will help 
ensure that public transportation 
systems are safe nationwide. 
DATES: The effective date of this rule is 
July 19, 2019. 

FT A's Office of Transit Safety and 
Oversight (TSO) will host a series of 
webinars to discuss the requirements of 
the Public Transportation Agency Safety 
Plan (PT ASP) final rule. The first two 
webinars will be held at 2 p.m. on 
Wednesday, July 25, 2018 and Tuesday, 
July 31, 2018. 
ADDRESSES: To register for webinars and 
for information about future webinars, 
please visit https://www.transit.dot.gov/ 
about/events. 

FTA is committed to providing equal 
access for all webinar participants. If 
you need alternative formats, options, or 
services, contact FT A-Knowledge@ 
dot.gov at least three business days prior 
to the event. If you have any questions, 
please email FTA-Knowledge@dot.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
general information, contact PT ASP_ 
QA@dot.gov. For program matters, 
contact Adrianne Malasky, Office of 
Transit Safety and Oversight, (202) 366-
1783 or Adrianne.Malasky@dot.gov. For 
legal matters, contact Michael Culotta, 
Office of Chief Counsel, (212) 668-2170 
or Michael.Culotta@dot.gov. Office 
hours are from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday, except Federal 
holidays. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Table of Contents 

I. Executive Summary 
A. Purpose of Regulatory Action
B. Legal Authority
C. Summary of Major Provisions
1. Summary of the Final Rule
2. Summary of Public Comments
3. Summary of the Major Changes to the

Rule
D. Costs and Benefits

II. Background
Ill. Notice of Proposed Rulemaking and

Response to Relevant Comments 
A. Scope and Applicability of Public

Transportation Agency Safety Plans
1. Section 5310, Section 5311, Small

Section 5307, and Tribal Operators 
2. Commuter Rail and Passenger Ferry 

Service 
3. Contracted Service
B. Definitions
1. Accident
2. Incident
3. Occurrence 
4. Serious Injury 
5. Accountable Executive
6. Chief Safety Officer 
7. Operator of a Public Transportation 

System 
B. Rail Transit Agency
9. Performance Target, Safety Performance

Target, and Performance Criteria 
10. Small Public Transportation Provider 
11. Requests for New Definitions 
C. General Requirements
1. Role of the Accountable Executive
2. Approval of a Public Transportation 

Agency Safety Plan 
3. Documentation of SMS Processes and

Activities 
4. Safety Performance Targets 
5. Future Requirements in FT A's Public 

Transportation Safety Program and 
National Public Transportation Safety 
Plan 

6. Process and Timeline for Annual Review 
and Update 

7. Emergency Preparedness and Response 
Plans

8. Multiple Modes of Transit Service
D. State and Transit Agency Roles
1. Large Transit Agencies
2. Small Public Transportation Providers,

Section 5311 Providers, and Section 
5310 Providers

2.1. States Must Draft and Certify Safety 
Plans on Behalf of Small Public 
Transportation Providers 

2.1.1. Option for State-Wide or Agency
Specific Safety Plans 

2.1.2. Drafting and Certifying Safety Plans 
for Small Section 5307 Providers 

2.2. Other Comments 
3. Small Transit Providers May Draft and

Certify Their Own Safety Plans
4. Direct and Designated Recipients

Drafting and Certifying Safety Plans on
Behalf of Smaller Transit Providers

E. Existing System Safety Program Plan Is
Effective for One Year

1. General Comments
2. One-Year Compliance Timeframe 
F. Certification of Safety Plans
G. SSOA Review and Approval of PTASPs

for Rail Transit Systems

H. Safety Performance Targets and
Performance-Based Planning

I. Safety Management Systems
1. Safety Management Policy: General

Comments 
1.1. Safety Management Policy Statement 
1.2. Employee Reporting Program 
1.3. Safety Accountabilities and 

Responsibilities 
2. Safety Risk Management 
2.1. Safety Risk Management: General 

Comments 
2.2. Safety Hazard Identification and 

Analysis 
3. Safety Assurance
3.1. Safety Assurance: Safety Performance

Monitoring and Measurement 
3.2. Safety Assurance: Management of

Change 
3.3. Safety Assurance: Continuous 

Improvement 
4. Safety Promotion
5. Scalability of SMS
6. SMS and Safety Culture
J. Safety Plan Documentation and

Recordkeeping 
1. Safety Plan Documentation 
2. Safety Plan Records 
3. Other Comments on Documentation and

Recordkeeping
4. Database Systems
5. Staffing and Resources as a Result of

Documentation and Recordkeeping
K. Funding
L. Staffing
M. Enforcement and Oversight 
1. Triennial Reviews and State 

Management Reviews 
2. State Oversight
3. Other Comments
N. NTD Reporting
0. Security
P. SSPP-PTASP Crosswalk
Q. Safety Performance Measures 
R. Technical Assistance and Guidance
S. Coordination With Other Entities
T. Nexus Between the PTASP Rule and

Other FT A Requirements
U. Americans With Disabilities Act Issues
V. Other Comments on the Rule
W. Regulatory Impact Analyses
1. Costs
2. Benefits
3. Regulatory Flexibility Act 
X. Tribal Issues
1. Applicability of the Rule to Tribes
2. The State's Role in Tribal Safety Plans
3. Financial Impact on Tribes
4. Tribal Consultation

IV. Section-by-Section Analysis 
V. Regulatory Analyses and Notices 

I. Executive Summary

A. Purpose of Regulatory Action

The public transportation industry
remains among the safest surface 
transportation modes in terms of total 
reported safety events, fatalities, and 
injuries.1 Nonetheless, given public

1 See United States Department of Transportation, 
Bureau of Transportation Statistics, "Table 2-1: 
Transportation Fatalities by Mode 1960-2016," at 
https:!lwww.bts.gov/archive/publications/national_ 
tronsportotion_stalistics!table_02 _01; and "Table 

Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

67



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

68



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

69



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

70



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

71



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

72



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

73



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

74



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

75



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

76



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

77



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

78



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

79



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

80



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

81



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

82



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

83



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

84



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

85



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

86



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

87



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

88



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

89



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

90



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

91



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

92



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

93



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

94



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

95



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

96



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

97



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

98



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

99



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

100



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

101



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

102



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

103



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

104



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

105



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

106



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

107



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

108



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

109



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

110



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

111



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

112



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

113



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

114



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

115



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

116



Informational Report 5, Exhibit 1

117



Regular Item 2 

Board of Directors Memo   April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Suspension of Service 

Background 

Due to COVID-19, and the associated stay-at-home orders currently in place, ridership has declined system-
wide.  Based on recommendations contained in the Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA), Denton 
Connect Routes 5 and 6, and Denton Connect Routes 7 & 8 were designed to overlap in high traffic areas to 
increase frequency in these corridors.  As a result, there are large portions of Route 5 that are also served by 
Route 6, and the same for Routes 7 and 8.   

In reviewing the coverage of each route, as well as ridership, staff anticipates suspending Denton Connect 
Route 5 and Denton Connect Route 8 effective Sunday, May 10.  This suspension would remain in effect until 
further notice.   

Identified Need 
Ridership does not support the current level of service.  

Financial Impact 
Suspension in service would result in cost savings. 

Recommendation 
Item provided as a discussion item. No action required.  

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1 – Denton Connect Route 5 Map and Schedule 
Exhibit 2 – Denton Connect Route 6 Map and Schedule 
Exhibit 3 – Denton Connect Route 7 Map and Schedule 
Exhibit 4 – Denton Connect Route 8 Map and Schedule 

Submitted by:  ____________________________ 
Michelle Bloomer, VP of Operations 

Approval: ____________________________ 
Raymond Suarez, Chief Executive Officer 

118



LAKEWOOD
VILLAGE

CARROLLTON

HASLET

AUBREY

COPPELL

JUSTIN

NEW FAIRVIEW

ROANOKE

SOUTHLAKE

PILOT POINT

DENTON

GRAPEVINE

LEWISVILLE

CORINTH

HIGHLAND
VILLAGE

KRUGERVILLE

KRUM

LAKE DALLAS

OAK POINT

SANGER

ARGYLE

DALLAS

FORT WORTH

CELINA

FRISCO

PLANO

THE COLONY

LITTLE
ELM

DENTON�COUNTY

DALLAS�COUNTY

DENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTYDENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTY

D
E

N
TO

N
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

W
IS

E
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

D
E

N
T

O
N

�C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
O

L
LI

N
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

COOKE�COUNTY
DENTON�COUNTY

Lewisville Lake

Ray Roberts Lake

Grapevine Lake

North Carrollton/Frankford
(DART Station)

Downtown Carrollton
(DART Station)

HVCS, HVCOD, NC-N, NC-S

Highland Village/
Lewisville Lake Station

22

Old Town
Station

21, 22

Hebron
Station

DART

Trinity Mills
Station

1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 8, NC-N

Downtown Denton 
Transit Center (DDTC)

Fox Ave

Hedgerow Ln

N Sum
m

it Ave

W Main St

Lake Park Rd

Oakridge Blvd

FM 407

S 
M

ill
 S

t

E Purnell St

W Jones St

Bellaire Blvd

 S
 O

ld
 O

rc
ha

rd
 L

n

He
bro

n P
kw

y

E Main St

Va
lle

y 
Pk

w
y

Main St

Main St

N M
ill St

Ga
rd

en
 R

id
ge

 B
lv

d

College Pkwy

Valley Ridge Blvd

College St

Church St

Co
w

an
 A

ve

Ke
al

y 
Av

e

M
cG

ee
 L

n

Ki
rk

pa
tri

ck
 L

n

W Round Grove Rd

E Round Grove Rd

E Corpo
ra

te
 D

r

Vista Ridge Mall Dr

Bennett Ln

Ch
in

n 
Ch

ap
el

 R
d

Justin Rd Justin Rd

M
arketplace Ln

Long Prairie Rd

Harlington Dr Brazos Blvd

Ga
rde

n Ridge Blvd

Vi
lla

ge
 P

kw
y

Br
iar

hi
ll B

lvd

Highland Shores Blvd

H
ig

hl
an

d 
Vi

lla
ge

 R
d

Highland Village Rd

W University Dr

 N
 B

on
ni

e 
Br

ae
 S

t

E Hickory StW Hickory St

E McKinney St

E McKinney St

E Sycamore St

Oak St

Alliance Blvd

Eagle Pkwy

Allia
nce 

Gate
way 

Fw
y

Keller Haslet Rd

Westport Pkwy

Ol
d 

Bl
ue

 M
ou

nd
 R

d

He
rit

ag
e 

Pk
wy

Dallas Dr

Bell
 A

ve

Ex
po

si
tio

n 
St

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Av
e

Morse St

Br
in

ke
r R

d

Colorado Blvd

Lil
lia

n 
M

ille
r P

kw
y

Med
pa

rk 
Dr

Sta te School Rd

Robinson Rd

Po
st 

Oa
k D

r

Teasley Ln

Teasley Ln

Shady Shores Rd

Co
rin

th
 S

t

Walton Dr

Corinth Pkwy

W Shady Shores Rd

S 
Sh

ad
y 

Sh
or

es
 R

d

Ga
rz

a 
Rd

Main St

M
or

ris
s 

Rd

Waketon Rd

Cross Timbers Rd

Timber Creek Rd

W Corporate Dr

Ed
m

on
ds

 L
n

Valley View Dr

M
acArthur Blvd

Oa
kb

en
d 

Dr

Uecke r Dr

De
nt

on
 T

ap
 R

d

Sa
m

 R
ay

bu
rn

 To
llw

ay

Stemmons Fwy

W Hebron Pkwy

Old Denton Rd

Rosemeade Pkwy

Di
ck

er
so

n 
Pk

w
y

Pr
es

ide
nt

 G
eo

rg
e 

Bu
sh

 Tp
k

President George Bush Tpk

Whitlock Ln

Broadw
ay St

Keller Springs Rd

Lu
na

 R
d

W Belt Line Rd

E Belt Line Rd

N 
Jo

se
y 

Ln

M
cC

oy
 R

d

Ke
lly

 B
lv

d

Ke
lly

 B
lv

d

Frankford Rd

M
ar

sh
 L

n

N 
Jo

se
y 

Ln

Keller Springs Rd

M
id

w
ay

 R
d

Da
lla

s 
No

rth
 T

ol
lw

ay

Da
lla

s 
No

rth
 T

ol
lw

ay

Dalla
s N

ort
h To

llw
ay

Da
lla

s 
Pk

w
y

Plano Pkwy

Parker Rd

Pl
an

o 
Pk

w
y

Sam Rayburn Tollway

N Josey Ln

M
ain St

Pa
ig

e 
RdS Colony Blvd

N Colony Blvd

Old Alton Rd

Hi
llt

op
 R

d

John W. Carpenter Fwy

John W. Carpenter Fwy

W Byron Nelson Blvd

Avondale Haslet Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

No
rth

 F
w

y

Panther Creek Pkwy

Cotton Gin Rd

Te
el

 P
kw

y

Lebanon Rd

Main St

W Lebanon Rd

Le
ga

cy
 D

r

Stonebrook Pkwy

Eldorado Pkwy

S 
M

ai
n 

St

E 
Sh

er
m

an
 D

r

W Sherman Dr

Spring Hill Rd

E C
ha

pm
an

 Dr

W Chapman Dr

N 5th St

Ho
pk

in
s 

Rd

FM
 15

6

Ganzer Rd W

Milam Rd E

Fi
rs

t S
t McCart St

W University Dr

Spring Side Rd

W
es

tc
ou

rt 
Rd

Un
de

rw
oo

d 
Rd

Fo
rt W

ort
h D

r

Country 
Club Rd

Co
un

try
 C

lu
b 

Rd

Te
as

le
y 

Ln

Hobson Ln

E University Dr

N 
Lo

cu
st

 S
t

Ol
d 

No
rth

 R
d

N Elm St

Meadows Oak Dr

Parkridge Dr

Spencer Rd

W Heb
ro

n 
Pk

w
y

Unicorn Lak e Blvd

Wind River Ln

Morse St

S 
Tr

in
ity

 R
d

Grissom Rd

Mills Rd

N 
M

ay
hi

ll 
Rd

S 
M

ay
hi

ll 
Rd

W Windsor Dr

Stuart Rd

Mingo Rd

Be
ll 

Av
e

Ri
dg

ev
ie

w
 D

r

Lakeway Dr

Lakepointe Dr

W
aters  Ridge Dr

Lakeside Cir

S Railroad St

Vintage Blvd

N 
Ru

dd
el

l S
t

N 
Ol

d 
Or

ch
ar

d 
Ln

Pr
es

i d
en

t G
eo

rg
e 

Bu
sh

 T
pk

Se
llm

ey
er

 L
n

E Windsor Dr

Hercules Ln

N 
Lo

cu
st

 S
t

E 
Sh

er
m

an
 D

r

Coronado Dr

Cobblestone Row

Administration Dr

Shady Oaks D
r

Chateau Ct

Peach St

Woodland St

Chapel Dr

Texas St

Lo
cu

st
 S

t
El

m
 S

t

380

380

77

377

377

377

377

377

377

377

77

380

380

35E

35E

35E

35W

35W

35

35

288

121

121
114

114

114

170

121

121

121

26

288

Vista Ridge
Mall

Addison
Airport

DCTA
Administrative
Office

Walmart

Lewisville
High School

Medical Center
of Lewisville

Public
Library

Senior
Citizen
Center

Recreation
Center

PediPlaceFlower Mound
Performing
Arts Center

Walmart
Walmart

Neighborhood
Market

Zone
Action

Park
Kroger

Fort Worth
Alliance
Airport

TCC Hadley CEATL
Alliance Corporate
Training Center

Alliance Opportunity
Center

Galderma
Laboratories LP

Denton
Enterprise

Airport

Medical City Denton

Integrity Transitional
Hospital

Mayhill Hospital

North Central
Texas College

City
Hall
EastCourthouse

Square

Emily Fowler
Library

Mingo Senior Center

Camp
Copass

The Shops of
Highland Village

City
Hall

North
Library

UNT Discovery
Park

Texas
Woman’s

University

Big Sandy
Park

Lake
Park

Lake Environmental
Learning Area

Central
Park

Indian Creek
Golf Club

Memorial
Park

Rustic
Timbers

Park

Clear Creek
Natural Heritage

Center

Sycamore
Bend Park

Fred Moore
Park

Evers
Park

TWU
Golf

Course

North Lakes
Park

Oakmont
Country

Club

Corinth
Community

Park

Willow
Grove
Park

Copperas
Branch
Park

Oakland
Park

Hickory
Creek
Park

Pilot
Knoll
Park

Westlake
Park

Briercliff
Park

0 1 2 3 4 5

Miles

0 1 2 3

Miles

To Fort Worth
(See inset for 63/64)

To Carrollton
& Dallas

1 2

3

6

4

5

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

1,3,6,7,8

1,6,7,8

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

Non-Stop Service

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

HospitalPoint of Interest

A-train StationTimepoint

Hospital

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Timepoint HVCOD Zone

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

Lyft Zone

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

1 1

11

1

1

1

1

Timepoint1
A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

Hospital

Point of Interest

1,2,3

Legend

C
O

N
N

E
C

T

Route 5
New Service Changes & Modifications
Effective Monday, March 23, 2020.

DCTA is operating a modified schedule in response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 
health emergency. See back for the modified schedule.

Visit RideDCTA.net for more information.

Denton Route 5-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   1Denton Route 5-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   1 3/23/2020   4:05:02 PM3/23/2020   4:05:02 PM

Regular Item 2, Exhibit 1

119



Route 5 Schedule: Monday-Saturday / Lunes-Sábado

Outbound to Hercules  /  Salida hacia Hercules

A
M

PM

1

DDTC
(Departs)

2

Exposition
at

Hickory

3

Bell
at

Administration

4

Bell 
at

Woodland

ID: 770540 ID: 770501 ID: 770057 ID: 770061 ID: 770079

Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

7:29 
8:09 
8:49 
9:29 
10:09 
10:49 
11:29 
12:09 
12:49 
1:24 
2:09 
2:49 
3:16 
4:09 
4:49 
5:19 
6:09 

7:31 
8:11 
8:51 
9:31 
10:11 
10:51 
11:31 
12:11 
12:51 
1:26 
2:11 
2:51 
3:18 
4:11 
4:51 
5:21 
6:11 

7:36 
8:16 
8:56 
9:36 
10:16 
10:56 
11:36 
12:16 
12:56 
1:31 
2:16 
2:56 
3:23 
4:16 
4:56 
5:26 
6:16 

7:38 
8:18 
8:58 
9:38 
10:18 
10:58 
11:38 
12:18 
12:58 
1:33 
2:18 
2:58 
3:25 
4:18 
4:58 
5:28 
6:18 

7:45 
8:25 
9:05 
9:45 
10:25 
11:05 
11:45 
12:25 
1:05 
1:40 
2:25 
3:05 
3:32 
4:25 
5:05 
5:35 
6:25 

4

Bell
at

Woodland

3

Bell
at

Administration

6

Bell
at

Mingo

ID: 770089 ID: 770057 ID: 770031

5

Hercules
at

Stuart

A
M

PM

7:50 
8:30 
9:10 
9:50 
10:30 
11:10 
11:50 
12:30 
1:10 
1:45 
2:30 
3:10 
3:37 
4:30 
5:10 
5:40 
6:30 

7:52 
8:32 
9:12 
9:52 
10:32 
11:12 
11:52 
12:32 
1:12 
1:47 
2:32 
3:12 
3:39 
4:32 
5:12 
5:42 
6:32 

7:54 
8:34 
9:14 
9:54 
10:34 
11:14 
11:54 
12:34 
1:14 
1:49 
2:34 
3:14 
3:41 
4:34 
5:14 
5:44 
6:34 

This trip is Monday-Friday ONLY; Not operated on Saturday.

This trip is Monday-Friday ONLY; Not operated on Saturday.

Denton Route 5-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   2Denton Route 5-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   2 3/23/2020   4:05:02 PM3/23/2020   4:05:02 PM

Regular Item 2, Exhibit 1

120



LAKEWOOD
VILLAGE

CARROLLTON

HASLET

AUBREY

COPPELL

JUSTIN

NEW FAIRVIEW

ROANOKE

SOUTHLAKE

PILOT POINT

GRAPEVINE

LEWISVILLE

CORINTH

HIGHLAND
VILLAGE

KRUGERVILLE

KRUM

LAKE DALLAS

OAK POINT

SANGER

ARGYLE

DALLAS

FORT WORTH

CELINA

FRISCO

PLANO

THE COLONY

LITTLE
ELM

DENTON

DENTON�COUNTY

DALLAS�COUNTY

DENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTYDENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTY

D
E

N
T

O
N

�C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
IS

E
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

D
E

N
T

O
N

�C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
O

L
L

IN
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

COOKE�COUNTY
DENTON�COUNTY

Lewisville Lake

Ray Roberts Lake

Grapevine Lake

North Carrollton/Frankford
(DART Station)

Downtown Carrollton
(DART Station)

HVCS, HVCOD, NC-N, NC-S

Highland Village/
Lewisville Lake Station

22

Old Town
Station

21, 22

Hebron
Station

DART

Trinity Mills
Station

1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, NC-N

Downtown Denton 
Transit Center (DDTC)

Fox Ave

Hedgerow Ln

N
Sum

m
it Ave

W Main St

Lake Park Rd

Oakridge Blvd

FM 407

S
M

ill
St

E Purnell St

W Jones St

Bellaire Blvd

S
O

ld
O

rc
ha

rd
Ln

He
br

on
Pk

wy

E Main St

Va
lle

y
Pk

w
y

Main
St

Main St

N
M

ill St

G
ar

de
n

R
id

ge
B

lv
d

College Pkwy

Valley Ridge Blvd

College St

Church St

C
ow

an
Av

e

Ke
al

y
Av

e

M
cG

ee
Ln

Ki
rk

pa
tr

ic
k

Ln

W Round Grove Rd

E Round Grove Rd

E Corp
or

at
e

Dr

Vista Ridge Mall Dr

Bennett Ln

Ch
in

n
Ch

ap
el

R
d

Justin Rd Justin Rd

M
arketplace

Ln

Long
Prairie

Rd

Harlington Dr Brazos Blvd

Ga
rde

n Ridge Blvd

Vi
lla

ge
Pk

w
y

Br
ia

rh
ill

Bl
vd

Highland
Shores

Blvd

H
ig

hl
an

d
Vi

lla
ge

R
d

Highland Village Rd

W University Dr

 N
 B

on
ni

e 
B

ra
e 

St

E Hickory St

E McKinney St

E McKinney St

E Sycamore St

Alliance Blvd

Eagle Pkwy

Allia
nce

Gate
way

Fw
y

Keller Haslet Rd

Westport Pkwy

Ol
d

Bl
ue

M
ou

nd
Rd

He
rit

ag
e

Pk
w

y

Dallas Dr

Ex
po

si
tio

n 
St

R
ai

lro
ad

 A
ve

Morse St

B
rin

ke
r

R
d

Colorado
B

lvd

Li
llia

n
M

ille
r P

kw
y

Med
pa

rk
Dr

S
ta te School Rd

Robinson Rd

Po
st

Oa
k Dr

Teasley
Ln

Teasley Ln

Shady Shores Rd

C
or

in
th

St

Walton Dr

Corinth Pkwy

W Shady Shores Rd

S
Sh

ad
y

Sh
or

es
R

d

G
ar

za
R

d

Main St

M
or

ris
s

R
d

Waketon Rd

Cross Timbers Rd

Timber Creek Rd

W Corporate Dr

Ed
m

on
ds

Ln

Valley View Dr

M
acArthur Blvd

O
ak

be
nd

D
r

Uecke r Dr

D
en

to
n

Ta
p

R
d

Sa
m

Ra
yb

ur
n

To
llw

ay

Stemmons Fwy

W Hebron Pkwy

Old
Denton

Rd

Rosemeade Pkwy

D
ic

ke
rs

on
Pk

w
y

Pr
es

id
en

t G
eo

rg
e

Bu
sh

Tp
k

President George Bush Tpk

Whitlock Ln

Broadw
ay

St

Keller Springs Rd

Lu
na

Rd

W Belt Line Rd

E Belt Line Rd

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

M
cC

oy
R

d

Ke
lly

B
lv

d

Ke
lly

B
lv

d

Frankford Rd

M
ar

sh
Ln

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

Keller Springs Rd

M
id

w
ay

R
d

D
al

la
s

N
or

th
To

llw
ay

D
al

la
s

N
or

th
To

llw
ay

Dalla
s Nort

h Tol
lway

D
al

la
s

Pk
w

y

Plano Pkwy

Parker Rd

Pl
an

o
Pk

w
y

Sam Rayburn Tollway

N
Josey

Ln

M
ain

St

Pa
ig

e
R

dS Colony Blvd

N Colony Blvd

Old Alton Rd

H
ill

to
p

R
d

John W. Carpenter Fwy

John W. Carpenter Fwy

W Byron Nelson Blvd

Avondale Haslet Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

No
rth

Fw
y

Panther Creek Pkwy

Cotton Gin Rd

Te
el

Pk
w

y

Lebanon Rd

Main St

W Lebanon Rd

Le
ga

cy
D

r

Stonebrook Pkwy

Eldorado Pkwy

S
M

ai
n

St

E
Sh

er
m

an
Dr

W Sherman Dr

Spring Hill Rd

E Ch
ap

man
Dr

W Chapman Dr

N
5th

St

H
op

ki
ns

R
d

FM
15

6

Ganzer Rd W

Milam Rd E

Fi
rs

t S
t McCart St

W University Dr

Spring Side Rd

W
es

tc
ou

rt
R

d

U
nd

er
w

oo
d

R
d

Fo
rt W

ort
h Dr

Coun
try

Club
Rd

C
ou

nt
ry

C
lu

b
R

d

Te
as

le
y

Ln

Hobson Ln

E University Dr

Administration Dr

Hercules Ln

N
 L

oc
us

t S
t

O
ld

N
or

th
R

d

E 
Sh

er
m

an
 D

r

N Elm St

Meadows Oak Dr

Parkridge
D

r

Spencer Rd

W
Heb

ro
n

Pk
w

y

Unicorn
Lak e Blvd

Wind River Ln

Morse St

S
Tr

in
ity

R
d

Grissom Rd

Mills Rd

N
M

ay
hi

ll
R

d

S
M

ay
hi

ll
R

d

W Windsor Dr

St
ua

rt
 R

d

R
id

ge
vi

ew
D

r

Lakeway
D

r

Lakepointe Dr

W
aters

Ridge Dr

Lakeside Cir

S
Railroad

St

Vintage Blvd

N
 R

ud
de

ll 
St

N
O

ld
O

rc
ha

rd
Ln

Pr
es

i d
en

tG
eo

rg
e

Bu
sh

Tp
k

Se
llm

ey
er

Ln

E Windsor Dr

N
 L

oc
us

t S
t

N
 E

lm
 S

t

Fa
llm

ea
do

w
 S

t

Coronado Dr

Cobblestone Row

Ev
er

s 
Pk

w
y

Gardenview St

B
el

l A
ve

Shady Oaks Dr

Bell
 A

ve

Lo
cu

st
 S

t
El

m
 S

t

Jo
yc

e 
LnN

ic
os

ia
 S

t

Chateau Ct

Peach St

Woodland St

Chapel Dr

Texas St

Mingo Rd

Driftwood Trl

380

380

77

377

377

377

377

377

377

377

77

380

380

35E

35E

35E

35W

35W

35

35

288

121

121
114

114

114

170

121

121

121

26

288

Vista Ridge
Mall

Addison
Airport

DCTA
Administrative
Office

Walmart

Lewisville
High School

Medical Center
of Lewisville

Public
Library

Senior
Citizen
Center

Recreation
Center

PediPlaceFlower Mound
Performing
Arts Center

Walmart
Walmart

Neighborhood
Market

Zone
Action

Park
Kroger

Fort Worth
Alliance
Airport

TCC Hadley CEATL
Alliance Corporate
Training Center

Alliance Opportunity
Center

Galderma
Laboratories LP

Denton
Enterprise

Airport

Medical City Denton

Integrity Transitional
Hospital

Mayhill Hospital

North Central
Texas College

Camp
Copass

Ryan
High
School

The Shops of
Highland Village

City
Hall

North
Library

Texas
Woman’s

University

City Hall East
Courthouse

Square

Emily Fowler
Library

Mingo Senior Center

Discovery
Park

Big Sandy
Park

Lake
Park

Lake Environmental
Learning Area

Central
Park

Indian Creek
Golf Club

Memorial
Park

Rustic
Timbers

Park

Clear Creek
Natural Heritage

Center

Sycamore
Bend Park

Fred Moore
Park

Evers
Park

North Lakes
Park

Oakmont
Country

Club

Corinth
Community

Park

Willow
Grove
Park

Copperas
Branch
Park

Oakland
Park

Hickory
Creek
Park

Pilot
Knoll
Park

Westlake
Park

Briercliff
Park

TWU
Golf

Course

0 1 2 3 4 5

Miles

0 1 2 3

Miles

To Fort Worth
(See inset for 63/64)

To Carrollton
& Dallas

1
2

3

10

9
4

5
7

8

6

1,5,7,8

5

DP

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5
5

1,3,5,7,8

Monday–Friday & Saturday / Lunes–Viernes y SábadoROUTE
RUTA 6

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

Non-Stop Service

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

HospitalPoint of Interest

A-train StationTimepoint

Hospital

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Bus Stop

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2019 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2019 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Timepoint HV Lyft Zone

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

HV Lyft Zone

Lakeway Zone

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

Airport Zone

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

1 1

11

1

1

1

1

Timepoint1
A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3 A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

Hospital

Point of Interest

Hospital

Point of Interest

1,2,3

Legend

NORTH NORTE

Help us conserve! Please return this schedule to the rack when you are finished, or keep it for future use. DCTA may conduct schedule modifications throughout the year. Visit RideDCTA.net for the latest schedules and maps.

AUGUST 2019

Route 6 Schedule: Monday-Friday  /  Horario de Ruta 6: Lunes-Viernes

Route 6 Schedule: Saturday  /  Horario de Ruta 6: Sábado

3

Bell
at

Administration
3

Bell
at

Administration
4

Bell
at

Woodland
9

University
at

Bell

5:29
5:57
6:25
6:53
7:21
7:49
8:20
8:48
9:18
9:48

10:15
11:04
11:59
12:52

1:51
2:45
3:21
3:35
4:05
4:27
5:04
5:23
5:55
6:16
6:39
7:09
7:27
8:21
9:15

5:31
5:59
6:27
6:55
7:23
7:51
8:22
8:50
9:20
9:50

10:16
11:06
12:01
12:54

1:52
2:47
3:23
3:37
4:07
4:29
5:06
5:25
5:57
6:18
6:41
7:11
7:29
8:23
9:17

5:35
6:03
6:31
6:59
7:27
7:55
8:26
8:54
9:24
9:54

10:20
11:10

12:05
12:58

1:56
2:51
3:27
3:41
4:11
4:33
5:10
5:29
6:01
6:22
6:45
7:15
7:33
8:27
9:21

5:36
6:04
6:32
7:00
7:28
7:56
8:27
8:55
9:25
9:55

10:21
11:11

12:06
12:59

1:57
2:52
3:28
3:42
4:12
4:34
5:11
5:30
6:02
6:23
6:46
7:16
7:34
8:28
9:22

5:43
6:11
6:39
7:07
7:35
8:03
8:34
9:02
9:32

10:02
10:28
11:18
12:13
1:06
2:04
2:59
3:35
3:49
4:19
4:41
5:18
5:37
6:09
6:30
6:53
7:23
7:41
8:35
9:29

8:35
9:27

10:19
11:11

12:03
12:55

1:47
2:39
3:31
4:23
5:15

8:37
9:29

10:21
11:13

12:05
12:57
1:49
2:41
3:33
4:25
5:17

8:42
9:34

10:26
11:18
12:10
1:02
1:54
2:46
3:38
4:30
5:22

8:43
9:35

10:27
11:19
12:11
1:03
1:55
2:47
3:39
4:31
5:23

8:49
9:41

10:33
11:25
12:17
1:09
2:01
2:53
3:45
4:37
5:29

Outbound to Discovery Park  /  Salida a Discovery Park Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

A
M

P
M

5:58
6:26
6:54
7:22
7:50
8:18
8:49
9:14
9:45

10:13
10:42
11:30
12:30

1:24
2:18
3:09
3:41
4:00
4:30
4:55
5:24
5:55
6:15
6:41
7:04
7:34
7:56
8:50
9:44

6:02
6:30
6:58
7:26
7:54
8:22
8:53
9:18
9:49

10:17
10:46
11:34
12:34

1:28
2:22
3:13
3:45
4:04
4:34
4:59
5:28
5:59
6:19
6:45
7:08
7:38
8:00
8:54
9:48

6:04
6:32
7:00
7:28
7:56
8:24
8:55
9:20
9:51

10:19
10:48
11:36
12:36

1:30
2:24
3:15
3:47
4:06
4:36
5:01
5:30
6:01
6:21
6:47
7:10
7:40
8:02
8:56
9:50

6:10
6:38
7:06
7:34
8:02
8:30
9:01
9:26
9:57

10:25
10:54
11:42
12:42
1:36
2:30
3:21
3:53
4:12
4:42
5:07
5:36
6:07
6:27
6:53
7:16
7:46
8:08
9:02
9:56

6:12
6:40
7:08
7:36
8:04
8:32
9:03
9:28
9:59

10:27
10:56
11:44
12:44

1:38
2:32
3:23
3:55
4:14
4:44
5:09
5:38
6:09
6:29
6:55
7:18
7:48
8:10
9:04
9:58

6:13
6:41
7:09
7:37
8:05
8:33
9:04
9:29

10:00
10:28
10:57
11:45
12:45

1:39
2:33
3:24
3:56
4:15
4:45
5:10
5:39
6:10
6:30
6:56
7:19
7:49
8:11
9:05
9:59

8:55
9:47

10:39
11:31
12:23

1:15
2:07
2:59
3:51
4:43
5:35

9:00
9:52

10:44
11:36
12:28

1:20
2:12
3:04
3:56
4:48
5:40

9:03
9:55

10:47
11:39
12:31
1:23
2:15
3:07
3:59
4:51
5:43

9:10
10:02
10:54
11:46
12:38

1:30
2:22
3:14
4:06
4:58
5:50

9:12
10:04
10:56
11:48
12:40

1:32
2:24
3:16
4:08
5:00
5:52

9:13
10:05
10:57
11:49
12:41
1:33
2:25
3:17
4:09
5:01
5:53

A
M

P
M

A
M

A
M

P
M

P
M

1

DDTC
(Departs)

5

Elm
at

Fallmeadow
10

Bell
at

Mingo
8

Cobblestone
at

Locust
2

Exposition
at

Hickory
6

Discovery
Park

ID: 770540 ID: 770501 ID: 770057 ID: 770061 ID: 770070 ID: 148403 ID: 770071 ID: 770075 ID: 770070 ID: 770057 ID: 770031

7

Fallmeadow
at

Gardenview

3

Bell
at

Administration
3

Bell
at

Administration
4

Bell
at

Woodland
9

University
at

Bell

Outbound to Discovery Park  /  Salida a Discovery Park Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

1

DDTC
(Departs)

5

Elm
at

Fallmeadow
10

Bell
at

Mingo
8

Cobblestone
at

Locust
2

Exposition
at

Hickory
6

Discovery
Park

ID: 770540 ID: 770501 ID: 770057 ID: 770061 ID: 770070 ID: 148403 ID: 770071 ID: 770075 ID: 770070 ID: 770057 ID: 770031

7

Fallmeadow
at

Gardenview

AUGUST 2019

C
O

N
N

E
C

T

Route 6
New Service Changes & Modifications
Effective Monday, March 23, 2020.

DCTA is operating a modified schedule in response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 
health emergency. See back for the modified schedule.

Visit RideDCTA.net for more information.

Denton Route 6-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   1Denton Route 6-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   1 3/23/2020   4:03:58 PM3/23/2020   4:03:58 PM

Regular Item 2, Exhibit 2

121



Route 6 Schedule: Monday-Saturday / Lunes-Sábado

Outbound to Discovery Park  /  Hacia Discovery Park

Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

A
M

PM

6

Discovery 
Park

7

Fallmeadow
at

Gardenview

8

Cobblestone
at

Locust

9

University
at

Bell

ID: 148403 ID: 770071 ID: 770075 ID: 770070 ID: 770057 ID: 770031

8:03 
8:55 
9:47 
10:39 
11:31 
12:23 
1:15 
2:07 
2:59 
3:51 
4:43 
5:35 

8:08 
9:00 
9:52 
10:44 
11:36 
12:28 
1:20 
2:12 
3:04 
3:56 
4:48 
5:40 

8:11 
9:03 
9:55 
10:47 
11:39 
12:31 
1:23 
2:15 
3:07 
3:59 
4:51 
5:43 

8:18 
9:10 
10:02 
10:54 
11:46 
12:38 
1:30 
2:22 
3:14 
4:06 
4:58 
5:50 

8:20 
9:12 
10:04 
10:56 
11:48 
12:40 
1:32 
2:24 
3:16 
4:08 
5:00 
5:52 

8:21 
9:13 
10:05 
10:57 
11:49 
12:41 
1:33 
2:25 
3:17 
4:09 
5:01 
5:53 

3

Bell
at

Administration

A
M

PM

1

DDTC
(Departs)

2

Exposition
at

Hickory

3

Bell
at

Administration

4

Bell
at

Woodland

ID: 770540 ID: 770501 ID: 770057 ID: 770061 ID: 770070

7:43 
8:35 
9:27 
10:19 
11:11 
12:03 
12:55 
1:47 
2:39 
3:31 
4:23 
5:15 

7:45 
8:37 
9:29 
10:21 
11:13 
12:05 
12:57 
1:49 
2:41 
3:33 
4:25 
5:17 

7:50 
8:42 
9:34 
10:26 
11:18 
12:10 
1:02 
1:54 
2:46 
3:38 
4:30 
5:22 

7:51 
8:43 
9:35 
10:27 
11:19 
12:11 
1:03 
1:55 
2:47 
3:39 
4:31 
5:23 

7:57 
8:49 
9:41 
10:33 
11:25 
12:17 
1:09 
2:01 
2:53 
3:45 
4:37 
5:29 

5

Elm
at

Fallmeadow

10

Bell
at

Mingo

This trip is Monday-Friday ONLY; Not operated on Saturday.

This trip is Monday-Friday ONLY; Not operated on Saturday.

Denton Route 6-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   2Denton Route 6-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   2 3/23/2020   4:03:59 PM3/23/2020   4:03:59 PM

Regular Item 2, Exhibit 2

122



Help us conserve! Please return this schedule to the rack when you are finished, or keep it for future use. DCTA may conduct schedule modifications throughout the year. Visit RideDCTA.net for the latest schedules and maps.

LAKEWOOD
VILLAGE

CARROLLTON

HASLET

AUBREY

COPPELL

JUSTIN

NEW FAIRVIEW

ROANOKE

SOUTHLAKE

PILOT POINT

DENTON

GRAPEVINE

LEWISVILLE

CORINTH

HIGHLAND
VILLAGE

KRUGERVILLE

KRUM

LAKE DALLAS

OAK POINT

SANGER

ARGYLE

DALLAS

FORT WORTH

CELINA

FRISCO

PLANO

THE COLONY

LITTLE
ELM

DENTON COUNTY

DALLAS COUNTY

DENTON COUNTY

TARRANT COUNTYDENTON COUNTY

TARRANT COUNTY

D
EN

TO
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
ISE C

O
U

N
T

Y

D
EN

TO
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
O

LL
IN

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

COOKE COUNTY
DENTON COUNTY

Lewisville Lake

Ray Roberts Lake

Grapevine Lake

North Carrollton/Frankford
(DART Station)

Downtown Carrollton
(DART Station)

HVCS, HVCOD, NC-N, NC-S

Highland Village/
Lewisville Lake Station

22

Old Town
Station

21, 22

Hebron
Station

DART

Trinity Mills
Station

1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 8, NC-N

Downtown Denton 
Transit Center (DDTC)

Fox Ave

Hedgerow Ln

N
Sum

m
it A

ve

W Main St

Lake Park Rd

Oakridge Blvd

FM 407

S
M

ill
St

E Purnell St

W Jones St

Bellaire Blvd

S
O

ld
O

rc
ha

rd
Ln

Heb
ro

n
Pk

wy

E Main St

Va
lle

y
Pk

w
y

Main St

Main St

N
M

ill St

G
ar

d
en

Ri
d

g
e

Bl
vd

College Pkwy

Valley Ridge Blvd

College St

Church St

C
ow

an
A

ve

Ke
al

y
A

ve

M
cG

ee
Ln

Ki
rk

p
at

ric
k

Ln

W Round Grove Rd
E Round Grove Rd

E Corp
ora

te

Dr

Vista Ridge Mall Dr

Bennett Ln

Ch
in

n
C

h
ap

el
Rd

Justin Rd Justin RdM
arketplace

Ln

Long
Prairie

Rd

Harlington Dr Brazos Blvd

G
ar

de
n Ridge Blvd

Vi
lla

ge
Pk

w
y

Br
ia

rh
ill

Bl
vd

HighlandShores Blvd

H
ig

h
la

nd
Vi

lla
ge

Rd

Highland Village Rd

W University Dr
Emery St

Barcelona St

M
esa D

r

 N
 B

on
ni

e 
Br

ae
 S

t
S 

Bo
nn

ie
 B

ra
e 

St

Scripture St
Panhandle St

E Hickory St

E McKinney St

E McKinney St

E Sycamore St

W Oak St
W    Oak St

Alliance Blvd

Eagle Pkwy

Allia
nce Gateway Fwy

Keller Haslet Rd
Westport Pkwy

O
ld

Bl
ue

M
ou

nd
Rd

H
er

ita
ge

Pk
w

y

Dallas Dr

Bel
l A

ve

Ex
p

os
iti

on
 S

t

Ra
ilr

oa
d

 A
ve

Morse St

Br
in

ke
rR

d

Colorado
B

lvd

Li
lli

an
M

ill
er

Pk
w

y

M
ed

par
k Dr

State
S

chool Rd

Robinson Rd

Po
st

Oak Dr

Teasley
Ln

Teasley Ln

Shady Shores Rd

C
or

in
th

St
Walton Dr

Corinth Pkwy

W Shady Shores Rd

S
Sh

ad
y

Sh
or

es
Rd

G
ar

za
Rd

Main St

M
or

ris
s

Rd

Waketon Rd

Cross Timbers Rd

Timber Creek Rd

W Corporate Dr

Ed
m

on
d

s
Ln

Valley View Dr

M
acA

rthur Blvd

O
ak

b
en

d
D

r

Uecke r Dr

D
en

to
n

Ta
p

Rd

Sa
m

Ra
yb

ur
n

To
llw

ay

Stemmons Fwy

W
Hebron Pkwy

O
ld

D
enton

Rd Rosemeade Pkwy

D
ic

ke
rs

on
Pk

w
y

Pr
es

id
en

t G
eo

rg
e

Bu
sh

Tp
k

President George Bush Tpk

Whitlock Ln

Broadw
ay

St

Keller Springs Rd

Lu
na

Rd

W Belt Line Rd

E Belt Line Rd

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

M
cC

oy
Rd

Ke
lly

Bl
vd

Ke
lly

Bl
vd

Frankford Rd

M
ar

sh
Ln

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

Keller Springs Rd

M
id

w
ay

Rd

D
al

la
s

N
or

th
To

llw
ay

D
al

la
s

N
or

th
To

llw
ay

Dallas North
Tollw

ay

D
al

la
s

Pk
w

y

Plano Pkwy

Parker Rd

Pl
an

o
Pk

w
y

Sam Rayburn Tollway

N
Josey

Ln

M
ain

St

Pa
ig

e
RdS Colony Blvd

N Colony Blvd

Old Alton Rd

H
ill

to
p

Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

John W. Carpenter Fwy

W Byron Nelson Blvd

Avondale Haslet Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

N
or

th
Fw

y

Panther Creek Pkwy

Cotton Gin Rd

Te
el

Pk
w

y

Lebanon Rd

Main St

W Lebanon Rd

Le
g

ac
y

D
r

Stonebrook Pkwy

Eldorado Pkwy

S
M

ai
n

St

E
Sh

er
m

an
D

r

W Sherman Dr

Spring Hill Rd

E Chapm
an Dr

W Chapman Dr

N
5th

St

H
op

ki
ns

Rd

FM
156

Ganzer Rd W

Milam Rd E

Fi
rs

t S
t McCart St

W University Dr

Spring Side Rd

W
es

tc
ou

rt
Rd

U
nd

er
w

oo
d

Rd

Airport Rd

Fo
rt

W
orth

Dr

Country
Club Rd

C
ou

nt
ry

C
lu

b
Rd

Te
as

le
y 

Ln

Hobson Ln

E University Dr

Lo
cu

st
 S

t

El
m

 S
t

Hercules Ln

N
Lo

cu
st

St

O
ld

N
or

th
Rd

E 
Sh

er
m

an
D

r

N Elm St

Meadows Oak Dr

Parkridge
D

r

Spencer Rd

W
Hebro

n
Pk

w
y

U
nicorn

Lake Blvd

Wind River Ln

Morse St

Sh
ad

y Oaks Dr

S
Tr

in
it

y
Rd

Grissom Rd

Mills Rd

N
M

ay
hi

ll
Rd

S
M

ay
hi

ll
Rd

W Windsor Dr

St
ua

rt
Rd

Mingo Rd

N
 B

el
l A

ve

Charlotte St

S 
A

ve
 G

W Hickory St

S 
W

el
ch

 S
t

S 
C

ar
ro

ll 
Bl

vd

Fr
y 

St

W Mulberry St

Ri
d

g
ev

ie
w

D
r

Lakew
ay

D
r Lakepointe Dr

W
aters

Ridge Dr

Lakeside Cir

S Railroad
St

Vintage Blvd

N
 R

ud
d

el
l S

t

N
O

ld
O

rc
ha

rd
Ln

Pr
es

id
e n

t
G

eo
rg

e
Bu

sh
Tp

k

Crescent St

Fu
lto

n 
St

By
ra

n 
St

M
al

on
e 

St

Se
llm

ey
er

Ln

N
or

th
 T

ex
as

 B
lv

d

S 
A

ve
 C

S 
A

ve
 B

M
cC

or
m

ic
k 

St

Ke
nd

ol
p

h 
St

C
ol

lie
r S

t

W Highland
Chestnut

Eagle Dr

Th
om

as
 S

t

380

380

77

377

377

377

377

377

377

377

77

380

380

35E

35E

35E

35W

35W

35

35

288

121

121
114

114

114

170

121

121

121

26

288

Vista Ridge
Mall

Addison
Airport

DCTA
Administrative
O�ce

Walmart

Lewisville
High School

Medical Center
of Lewisville

Public
Library

Senior
Citizen
Center

Recreation
Center

PediPlaceFlower Mound
Performing
Arts Center

Walmart
Walmart

Neighborhood
Market

Zone
Action

Park
Kroger

University Village
Shopping

Center

WinCo

Fort Worth
Alliance
Airport

TCC Hadley CEATL
Alliance Corporate
Training Center

Alliance Opportunity
Center

Galderma
Laboratories LP

Presbyterian
Hospital

Texas Health
Presbyterian

Park & Ride

Denton
Enterprise

Airport

Medical City Denton

Integrity Transitional
Hospital

Mayhill Hospital

Fouts
Field

North Central
Texas College

City Hall EastCourthouse
Square

Emily Fowler
Library

Senior
Center

Walmart Rayzor
Ranch

Camp
Copass

Ryan
High
School

The Shops of
Highland Village

City
Hall

Univ. of
North
Texas

UNT
Union

NCTC

Big Sandy
Park

Lake
Park

Lake Environmental
Learning Area

Central
Park

Indian Creek
Golf Club

Memorial
Park

Rustic
Timbers

Park

Clear Creek
Natural Heritage

Center

Sycamore
Bend Park

Fred Moore
Park

Evers
Park

North Lakes
Park

Oakmont
Country

Club

Corinth
Community

Park

Willow
Grove
Park

Copperas
Branch

Park

Oakland
Park

Hickory
Creek
Park

Pilot
Knoll
Park

Westlake
Park

Briercli�
Park

0 1 2 3 4 5

Miles

0 1 2 3

Miles

To Fort Worth
(See inset for 63/64)

To Carrollton
& Dallas

4

4

DP DP

4

8

8

4

4

64

8,64

8,64

8,64

88 8

8

8

64

64

44

4

4

1,3,5,6,8

1,5,6

8

Monday–Friday & Saturday / Lunes–Viernes y SábadoROUTE
RUTA 7

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

Non-Stop Service

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

HospitalPoint of Interest

A-train StationTimepoint

Hospital

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Timepoint HVCOD Zone

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

Lyft Zone

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

1 1

11

1

1

1

1

Timepoint1
A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

Hospital

Point of Interest

1,2,3

Legend

NORTH NORTE

45 2

7

8
1

3

MARCH 2020

11

9

10

12

4

Oak
at
Fry

Route 7 Schedule: Monday-Friday  /  Horario de Ruta 7: Lunes-Viernes

Route 7 Schedule: Saturday  /  Horario de Ruta 7: Sábado

5:59
6:27
6:59
7:27
7:59
8:27
8:59
9:27

10:00
10:27
10:59
11:16
12:09
1:02
1:55
2:48
3:26
3:56
4:26
4:56
5:26
5:56
6:26
7:19
8:19
9:19

6:04
6:32
7:04
7:32
8:04
8:32
9:04
9:32

10:04
10:32
11:04
11:20
12:13
1:06
1:59
2:52
3:30
4:00
4:30
5:00
5:30
6:00
6:30
7:24
8:24
9:24

6:07
6:35
7:07
7:35
8:07
8:35
9:07
9:35

10:07
10:35
11:07
11:22
12:15
1:08
2:01
2:54
3:33
4:03
4:33
5:03
5:33
6:03
6:33
7:27
8:27
9:27

6:10
6:38
7:10
7:38
8:10
8:38
9:10
9:38

10:10
10:38
11:10
11:25
12:18

1:11
2:04
2:57
3:36
4:06
4:36
5:06
5:36
6:06
6:36
7:31
8:31
9:31

6:11
6:39
7:11
7:39
8:11
8:39
9:11
9:39

10:11
10:39
11:11
11:27
12:20

1:13
2:06
2:59
3:38
4:08
4:38
5:08
5:38
6:08
6:38
7:32
8:32
9:32

6:17
6:45
7:17
7:45
8:17
8:45
9:17
9:45

10:17
10:45
11:17
11:33
12:26

1:19
2:12
3:05
3:45
4:15
4:45
5:15
5:45
6:15
6:45
7:40
8:40
9:40

8:17
9:17

10:17
11:17
12:17
1:17
2:17
3:17
4:17
5:17
6:17

8:21
9:21

10:21
11:21
12:21
1:21
2:21
3:21
4:21
5:21
6:21

8:23
9:23

10:23
11:23
12:23
1:23
2:23
3:23
4:23
5:23
6:23

8:26
9:26

10:26
11:26
12:26
1:26
2:26
3:26
4:26
5:26
6:26

8:27
9:27

10:27
11:27
12:27
1:27
2:27
3:27
4:27
5:27
6:27

8:34
9:34

10:34
11:34
12:34
1:34
2:34
3:34
4:34
5:34
6:34

Outbound to Mesa  /  Salida hacia Mesa Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

A
M

PM

1

DDTC
(Departs)

12

NCTC
Campus

3

Oak
at

Elm

8

Charlotte
at

Ave G

7

Mesa
at

Los Colinas

5

Oak
at

Thomas

7

Mesa at
Health Services

of N Texas

10

Welch
at

Chestnut

11

Hickory
at

Elm

ID: 770540 ID: 770002 ID: 770006 — ID: 770012 ID: 770507
6:25
6:55
7:25
7:55
8:25
8:55
9:25
9:55

10:25
10:47
11:27
11:40
12:33
1:26
2:19
3:18
3:50
4:19
4:49
5:19
5:50
6:19
6:54
7:45
8:45
9:48

6:34
7:04
7:34
8:04
8:34
9:04
9:34

10:04
10:34
10:54
11:34
11:49
12:42
1:35
2:28
3:27
3:59
4:28
4:58
5:28
5:59
6:28
7:03
7:55
8:55
9:55

6:38
7:08
7:38
8:08
8:38
9:08
9:38

10:08
10:38
10:58
11:38
11:53
12:46
1:39
2:32
3:31
4:04
4:33
5:03
5:33
6:04
6:33
7:08
8:00
9:00

10:00

6:41
7:11
7:41
8:11
8:41
9:11
9:41

10:11
10:41
11:01
11:41
11:56
12:49
1:42
2:35
3:34
4:07
4:36
5:06
5:36
6:07
6:36
7:11
8:03
9:03

10:03

6:44
7:14
7:44
8:14
8:44
9:14
9:44

10:14
10:44
11:01
11:41
11:59
12:52
1:45
2:38
3:37
4:11
4:40
5:10
5:40
6:11
6:40
7:15
8:07
9:07

10:09

6:45
7:15
7:45
8:15
8:45
9:15
9:45

10:15
10:45
11:01
11:41
12:00
12:53
1:46
2:39
3:38
4:12
4:41
5:11
5:41
6:12
6:41
7:16
8:08
9:08

10:10

8:45
9:45

10:45
11:45
12:45
1:45
2:45
3:45
4:45
5:45
6:42

8:54
9:54

10:54
11:54
12:54
1:54
2:54
3:54
4:54
5:54
6:54

8:57
9:57

10:57
11:57
12:57
1:57
2:57
3:57
4:57
5:57
6:57

9:00
10:00
11:00
12:00
1:00
2:00
3:00
4:00
5:00
6:00
7:00

9:03
10:03
11:03
12:03
1:03
2:03
3:03
4:03
5:03
6:03
7:03

9:04
10:04
11:04
12:04
1:04
2:04
3:04
4:04
5:04
6:04
7:04

ID: 770506 ID: 770019 ID: 770160 ID: 770165 ID: 770028 —

A
M

PM

A
M

A
M

PM
PM

6

Oak at
I-35 /

Hospital

9

Eagle
at

Kendolph

2

4

Oak
at
Fry

Outbound to Mesa  /  Salida hacia Mesa Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

1

DDTC
(Departs)

12

NCTC
Campus

3

Oak
at

Elm

8

Charlotte
at

Ave G

7

Mesa
at

Los Colinas

5

Oak
at

Thomas

7

Mesa at
Health Services

of N Texas

10

Welch
at

Chestnut

11

Hickory
at

Elm

ID: 770540 ID: 770002 ID: 770006 — ID: 770012 ID: 770507 ID: 770506 ID: 770019 ID: 770160 ID: 770165 ID: 770028 —
6

Oak at
I-35 /

Hospital

9

Eagle
at

Kendolph

2

6

Help us conserve! Please return this schedule to the rack when you are finished, or keep it for future use. DCTA may conduct schedule modifications throughout the year. Visit RideDCTA.net for the latest schedules and maps.

LAKEWOOD
VILLAGE

CARROLLTON

HASLET

AUBREY

COPPELL

JUSTIN

NEW FAIRVIEW

ROANOKE

SOUTHLAKE

PILOT POINT

DENTON

GRAPEVINE

LEWISVILLE

CORINTH

HIGHLAND
VILLAGE

KRUGERVILLE

KRUM

LAKE DALLAS

OAK POINT

SANGER

ARGYLE

DALLAS

FORT WORTH

CELINA

FRISCO

PLANO

THE COLONY

LITTLE
ELM

DENTON COUNTY

DALLAS COUNTY

DENTON COUNTY

TARRANT COUNTYDENTON COUNTY

TARRANT COUNTY

D
EN

TO
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
ISE C

O
U

N
T

Y

D
EN

TO
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
O

LL
IN

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

COOKE COUNTY
DENTON COUNTY

Lewisville Lake

Ray Roberts Lake

Grapevine Lake

North Carrollton/Frankford
(DART Station)

Downtown Carrollton
(DART Station)

HVCS, HVCOD, NC-N, NC-S

Highland Village/
Lewisville Lake Station

22

Old Town
Station

21, 22

Hebron
Station

DART

Trinity Mills
Station

1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 8, NC-N

Downtown Denton 
Transit Center (DDTC)

Fox Ave

Hedgerow Ln

N
Sum

m
it A

ve

W Main St

Lake Park Rd

Oakridge Blvd

FM 407

S
M

ill
St

E Purnell St

W Jones St

Bellaire Blvd

S
O

ld
O

rc
ha

rd
Ln

Heb
ro

n
Pk

wy

E Main St

Va
lle

y
Pk

w
y

Main St

Main St

N
M

ill St

G
ar

d
en

Ri
d

g
e

Bl
vd

College Pkwy

Valley Ridge Blvd

College St

Church St

C
ow

an
A

ve

Ke
al

y
A

ve

M
cG

ee
Ln

Ki
rk

p
at

ric
k

Ln

W Round Grove Rd
E Round Grove Rd

E Corp
ora

te

Dr

Vista Ridge Mall Dr

Bennett Ln

Ch
in

n
C

h
ap

el
Rd

Justin Rd Justin RdM
arketplace

Ln

Long
Prairie

Rd

Harlington Dr Brazos Blvd

G
ar

de
n Ridge Blvd

Vi
lla

ge
Pk

w
y

Br
ia

rh
ill

Bl
vd

HighlandShores Blvd

H
ig

h
la

nd
Vi

lla
ge

Rd

Highland Village Rd

W University Dr
Emery St

Barcelona St

M
esa D

r

 N
 B

on
ni

e 
Br

ae
 S

t
S 

Bo
nn

ie
 B

ra
e 

St

Scripture St
Panhandle St

E Hickory St

E McKinney St

E McKinney St

E Sycamore St

W Oak St
W    Oak St

Alliance Blvd

Eagle Pkwy

Allia
nce Gateway Fwy

Keller Haslet Rd
Westport Pkwy

O
ld

Bl
ue

M
ou

nd
Rd

H
er

ita
ge

Pk
w

y

Dallas Dr

Bel
l A

ve

Ex
p

os
iti

on
 S

t

Ra
ilr

oa
d

 A
ve

Morse St

Br
in

ke
rR

d

Colorado
B

lvd

Li
lli

an
M

ill
er

Pk
w

y

M
ed

par
k Dr

State
S

chool Rd

Robinson Rd

Po
st

Oak Dr

Teasley
Ln

Teasley Ln

Shady Shores Rd

C
or

in
th

St
Walton Dr

Corinth Pkwy

W Shady Shores Rd

S
Sh

ad
y

Sh
or

es
Rd

G
ar

za
Rd

Main St

M
or

ris
s

Rd

Waketon Rd

Cross Timbers Rd

Timber Creek Rd

W Corporate Dr

Ed
m

on
d

s
Ln

Valley View Dr

M
acA

rthur Blvd

O
ak

b
en

d
D

r

Uecke r Dr

D
en

to
n

Ta
p

Rd

Sa
m

Ra
yb

ur
n

To
llw

ay

Stemmons Fwy

W
Hebron Pkwy

O
ld

D
enton

Rd Rosemeade Pkwy

D
ic

ke
rs

on
Pk

w
y

Pr
es

id
en

t G
eo

rg
e

Bu
sh

Tp
k

President George Bush Tpk

Whitlock Ln

Broadw
ay

St

Keller Springs Rd

Lu
na

Rd

W Belt Line Rd

E Belt Line Rd

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

M
cC

oy
Rd

Ke
lly

Bl
vd

Ke
lly

Bl
vd

Frankford Rd

M
ar

sh
Ln

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

Keller Springs Rd

M
id

w
ay

Rd

D
al

la
s

N
or

th
To

llw
ay

D
al

la
s

N
or

th
To

llw
ay

Dallas North
Tollw

ay

D
al

la
s

Pk
w

y

Plano Pkwy

Parker Rd

Pl
an

o
Pk

w
y

Sam Rayburn Tollway

N
Josey

Ln

M
ain

St

Pa
ig

e
RdS Colony Blvd

N Colony Blvd

Old Alton Rd

H
ill

to
p

Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

John W. Carpenter Fwy

W Byron Nelson Blvd

Avondale Haslet Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

N
or

th
Fw

y

Panther Creek Pkwy

Cotton Gin Rd

Te
el

Pk
w

y

Lebanon Rd

Main St

W Lebanon Rd

Le
g

ac
y

D
r

Stonebrook Pkwy

Eldorado Pkwy

S
M

ai
n

St

E
Sh

er
m

an
D

r

W Sherman Dr

Spring Hill Rd

E Chapm
an Dr

W Chapman Dr

N
5th

St

H
op

ki
ns

Rd

FM
156

Ganzer Rd W

Milam Rd E

Fi
rs

t S
t McCart St

W University Dr

Spring Side Rd

W
es

tc
ou

rt
Rd

U
nd

er
w

oo
d

Rd

Airport Rd

Fo
rt

W
orth

Dr

Country
Club Rd

C
ou

nt
ry

C
lu

b
Rd

Te
as

le
y 

Ln

Hobson Ln

E University Dr

Lo
cu

st
 S

t

El
m

 S
t

Hercules Ln

N
Lo

cu
st

St

O
ld

N
or

th
Rd

E
Sh

er
m

an
D

r

N Elm St

Meadows Oak Dr

Parkridge
D

r

Spencer Rd

W
Hebro

n
Pk

w
y

U
nicorn

Lake Blvd

Wind River Ln

Morse St

Sh
ad

y Oaks Dr

S
Tr

in
it

y
Rd

Grissom Rd

Mills Rd

N
M

ay
hi

ll
Rd

S
M

ay
hi

ll
Rd

WWindsor Dr

St
ua

rt
Rd

Mingo Rd

N
 B

el
l A

ve

Charlotte St

S 
A

ve
 G

W Hickory St

S 
W

el
ch

 S
t

S 
C

ar
ro

ll 
Bl

vd

Fr
y 

St

W Mulberry St

Ri
d

g
ev

ie
w

D
r

Lakew
ay

D
r Lakepointe Dr

W
aters

Ridge Dr

Lakeside Cir

S Railroad
St

Vintage Blvd

N
 R

ud
d

el
l S

t

N
O

ld
O

rc
ha

rd
Ln

Pr
es

id
e n

t
G

eo
rg

e
Bu

sh
Tp

k

Crescent St

Fu
lto

n 
St

By
ra

n 
St

M
al

on
e 

St

Se
llm

ey
er

Ln

N
or

th
 T

ex
as

 B
lv

d

S 
A

ve
 C

S 
A

ve
 B

M
cC

or
m

ic
k 

St

Ke
nd

ol
p

h 
St

C
ol

lie
r S

t

W Highland
Chestnut

Eagle Dr

Th
om

as
 S

t

380

380

77

377

377

377

377

377

377

377

77

380

380

35E

35E

35E

35W

35W

35

35

288

121

121
114

114

114

170

121

121

121

26

288

Vista Ridge
Mall

Addison
Airport

DCTA
Administrative
O�ce

Walmart

Lewisville
High School

Medical Center
of Lewisville

Public
Library

Senior
Citizen
Center

Recreation
Center

PediPlaceFlower Mound
Performing
Arts Center

Walmart
Walmart

Neighborhood
Market

Zone
Action

Park
Kroger

University Village
Shopping

Center

WinCo

Fort Worth
Alliance
Airport

TCC Hadley CEATL
Alliance Corporate
Training Center

Alliance Opportunity
Center

Galderma
Laboratories LP

Presbyterian
Hospital

Texas Health
Presbyterian

Park & Ride

Denton
Enterprise

Airport

Medical City Denton

Integrity Transitional
Hospital

Mayhill Hospital

Fouts
Field

North Central
Texas College

City Hall EastCourthouse
Square

Emily Fowler
Library

Senior
Center

Walmart Rayzor
Ranch

Camp
Copass

Ryan
High
School

The Shops of
Highland Village

City
Hall

Univ. of
North
Texas

UNT
Union

NCTC

Big Sandy
Park

Lake
Park

Lake Environmental
Learning Area

Central
Park

Indian Creek
Golf Club

Memorial
Park

Rustic
Timbers

Park

Clear Creek
Natural Heritage

Center

Sycamore
Bend Park

Fred Moore
Park

Evers
Park

North Lakes
Park

Oakmont
Country

Club

Corinth
Community

Park

Willow
Grove
Park

Copperas
Branch

Park

Oakland
Park

Hickory
Creek
Park

Pilot
Knoll
Park

Westlake
Park

Briercli�
Park

0 1 2 3 4 5

Miles

0 1 2 3

Miles

To Fort Worth
(See inset for 63/64)

To Carrollton
& Dallas

4

4

DP DP

4

8

8

4

4

64

8,64

8,64

8,64

88 8

8

8

64

64

44

4

4

1,3,5,6,8

1,5,6

8

Monday–Friday & Saturday / Lunes–Viernes y SábadoROUTE
RUTA 7

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

Non-Stop Service

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

HospitalPoint of Interest

A-train StationTimepoint

Hospital

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Timepoint HVCOD Zone

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

Lyft Zone

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

1 1

11

1

1

1

1

Timepoint1
A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

Hospital

Point of Interest

1,2,3

Legend

NORTH NORTE

45 2

7

8
1

3

MARCH 2020

11

9

10

12

4

Oak
at
Fry

Route 7 Schedule: Monday-Friday  /  Horario de Ruta 7: Lunes-Viernes

Route 7 Schedule: Saturday  /  Horario de Ruta 7: Sábado

5:59
6:27
6:59
7:27
7:59
8:27
8:59
9:27

10:00
10:27
10:59
11:16
12:09
1:02
1:55
2:48
3:26
3:56
4:26
4:56
5:26
5:56
6:26
7:19
8:19
9:19

6:04
6:32
7:04
7:32
8:04
8:32
9:04
9:32

10:04
10:32
11:04
11:20
12:13
1:06
1:59
2:52
3:30
4:00
4:30
5:00
5:30
6:00
6:30
7:24
8:24
9:24

6:07
6:35
7:07
7:35
8:07
8:35
9:07
9:35

10:07
10:35
11:07
11:22
12:15
1:08
2:01
2:54
3:33
4:03
4:33
5:03
5:33
6:03
6:33
7:27
8:27
9:27

6:10
6:38
7:10
7:38
8:10
8:38
9:10
9:38

10:10
10:38
11:10
11:25
12:18

1:11
2:04
2:57
3:36
4:06
4:36
5:06
5:36
6:06
6:36
7:31
8:31
9:31

6:11
6:39
7:11
7:39
8:11
8:39
9:11
9:39

10:11
10:39
11:11
11:27
12:20

1:13
2:06
2:59
3:38
4:08
4:38
5:08
5:38
6:08
6:38
7:32
8:32
9:32

6:17
6:45
7:17
7:45
8:17
8:45
9:17
9:45

10:17
10:45
11:17
11:33
12:26

1:19
2:12
3:05
3:45
4:15
4:45
5:15
5:45
6:15
6:45
7:40
8:40
9:40

8:17
9:17

10:17
11:17
12:17
1:17
2:17
3:17
4:17
5:17
6:17

8:21
9:21

10:21
11:21
12:21
1:21
2:21
3:21
4:21
5:21
6:21

8:23
9:23

10:23
11:23
12:23
1:23
2:23
3:23
4:23
5:23
6:23

8:26
9:26

10:26
11:26
12:26
1:26
2:26
3:26
4:26
5:26
6:26

8:27
9:27

10:27
11:27
12:27
1:27
2:27
3:27
4:27
5:27
6:27

8:34
9:34

10:34
11:34
12:34
1:34
2:34
3:34
4:34
5:34
6:34

Outbound to Mesa  /  Salida hacia Mesa Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

A
M

PM

1

DDTC
(Departs)

12

NCTC
Campus

3

Oak
at

Elm

8

Charlotte
at

Ave G

7

Mesa
at

Los Colinas

5

Oak
at

Thomas

7

Mesa at
Health Services

of N Texas

10

Welch
at

Chestnut

11

Hickory
at

Elm

ID: 770540 ID: 770002 ID: 770006 — ID: 770012 ID: 770507
6:25
6:55
7:25
7:55
8:25
8:55
9:25
9:55

10:25
10:47
11:27
11:40
12:33
1:26
2:19
3:18
3:50
4:19
4:49
5:19
5:50
6:19
6:54
7:45
8:45
9:48

6:34
7:04
7:34
8:04
8:34
9:04
9:34

10:04
10:34
10:54
11:34
11:49
12:42
1:35
2:28
3:27
3:59
4:28
4:58
5:28
5:59
6:28
7:03
7:55
8:55
9:55

6:38
7:08
7:38
8:08
8:38
9:08
9:38

10:08
10:38
10:58
11:38
11:53
12:46
1:39
2:32
3:31
4:04
4:33
5:03
5:33
6:04
6:33
7:08
8:00
9:00

10:00

6:41
7:11
7:41
8:11
8:41
9:11
9:41

10:11
10:41
11:01
11:41
11:56
12:49
1:42
2:35
3:34
4:07
4:36
5:06
5:36
6:07
6:36
7:11
8:03
9:03

10:03

6:44
7:14
7:44
8:14
8:44
9:14
9:44

10:14
10:44
11:01
11:41
11:59
12:52
1:45
2:38
3:37
4:11
4:40
5:10
5:40
6:11
6:40
7:15
8:07
9:07

10:09

6:45
7:15
7:45
8:15
8:45
9:15
9:45

10:15
10:45
11:01
11:41
12:00
12:53
1:46
2:39
3:38
4:12
4:41
5:11
5:41
6:12
6:41
7:16
8:08
9:08

10:10

8:45
9:45

10:45
11:45
12:45
1:45
2:45
3:45
4:45
5:45
6:42

8:54
9:54

10:54
11:54
12:54
1:54
2:54
3:54
4:54
5:54
6:54

8:57
9:57

10:57
11:57
12:57
1:57
2:57
3:57
4:57
5:57
6:57

9:00
10:00
11:00
12:00
1:00
2:00
3:00
4:00
5:00
6:00
7:00

9:03
10:03
11:03
12:03
1:03
2:03
3:03
4:03
5:03
6:03
7:03

9:04
10:04
11:04
12:04
1:04
2:04
3:04
4:04
5:04
6:04
7:04

ID: 770506 ID: 770019 ID: 770160 ID: 770165 ID: 770028 —

A
M

PM

A
M

A
M

PM
PM

6

Oak at
I-35 /

Hospital

9

Eagle
at

Kendolph

2

4

Oak
at
Fry

Outbound to Mesa  /  Salida hacia Mesa Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

1

DDTC
(Departs)

12

NCTC
Campus

3

Oak
at

Elm

8

Charlotte
at

Ave G

7

Mesa
at

Los Colinas

5

Oak
at

Thomas

7

Mesa at
Health Services

of N Texas

10

Welch
at

Chestnut

11

Hickory
at

Elm

ID: 770540 ID: 770002 ID: 770006 — ID: 770012 ID: 770507 ID: 770506 ID: 770019 ID: 770160 ID: 770165 ID: 770028 —
6

Oak at
I-35 /

Hospital

9

Eagle
at

Kendolph

2

6

C
O

N
N

E
C

T

Route 7
New Service Changes & Modifications
Effective Monday, March 23, 2020.

D
P

DCTA is currently operating a modified schedule. See back to view.

Visit RideDCTA.net for more information.

Denton Route 7-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   1Denton Route 7-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   1 3/31/2020   11:57:26 AM3/31/2020   11:57:26 AM

Regular Item 2, Exhibit 3

123



Route 7 Schedule: Monday-Saturday / Lunes-Sábado

Outbound to Mesa /  Salida hacia Mesa 

Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

A
M

PM

7

Mesa at
Health Services

of N Texas

8

Charlotte
at

Ave G

9

Eagle
at

Kendolph

10

Welch
at

Chestnut

ID: 770506 ID: 770019 ID: 770160 ID: 770165 ID: 770028 -

7:45 
8:45 
9:45 
10:45 
11:45 
12:45 
1:45 
2:45 
3:45 
4:45 
5:45 
6:45 

7:54 
8:54 
9:54 
10:54 
11:54 
12:54 
1:54 
2:54 
3:54 
4:54 
5:54 
6:54 

7:57 
8:57 
9:57 
10:57 
11:57 
12:57 
1:57 
2:57 
3:57 
4:57 
5:57 
6:57 

8:00 
9:00 
10:00 
11:00 
12:00 
1:00 
2:00 
3:00 
4:00 
5:00 
6:00 
7:00 

8:03 
9:03 
10:03 
11:03 
12:03 
1:03 
2:03 
3:03 
4:03 
5:03 
6:03 
7:03 

8:04 
9:04 
10:04 
11:04 
12:04 
1:04 
2:04 
3:04 
4:04 
5:04 
6:04 
7:04 

11

Hickory
at

Elm

12

NCTC
Campus

A
M

PM

1

DDTC
(Departs)

2

Oak
at

Elm

3

Oak
at
Fry

4

Oak
at

Thomas

ID: 770540 ID: 770002 ID: 770006 - ID: 770012 ID: 770507

7:17 
8:17 
9:17 
10:17 
11:17 
12:17 
1:17 
2:17 
3:17 
4:17 
5:17 
6:17 

7:21 
8:21 
9:21 
10:21 
11:21 
12:21 
1:21 
2:21 
3:21 
4:21 
5:21 
6:21 

7:23 
8:23 
9:23 
10:23 
11:23 
12:23 
1:23 
2:23 
3:23 
4:23 
5:23 
6:23 

7:26 
8:26 
9:26 
10:26 
11:26 
12:26 
1:26 
2:26 
3:26 
4:26 
5:26 
6:26 

7:27 
8:27 
9:27 
10:27 
11:27 
12:27 
1:27 
2:27 
3:27 
4:27 
5:27 
6:27 

7:34 
8:34 
9:34 
10:34 
11:34 
12:34 
1:34 
2:34 
3:34 
4:34 
5:34 
6:34 

5

Oak 
at

I-35 / Hospital

6

Mesa
at

Los Colinas

This trip is Monday-Friday ONLY; Not operated on Saturday.

This trip is Monday-Friday ONLY; Not operated on Saturday.

Denton Route 7-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   2Denton Route 7-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   2 3/31/2020   11:57:27 AM3/31/2020   11:57:27 AM

Regular Item 2, Exhibit 3

124



LAKEWOOD
VILLAGE

CARROLLTON

HASLET

AUBREY

COPPELL

JUSTIN

NEW FAIRVIEW

ROANOKE

SOUTHLAKE

PILOT POINT

DENTON

GRAPEVINE

LEWISVILLE

CORINTH

HIGHLAND
VILLAGE

KRUGERVILLE

KRUM

LAKE DALLAS

OAK POINT

SANGER

ARGYLE

DALLAS

FORT WORTH

CELINA

FRISCO

PLANO

THE COLONY

LITTLE
ELM

DENTON�COUNTY

DALLAS�COUNTY

DENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTYDENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTY

D
E

N
T

O
N

�C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
IS

E
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

D
E

N
T

O
N

�C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
O

L
L

IN
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

COOKE�COUNTY
DENTON�COUNTY

Lewisville Lake

Ray Roberts Lake

Grapevine Lake

North Carrollton/Frankford
(DART Station)

Downtown Carrollton
(DART Station)

HVCS, HVCOD, NC-N, NC-S

Highland Village/
Lewisville Lake Station

22

Old Town
Station

21, 22

Hebron
Station

DART

Trinity Mills
Station

1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, NC-N

Downtown Denton 
Transit Center (DDTC)

Fox Ave

Hedgerow Ln

N
Sum

m
it Ave

W Main St

Lake Park Rd
Oakridge Blvd

FM 407

S
M

ill
St

E Purnell St

W Jones St

Bellaire Blvd

S
O

ld
O

rc
ha

rd
Ln

He
br

on
Pk

wy

E Main St

Va
lle

y
Pk

w
y

Main
St

Main St

N
M

ill St

G
ar

de
n

R
id

ge
B

lv
d

College Pkwy

Valley Ridge Blvd

College St

Church St

C
ow

an
Av

e

Ke
al

y
Av

e

M
cG

ee
Ln

Ki
rk

pa
tr

ic
k

Ln

W Round Grove Rd
E Round Grove Rd

E Corp
or

at
e

Dr

Vista Ridge Mall Dr

Bennett Ln

Ch
in

n
Ch

ap
el

R
d

Justin Rd Justin RdM
arketplace

Ln

Long
Prairie

Rd

Harlington Dr Brazos Blvd

Ga
rd

en
Ridge Blvd

Vi
lla

ge
Pk

w
y

Br
ia

rh
ill

Bl
vd

HighlandShores
Blvd

Hi
g

h
la

nd
Vi

lla
ge

R
d

Highland Village Rd

W University Dr
 N

 B
on

ni
e 

B
ra

e 
St

S 
B

on
ni

e 
B

ra
e 

St

Scripture St

Panhandle St

E Hickory StW Hickory St

E McKinney St

E McKinney St

E Sycamore St

W Oak St

Alliance Blvd

Eagle Pkwy

Allia
nce

Gate
way

Fw
y

Keller Haslet Rd
Westport Pkwy

Ol
d

Bl
ue

M
ou

nd
Rd

He
rit

ag
e

Pk
w

y

Dallas Dr

Robertson

Bel
lA

ve

Ex
po

si
tio

n 
St

R
ai

lro
ad

 A
ve

Morse St

B
rin

ke
r

R
d

Colorado
B

lvd

Li
llia

n
M

ille
r P

kw
y

Med
pa

rk
Dr

S
tate

School R
d

Robinson Rd

Po
st

Oa
k Dr

Teasley
Ln

Teasley Ln

Shady Shores Rd

C
or

in
th

St
Walton Dr

Corinth Pkwy

W Shady Shores Rd

S
Sh

ad
y

Sh
or

es
R

d

G
ar

za
R

d

Main St

M
or

ris
s

R
d

Waketon Rd

Cross Timbers Rd

Timber Creek Rd

W Corporate Dr

Ed
m

on
ds

Ln

Valley View Dr

M
acArthur Blvd

O
ak

be
nd

D
r

Uecke r Dr

D
en

to
n

Ta
p

R
d

Sa
m

Ra
yb

ur
n

To
llw

ay

Stemmons Fwy

W
Hebron Pkwy

Old
Denton

Rd

Rosemeade Pkwy

D
ic

ke
rs

on
Pk

w
y

Pr
es

id
en

t G
eo

rg
e

Bu
sh

Tp
k

President George Bush Tpk

Whitlock Ln

Broadw
ay

St

Keller Springs Rd

Lu
na

Rd

W Belt Line Rd

E Belt Line Rd

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

M
cC

oy
R

d

Ke
lly

B
lv

d

Ke
lly

B
lv

d

Frankford Rd

M
ar

sh
Ln

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

Keller Springs Rd

M
id

w
ay

R
d

D
al

la
s

N
or

th
To

llw
ay

D
al

la
s

N
or

th
To

llw
ay

Dalla
s Nort

h Tol
lway

D
al

la
s

Pk
w

y

Plano Pkwy

Parker Rd

Pl
an

o
Pk

w
y

Sam Rayburn Tollway

N
Josey

Ln

M
ain

St

Pa
ig

e
R

dS Colony Blvd

N Colony Blvd

Old Alton Rd

H
ill

to
p

R
d

John W. Carpenter Fwy

John W. Carpenter Fwy

W Byron Nelson Blvd

Avondale Haslet Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

No
rth

Fw
y

Panther Creek Pkwy

Cotton Gin Rd

Te
el

Pk
w

y

Lebanon Rd

Main St

W Lebanon Rd

Le
ga

cy
D

r

Stonebrook Pkwy

Eldorado Pkwy

S
M

ai
n

St

E
Sh

er
m

an
Dr

W Sherman Dr

Spring Hill Rd

E Ch
ap

man
Dr

W Chapman Dr

N
5th

St

H
op

ki
ns

R
d

FM
15

6

Ganzer Rd W

Milam Rd E

Fi
rs

t S
t McCart St

W University Dr

Airport Rd

Fo
rt W

ort
h Dr

Coun
try

Club
Rd

C
ou

nt
ry

C
lu

b
R

d

Te
as

le
y 

Ln

Hobson Ln

E University Dr

Lo
cu

st
 S

t
El

m
 S

t

Hercules Ln

N
Lo

cu
st

St

O
ld

N
or

th
R

d

E
Sh

er
m

an
Dr

N Elm St

Meadows Oak Dr

Parkridge
D

r

Spencer Rd

W
Heb

ro
n

Pk
w

y

Unicorn
L ake Blvd

Wind River Ln

Morse St

Sh
ad

y Oaks Dr

S
Tr

in
ity

R
d

Grissom Rd

Mills Rd

N
M

ay
hi

ll
R

d
S

M
ay

hi
ll

R
d

W Windsor Dr

St
ua

rt
R

d

Mingo Rd

N
 B

el
l A

ve

Charlotte St
Stella St

N
or

th
 T

ex
as

 B
lv

d

W Highland

S 
C

ar
ro

ll 
B

lv
d

B
er

na
rd

 S
t

Fr
y 

St

W Mulberry St

R
id

ge
vi

ew
D

r

Lakeway
D

r

Lakepointe Dr

W
aters

Ridge Dr

Lakeside Cir

S
Railroad

St

Vintage Blvd

N
 R

ud
de

ll 
St

N
O

ld
O

rc
ha

rd
Ln

Pr
es

id
en

t
G

eo
rg

e
Bu

sh
Tp

k

Crescent St

Fu
lto

n 
St

B
yr

an
 S

t

M
al

on
e 

St

Se
llm

ey
er

Ln

S 
W

el
ch

 S
t

Prairie StChestnut St

Eagle Dr

Ke
nd

ol
ph

 S
t

M
cC

or
m

ic
k 

St

C
ol

lie
r 

St

380

380

77

377

377

377

377

377

377

377

77

380

380

35E

35E

35E

35W

35W

35

35

288

121

121
114

114

114

170

121

121

121

26

288

Vista Ridge
Mall

Addison
Airport

DCTA
Administrative
Office

Walmart

Lewisville
High School

Medical Center
of Lewisville

Public
Library

Senior
Citizen
Center

Recreation
Center

PediPlaceFlower Mound
Performing
Arts Center

Walmart
Walmart

Neighborhood
Market

Zone
Action

Park
Kroger

Fort Worth
Alliance
Airport

TCC Hadley CEATL
Alliance Corporate
Training Center

Alliance Opportunity
Center

Galderma
Laboratories LP

Presbyterian
Hospital

Texas Health
Presbyterian
Park & Ride

Denton
Enterprise

Airport

Medical City Denton

Integrity Transitional
Hospital

Mayhill Hospital

University of
North Texas

UNT
Union

Fouts
Field

North Central
Texas College

Courthouse
Square

Senior Center

Camp
Copass

Ryan
High
School

The Shops of
Highland Village

City
Hall

City Hall East

Emily Fowler
Library

Big Sandy
Park

Lake
Park

Lake Environmental
Learning Area

Central
Park

Indian Creek
Golf Club

Memorial
Park

Rustic
Timbers

Park

Clear Creek
Natural Heritage

Center

Sycamore
Bend Park

Fred Moore
Park

Evers
Park

North Lakes
Park

Oakmont
Country

Club

Corinth
Community

Park

Willow
Grove
Park

Copperas
Branch
Park

Oakland
Park

Hickory
Creek
Park

Pilot
Knoll
Park

Westlake
Park

Briercliff
Park

0 1 2 3 4 5

Miles

0 1 2 3

Miles

To Fort Worth
(See inset for 63/64)

To Carrollton
& Dallas

1

4

5
2

3

7,64

7,64

7,64

7

7

7

7

7

7 7 7
BST

1,3,5,6,7

1,5,6,7

Monday–Friday & Saturday / Lunes–Viernes y SábadoROUTE
RUTA 8

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

Non-Stop Service

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

HospitalPoint of Interest

A-train StationTimepoint

Hospital

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Bus Stop

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2019 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2019 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2019 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Timepoint HV Lyft Zone

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

HV Lyft Zone

Lakeway Zone

©2019 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

Airport Zone

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

1 1

11

1

1

1

1

Timepoint1
A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3 A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

Hospital

Point of Interest

Hospital

Point of Interest

1,2,3

Legend

NORTH NORTE

Route 8 Schedule: Monday-Friday  /  Horario de Ruta 8: Lunes-Viernes

Route 8 Schedule: Saturday  /  Horario de Ruta 8: Sábado

Outbound to UNT  /  Salida hacia UNT

Outbound to UNT  /  Salida hacia UNT

Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

1

DDTC
(Departs)

1

DDTC
(Departs)

2

Welch
at Chestnut

2

Welch
at Chestnut

3

N Texas Blvd
at Highland

3

N Texas Blvd
at Highland

5

Bell at
Robertson

5

Bell at
Robertson

4

Eagle at
Bernard

4

Eagle at
Bernard

ID: 100734 ID: 148607 ID: 770181

ID: 100734 ID: 148607 ID: 770181

6:04
6:49
7:32
7:52
8:12
8:32
8:52
9:12
9:32
9:52

10:12
10:32
10:49
11:34
12:19

1:04
1:49
2:34
3:10
3:26
3:46
4:06
4:26
4:46
5:06
5:26
5:46
6:06
6:27
7:01
7:46
8:31
9:16

6:09
6:54
7:37
7:57
8:17
8:37
8:57
9:17
9:37
9:57

10:17
10:37
10:54
11:39
12:24

1:09
1:54
2:39
3:15
3:31
3:51
4:11
4:31
4:51
5:11
5:31
5:51
6:11
6:32
7:06
7:51
8:36
9:21

6:13
6:58
7:40
8:00
8:20
8:40
9:00
9:20
9:40

10:00
10:20
10:40
10:58
11:43
12:28

1:13
1:58
2:43
3:19
3:35
3:55
4:15
4:35
4:55
5:15
5:35
5:55
6:15
6:36
7:10
7:55
8:40
9:25

8:16
8:46
9:16
9:46

10:16
10:46
11:16
11:46
12:16
12:46

1:16
1:46
2:16
2:46
3:16
3:46
4:16
4:46
5:16
5:46
6:16

8:20
8:50
9:20
9:50

10:20
10:50
11:20
11:50
12:20
12:50

1:20
1:50
2:20
2:50
3:20
3:50
4:20
4:50
5:20
5:50
6:20

8:23
8:53
9:23
9:53

10:23
10:53
11:23
11:53
12:23
12:53

1:23
1:53
2:23
2:53
3:23
3:53
4:23
4:53
5:23
5:53
6:23

ID: 770540 ID: 770165

ID: 770540 ID: 770165

5:45
6:30
7:15
7:35
7:55
8:15
8:35
8:55
9:15
9:35
9:55

10:15
10:30
11:15

12:00
12:45

1:30
2:15
2:51
3:07
3:27
3:47
4:07
4:27
4:47
5:07
5:27
5:47
6:08
6:42
7:27
8:12
8:57

5:57
6:42
7:26
7:46
8:06
8:26
8:46
9:06
9:26
9:46

10:06
10:26
10:42
11:27
12:12
12:57

1:42
2:27
3:03
3:19
3:39
3:59
4:19
4:39
4:59
5:19
5:39
5:59
6:20
6:54
7:39
8:24
9:09

8:00
8:30
9:00
9:30

10:00
10:30
11:00
11:30
12:00
12:30

1:00
1:30
2:00
2:30
3:00
3:30
4:00
4:30
5:00
5:30
6:00

8:09
8:39
9:09
9:39

10:09
10:39
11:09
11:39
12:09
12:39

1:09
1:39
2:09
2:39
3:09
3:39
4:09
4:39
5:09
5:39
6:09

A
M

A
M

P
M

P
M

A
M

A
M

P
M

P
M

Help us conserve! Please return this schedule to the rack when you are finished, or keep it for future use. DCTA may conduct schedule modifications throughout the year. 

AUGUST 2019

AUGUST 2019

C
O

N
N

E
C

T

Route 8
New Service Changes & Modifications
Effective Monday, March 23, 2020.

DCTA is operating a modified schedule in response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) 
health emergency. See back for the modified schedule.

Visit RideDCTA.net for more information.

Denton Route 8-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   1Denton Route 8-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   1 3/23/2020   4:02:39 PM3/23/2020   4:02:39 PM

Regular Item 2, Exhibit 4

125



Route 8 Schedule: Monday-Saturday / Lunes-Sábado

Outbound to UNT /  Salida hacia UNT Inbound to DDTC  /  Hacia DDTC

A
M

PM

1

DDTC
(Departs)

2

Welch
at

Chestnut

3

N Texas Blvd
at

Highland

ID: 770540 ID: 770165 ID: 100734 ID: 148607 ID: 770181

7:30 
8:00 
8:30 
9:00 
9:30 
10:00 
10:30 
11:00 
11:30 
12:00 
12:30 
1:00 
1:30 
2:00 
2:30 
3:00 
3:30 
4:00 
4:30 
5:00 
5:30 
6:00 

7:39 
8:09 
8:39 
9:09 
9:39 
10:09 
10:39 
11:09 
11:39 
12:09 
12:39 
1:09 
1:39 
2:09 
2:39 
3:09 
3:39 
4:09 
4:39 
5:09 
5:39 
6:09 

7:46 
8:16 
8:46 
9:16 
9:46 
10:16 
10:46 
11:16 
11:46 
12:16 
12:46 
1:16 
1:46 
2:16 
2:46 
3:16 
3:46 
4:16 
4:46 
5:16 
5:46 
6:16 

7:50 
8:20 
8:50 
9:20 
9:50 
10:20 
10:50 
11:20 
11:50 
12:20 
12:50 
1:20 
1:50 
2:20 
2:50 
3:20 
3:50 
4:20 
4:50 
5:20 
5:50 
6:20 

7:53 
8:23 
8:53 
9:23 
9:53 
10:23 
10:53 
11:23 
11:53 
12:23 
12:53 
1:23 
1:53 
2:23 
2:53 
3:23 
3:53 
4:23 
4:53 
5:23 
5:53 
6:23 

4

Eagle
at

Bernard

5

Bell
at

Robertson

This trip is Monday-Friday ONLY; Not operated on Saturday.

A
M

PM

Denton Route 8-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   2Denton Route 8-COVID-19 Modified Service Changes March23.indd   2 3/23/2020   4:02:39 PM3/23/2020   4:02:39 PM

Regular Item 2, Exhibit 4

126



Regular Item 3, Exhibit 1

 UNT 
CONTRACT 

SERVICE 

 NCTC 
CONTRACT 

SERVICE 

 FRISCO 
DEMAND 
RESPONSE 

 CCT 
DEMAND 
RESPONSE 

TOTAL REVENUES 2,869,063$       262,364$          386,757$           250,980$          

LESS: TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES (A) 1 (2,659,690) (316,895) (325,705) (250,865)

LESS: FACILITY & ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES (B) 2 3
(1,404,442)          (164,747)             (186,277)             (142,855)             

TOTAL DIRECT & ALLOCATED EXPENSES (A+B+C) (4,064,132) (481,642) (511,982) (393,720)

NET OPERATING IMPACT (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (1,195,069)$         (219,278)$           (125,225)$            (142,740)$           

GRANT & FLEET REVENUE  $         1,197,884 118,978$             -$  -$  
LESS: ANNUAL CAPITAL COST 4 (840,000)           - - -

NET CONTRACT IMPACT (OPERATING & CAPITAL) (837,185)$           (100,300)$          (125,225)$            (142,740)$           

Portion of Direct & Allocated Expenses and Capital Cost
covered by Contracting Entity 83% 79% 76% 64%

Overhead Percentage Required to Cover 100% 
Direct & Allocated Expenses including Capital Cost 57% 57%

4 Current UNT contract assumes capacity for 24 buses at a cost of $350k/bus spread evenly over 10-year contract term. NCTC, Frisco, and 
CCT pay for fleet needs separately so no amount is included for those contracts.

CONTRACTED SERVICE SUMMARY
Data reflects FY19 audited financials

2 Facility expenses relate to Bus O&M Facility, DDTC Facility, Admin Facility, Rail O&M Facility
3 Administration expenses relate to customer service, project staff, and administrative staff salaries and benefits, professional services, 
travel & training

1 Expenses include operator wages and benefits, purchased transportation services, fuel, vehicle maintenance, liability insurance

127



Regular Item 3, Exhibit 2

 UNT 
CONTRACT 

SERVICE 

 NCTC 
CONTRACT 

SERVICE 

 FRISCO 
DEMAND 
RESPONSE 

 CCT 
DEMAND 
RESPONSE 

CONTRACT START  Aug. 2005  Aug. 2009  Dec. 2015  June 2017 
CONTRACT END  Aug. 2028  June 2020  Sept. 2020  May 2020 

REVENUE

FY19 SERVICE HRS ($ REVENUE)  $         2,582,292  $            228,429  $            245,290  $ 86,555 
FY19 FUEL ($ REVENUE) 219,158 25,935 30,518 14,920 

ANNUAL CONNECT FEE 49,000 8,000 
LYFT/TAXI SERVICE (PASS THRU COST + ADMIN FEE) 18,612 103,851 146,259 

PASSENGER REVENUES -                           - 7,099 3,245 

TOTAL REVENUES  $         2,869,063  $            262,364  $            386,757  $           250,980 

EXPENSES

OPERATIONS WAGES & BENEFITS 1,920,279$          209,141$              160,995$             70,719$  
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 158,267 17,237 13,269 5,829 

THIRD PARTY TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 17,254 - 86,542 137,735 
OPERATIONS FUEL 224,092 25,935 10,728 15,196 

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 339,798 64,582 54,171 21,386 
TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES 2,659,690           316,895 325,705 250,865 

OVERHEAD EXPENSES TO BE ALLOCATED
FACILITIES MAINTENANCE:

BUS O&M FACILITY 54,589 6,619 5,003 2,368 
DOWNTOWN DENTON TRANSIT CENTER 1,473 - - - 

ADMIN FACILITY 30,084 3,622 3,703 2,831 

ADMINISTRATION:
GENERAL ADMIN 1,218,818 146,760 150,021 114,698 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 73,467 4,592 27,550 22,958 
CAPITAL PROJECT STAFF 26,011 3,154 - - 

TOTAL FACILITY & ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 1,404,442            164,747 186,277 142,855 

TOTAL DIRECT & ALLOCATED EXPENSES  $          4,064,132  $            481,642  $             511,982  $            393,720 

Detail from FY2019 Cost Allocation Model

128



Regular Item 4 

Board of Directors Memo    April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Contract Service Agreement Administrative Fee Policy 

Background 
Each agreement for DCTA contract services has been constructed based on desired service levels, mobility solutions 
chosen, and estimates of work effort needed to administer the respective contracts.  DCTA executed a work 
authorization with Texas A&M Transportation Institute (TTI) in September 2018 to develop a multi-modal service 
costing model to fully allocate costs to each of DCTA’s transit modes and services.  This model allows DCTA to 
allocate all indirect costs between member city service and DCTA’s contract services. 

Identified Need 
Establishes an administrative fee for contracted services provided to entities other than DCTA’s three member cities 
based on a minimum cost recovery rate. 

Financial Impact 
Upon approval of this policy, DCTA will renegotiate existing contracts for service to align with this policy. 

Recommendation  
Staff recommends approval and implementation of this policy. 

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1: Administrative Fee Policy 

Submitted by:  _____________________________ 
Marisa Perry, CPA 
Chief Financial Officer/VP of Finance 

Final Review:  _____________________________ 
Raymond Suarez 
CEO 

129



 
  

 

Regular Item 4, Exhibit 1 

Administrative Fee Policy 
 
Section 1: Purpose  
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines regarding contract service agreements for service provided by 
DCTA. 

 
 

Section 2: Policy Statement 
 
DCTA provides public transportation alternatives to improve mobility, air quality, economic development and 
livability in the areas it serves.  DCTA supports utilization of these services through contracts in partnership with 
Universities, Colleges and with entities outside of the existing member city area but expects reasonable compensation. 
 
 
Section 3: Administration 
 
Contracts for service delivered to local Universities and Colleges, within member cities must recover a minimum of 
75% of total operating and capital costs.  Contracts for services delivered outside member cities must recover 100% 
of total operating and capital costs.   
 
An overhead percentage shall be calculated annually based on DCTA’s cost allocation model to determine the 
percentage of allocated, indirect costs in proportion to direct costs.  A three percent (3%) fee shall be added to this 
overhead percentage for all contract services delivered outside member cities.  This calculated overhead percentage, 
plus 3%, shall be used as the Administrative Fee added to direct costs.  In no case shall the Administrative Fee be less 
than 60% without prior approval of the DCTA Board of Directors.  
 
The President/CEO or designee is authorized to implement this policy and to issue more detailed procedures to 
facilitate implementation of the policy as needed.  All agreements developed under this policy and any proposed 
deviations from this policy will be brought to the Board for prior review and approval. 

130



 
 

 

Regular Item 5 

 
Board of Directors Memo                       April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval to Amend the North Central Texas College (NCTC) Contracted Service 
Agreement 
 
Background 
In December 2019, the DCTA board approved a six-month extension of the existing contract service agreement 
with North Central Texas College (NCTC), effective January 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020.  
 
DCTA currently provides contract shuttle bus service for the North Central Texas College (NCTC) students, 
faculty, and staff.  
 
The original parent contract with North Central Texas College (NCTC) went into effect on August 21, 2009 and 
has been renewed annually with routine updates and amendments.  
 
Amendments to the parent contract include: 

 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Identified Need 
North Central Texas College (NCTC) desires to extend the current agreement.   
 
DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow 
time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with DCTA's cost allocation 
model and administrative fee policy. 

 
Financial Impact 
The new fee shall cover all expenses associated with the agreement and shall have no negative financial impact 
on DCTA. 
 
Exhibits 
Exhibit 1: December 2019 NCTC Contract Amendment  
Exhibit 2: NCTC Parent Contract 
Exhibit 3: NCTC Shuttle Map 
 

Amendment Date Cost Per Revenue Service Hour % Increase 
August 21, 2009 – August 20, 2010  $35.21 First Rate 
August 21, 2012 – August 20, 2013 $36.97 5% 
August 21, 2013 – August 20, 2014 $36.97 0% 
September 1, 2014 – August 30, 2015 $36.97 0% 
October 1, 2014 – August 20, 2015 $38.81 5% 
October 1, 2015 – August 20, 2016 $40.75 5% 
September 1, 2016 – August 30, 2017 $42.79 5% 
September 1, 2017 – August 30, 2018 $44.93 5% 
September 1, 2018 – January 31, 2019 $44.93 0% 
January 1, 2020 – June 30, 2020 $49.54 10% 

131



 
 

 

Regular Item 5 

 
Recommendation 
DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow 
time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with DCTA's cost allocation 
model and administrative fee policy. 
   

 
 
 
 

 
 
Submitted By: ____________________________ 
 Nicole Recker, Vice President of Marketing and Administration  
 
 
Approval:  ____________________________ 
 Raymond Suarez, CEO 

 
 
 

132



STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 
§ 

FIFrH AMENDED INTERLOCAL 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF DENTON § 

This Fifth Amended lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement is made and entered into by and 
between Denton County Transportation Authority ("DCTA") and North Central Texas College 
("NCTC") ( each a "Party" and collectively the "Parties"), acting by and through their 
authorized representatives. 

WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into that certain Third Amended and 
Restated lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement on June 29, 2016 (the 46Agreemenf'); and 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Fourth Amended lnterlocal Cooperation 
Agreement on January 17, 2019, extending the Term of the Agreement and increasing revenue 
cost per hour; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties agree to extend the Term of the Agreement for six (6) months 
beginning January l, 2020 and to increase the revenue cost per hour by 5%; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties are authorized to enter into this Fifth Amended Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreement pursuant to the lnterlocal Cooperation Act (the .. Act''), Chapter 
791, Texas Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, OCT A and NCTC are units of local government that have the 
statutory authority under the Act to perform the services set forth in the Agreement and 
this Fifth Amended lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 460 of the Texas Transportation Code, OCT A is 
authorized to enter into this Agreement with NCTC to provide the requested bus services; 
and 

WHEREAS, each Party will make any required payments for services from current 
revenues available to s�ch Party; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties agree to amend the Agreement as set forth herein; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and 
other valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
Parties agree as follows: 

I. That Article II, Term, is hereby amended to read as follows:

PACEI 

"2.1 The Tenn of the Agreement shall be extended for six (6) months
commencing on January 1, 2020 and continuing through June 30, 2020, unless
sooner terminated as provided herein.

OCT A AND NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COLU'.CE 

FIFl'lf AMENDED INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 1

133



" 

2. That Article IV, Compensation; Fees, is hereby amended to read as follows:

" 

. ' .

"4.1 Bus Service Fees. (a) NCTC agrees to pay to DCTA for the Bus Service 
based on a "Operational Hour of Service" which for purposes of this Agreement is 
defined as: (i) each hour that a vehicle is assigned to provide service on a route 
described in Exhibit "A .. (or as modified by OCT A from time to time as provided 
herein) minus the total amount of rider fees collected pursuant to Section 3.9 
above; (ii) the vehicle is available to the general public; and (iii) there is an 
expectation of carrying passengers, to be paid in the following amounts or rates: 
For Bus Services delivered from January I, 2020 through June 30, 2020, NCTC 
shall pay OCTA $49.54 per Operational Hour of Service excluding the cost of 
fuel. 

3. The Agreement shall continue in full force and effect except as amended herein. If any
tenns or conditions contained in this Fifth Amended lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement are
inconsistent with the Agreement, the terms and conditions contained in this Fifth Amended
lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement will be controlling.

(sign11ture page to follow) 

PAGE 2 DCT A AND Noam Ct:Hl'RAL TEXAS COLLl:CE 

F1nu AMENDED INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 1

134



EXECUTEDthis /� dayof � , 2019.

Denton County Transportation Authority 

By:

Approved as to form:

By: HL_ q. 4'1)- �. 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., General Counsel
(11-13-2019:TM 112162) 

EXECUTED this _26th __ day of __ November _______ , 2019.

North Central Texas College 

By:� 
Name: (. e,�r (>)PW\&'-I ""o 
Title: -e,-"�

---'-
;.;;....f#_,..

.....;.;..:
'--"-'--------

PAGE 3 OCT A AND NORTH CENTRAL TEl<AS COLLEGE 

F'IITH AMENDED INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 1

135



STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF DENTON § 

Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 

This Inter-local Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into by and between 
Denton County Transportation Authority ("DCTA") and North Central Texas College 
("NCTC"), acting by and through their authorized representatives. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, NCTC desires DCTA to provide a fixed route bus service for the benefit of 
NCTC students, staff, and faculty for the purposes stated in Article I, below; and 

WHEREAS, the DCTA desires to provide NCTC a lease purchase option to purchase a 
Type III bus that will be used to provide the fixed route service pursllant to this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the parties are authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to the Inter
local Cooperation Act ("Act"), Chapter 791, Texas Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, DCTA and NCTC are units 6f local government that have the statutory 
authority under the Act to perform the services set forth in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 460 of the Texas Transportation Code the DCTA is 
authorized to enter into this Agreement with NCTC to provide the requested bus services; and 

WHEREAS, each party will make any required payments for services from current 
revenues available to such party; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants 
set forth in this Agreement, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

Article I 
Purpose 

The purpose of this Agreement is to: (i) provide bus services for the benefit of NCTC and 
its students, faculty, and staff, in a manner that will assist the DCTA in providing bus services on 
behalf of Denton County, Texas; and (ii) to provide univetsal access to DCTA Connect and 
Commuter Express Bus Service. 

Article II 
Term 

2.1 The term of this Agreement shall begin oh August 21, 2009 and continue for 
period of one year, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. Thereafter, the term of this 

DCT A/NCTC Inter-local Cooperation Agreement- Page 1 37832 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

136



Agreement shall automatically renew on the expiration date of the then current term for 
successive terms of one year each, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 

2.2 Either party may terminate this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, with or 
without cause, by providing by the other party ninety (90) days prior written notice to terminate. 

2.3 This Agreement may be terminated by either party in the event the other party 
breaches any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement and such breach is not cured within 
ninety (90) days after written notice thereof. 

Article III 

Services 

3.1 Bus Service. DCTA agrees to permit all NCTC students, staff, and faculty to use 
or ride on public transportation buses operated by or on behalf of the DCT A on the fixed route 
bus system as operated by the DCTA ("Bus Services") by displaying a valid NCTC student, staff 
or faculty identification. The valid NCTC identification riitist be displayed to the DCTA bus 
operator prior to such person being allowed to use or ride the Bus Service. The Bus Service shall 
include bus stops on or near the NCTC Corinth, Texas campus along a fixed route and schedule 
of service determined by DCTA from time to time in consultation with NCTC. A fixed route 
service serving the NCTC shall be in place for the entire terrii of this Agreement. 

3.2 DCTA Connect and Commuter Bus Ser-vice Access. DCTA agrees to permit 
universal access to all NCTC students, staff, and faculty td use or ride on public transportation 
buses operated by or on behalf of the DCTA for DCTA Connect and Commuter Express Bus 
Service. The valid NCTC identification must be displayed to the DCTA bus operator prior to 
such person being allowed to use or ride the DCTA Conned and Commuter Bus Service. 

3.3 Bus Service Vehicle. (a) DCTA shall purchase a Type III bus for the sole use in 
providing the Bus Service. For purposes of this Agreement a Type III bus means a bus that will 
carry at least sixteen (16) passengers, with a quick conversion for up to two (2) wheelchair 
passengers and twelve (12) additional passengers. The purchase price of the Type III bus and 
equipment shall not exceed $70,000. NCTC agrees to reimburse DCTA the total cost for the 
purchase and equipping of such vehicle plus interest at the rate of 4.6% per annum to be paid by 
NCTC to DCTA in five (5) annual lease installments to be paid on the 1st day of October of each 
calendar year beginning on the l strday of October 2009 ahd continuing until such costs and 
interest are paid in full. In the event this Agreement is terminated and not renewed by the parties, 
DCT A agrees to sell and transfer title to such vehicle to NCTC, and NCTC agrees to purchase 
such vehicle for the outstanding principal and interest owed for the vehicle to be paid within 
sixty (60) days after the end of the NCTC fiscal year in which this Agreement is terminated. At 
the end of the fifth (5th) year, DCTA agrees to transfer Htie to such vehicle to NCTC at no 
additional purchase or lease cost (provided NCTC has fully paid all annual lease installments). 
DCT A will insure, operate and maintain such vehicle until _title to such vehicle is transferred to 
NCTC or this Agreement is terminated. DCT A shall use this vehicle only for the fixed routes 
specified in Exhibit "A" except as such routes are revised from time to time by the DCTA. 
DCTA may use the NCTC brand at no additional cost or chatge. 

DCTA/NCTC Inter-local Cooperation Agreement- Page 2 37832 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

137



(b) In the event the Type III bus to be purchased by DCTA for the Bus Service is not
available for the initiation of service, or in the event a spare DCT A vehicle is needed to provide 
the Bus Service, NCTC shall pay DCTA a rate of $95 per day for each day, or portion of a day, 
excluding fuel, for which a DCTA spare fleet vehicle is used to provide the Bus Service 

3.4 Service Standards. All vehicles used by DCTA or its contractors in the provision 
of the Bus Service shall be maintained by DCTA consistent with manufacturer's specifications. 
DCT A, or its contractor, shall in connection with the bus services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement, be responsible for the: (a) management and operation of the service; (b) all hiring, 
training and personnel management functions; (c) monitoring and evaluation of all operations, 
systems, and procedures; (d) safety, loss prevention, and insurance programs; (e) determination 
of revised schedules and routing, subject to the approval of the NCTC Representative;(f) 
maintenance of all vehicles, including those provided by NCTC; (g) customer relations and 
complaint resolution; (h) data collection and reporting; and (j) collection and accounting of all 
farebox revenue, pass and ticket sales, and other customer revenues received. DCTA shall, upon 
written request provide NCTC access during normal business hours, the DCTA records 
maintained for the services provided pursuant to this Agreement. 

3.5 Bus Service Schedule. The schedule for the initial Bus Service is set forth in 
Exhibit A. Thereafter DCT A shall have the right to modify the schedule of service after 
consultation with NCTC; however a fixed route serving NCtC shall remain in place for the term 
of this Agreement. Any modifications or changes to the schedule of service shall be provided in 
writing to the NCTC and shall be deemed a part of this Agreement without formal amendment to 
this Agreement. DCT A shall at all times be the final determiner of bus routes and schedules. 

3.6 Marketing and Promotions. NCTC shall be responsible for all student or user 
marketing and promotional activities related to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement. 
DCTA shall be consulted prior to any NCTC notice of promotional service that affects any level 
of service provided by DCT A pursuant to this Agreement. DCT A may assist NCTC in the NCTC 
marketing and promotional activities. 

3.7 Bus Stop Locations. NCTC shall be responsible for the installation of federal, 
state, or DCT A compliant bus stops, signage, related infrastructure and access thereto. This may 
include a bus stop pole and DCT A schedule. The maintenance of all bus stops, signage and 
related infrastructure on the NCTC campus or NCTC controlled facilities or property shall be the 
sole responsibility of NCTC. 

3.8 Shared Parking. DCTA and NCTC intend to utilize existing shared-use park and 
rides facilities currently leased by DCT A. If the provision of the Bus Service necessitates an 
increase in available parking and thus an increase in the DCTA lease cost of such facilities, the 
DCT A shall consult with NCTC regarding the necessity of the increase in the lease of such 
facilities, which affects NCTC including but not limited to art increase in space and costs. DCTA 
and NCTC shall mutually agree in writing regarding the petcentages each party shall pay under 
the shared-use park and ride facilities leases, which shall reasonably reflect the usage by each 
party .. 

DCTA/NCTC Inter-local Cooperation Agreement- Page 3 37832 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

138



3.9 Other Passengers. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as prohibiting 
passengers who are not NCTC students, faculty, or staff from using the bus services provided 
pursuant to this Agreement .All non-student, non-faculty and non-staff members shall pay a rider 
fare established by DCT A, from time to time which shall be used to reimburse NCTC in 
accordance with Paragraph 4.1 below� 

Article IV 
Compensation; Fees 

4.1 Bus Service Fees. (a) NCTC agrees to pay to DCTA for the Bus Service based on 
a "Revenue Hour of Service" which for purposes of this Agreement is defined as: (i) each hour 
that a vehicle is assigned to a route described in Exhibit "A" ( or as modified by DCT A from time 
to time as provided herein) minus the total amount of rider fees collected pursuant to Section 3.9 
above; (ii) the vehicle is available to the general public; and (iii) there is an expectation of 
carrying passengers, to be paid in the following amounts or rates: For Bus Services delivered 
from August 21, 2009 through and including August 20, 2010 NCTC shall pay DCTA $35.21 
per Revenue Hour of Service excluding the cost of fuel. Thereafter, the amount of the Revenue 
Hour of Service rate may be adjusted by the DCTA no more than 5% for any renewal term of 
this Agreement by DCTA providing NCTC written notice of such change at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the expiration of the then current term. 

(b) Each calendar month during the term of this Agreement, DCTA shall provide
NCTC a written invoice of 1/12 of the estimated annual compensation and costs due DCTA for 
Bus Service, which shall be paid by NCTC within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the invoice 
(the "Bus Service Estimate"). 

4.2 Fuel Costs. NCTC shall pay DCT A for actual fuel costs consumed or required 
for Bus Service provided under this Agreement. DCTA shall on a monthly basis provide a 
written iI1_voice to NCTC for the fuel cost charges incurred by the DCTA for the Bus Service for 
the previous ending month. 

4.3 Connect and Commuter Express Access Fee. NCTC shall pay DCTA a fixed 
fee in the amount of Eight Thousand and Noll 00 Dollars ($8,000.00) for each term of this 
Agreement (the "Connect and Commuter Express Access Fee") for universal access to the 
DCTA Connect and Commuter Express Bus Service by NCTC students, staff, and faculty 
payable in two (2) equal installments to be paid on the first day of October and the first day of 
February of each calendar year this Agreement is in effect. DCT A shall submit a written invoice 
to NCTC for payment at least thirty (30) days prior to when payment is due, which includes the 
Connect and Commuter Express Access Fee which is due on the first day of October and the first 
day of February of each term of this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated prior 
to the expiration of the then current term NCTC shall be entitled to a refund of a prorated portion 
of the annual Connect and Commuter Express Access Fee based on the number of months then 
remaining under the current term to reflect the months in which access for NCTC students, staff, 
and faculty to use or ride DCTA Connect and Commutet Express Bus Service will not be 
available under the then current term of the Agreement. 

DCTA/NCTC Inter-local Cooperation Agreement- Page 4 37832 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

139



4.4 Reconciliation. DCTA will reconcile the actual Revenue Hours of Service 
provided for the Local Connect Bus Service with the monthly Local Connect Bus Service 
Estimate on or before the last day of each month of January, June, and August of each calendar 
year. DCTA will submit an invoice for additional costs if the reconciliation determines that the 
monthly estimate payments for the Local Connect Bus Service Fee previously paid was less than 
the actual amount owed for such service. If the actual Revenue Hours of Service provided by 
DCT A for the Local Connect Service was less than the amount of the Revenue Hours of Service 
used for the calculation of the monthly estimate payments paid to DCTA, a credit will be 
provided to NCTC for surplus amount. If a credit is owed to NCTC based upon a final 
reconciliation at the end of the term of the Agreement, DCT A will refund such for the 
overpayment amount within thirty (30) days after such final reconciliation. 

Article V 
Miscellaneous 

5.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement 
between the parties and supersedes any prior understandings written or oral agreements between 
the parties with respect to this subject �atter. 

5.2 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the 
prior written consent of the other party. 

5.3 Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions regarding assignment, this 
Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties to it and their respective 
heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and permitted assigns. 

5.4 Governing Law. The laws of the State of texas shall govern this Agreement; 
and venue for any action concerning this Agreement shall exclusively be in the State District 
Court of Denton County, Texas. The parties agree to submit to the personal and subject matter 
jurisdiction of said court. 

5.5 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written 
agreement of the parties. 

5.6 Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not effect any other provisions, and the 
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never 
been contained in it. 

5.7 Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be sent 
by fust class mail, overnight courier or by confirmed telefax or facsimile to the address specified 
below, or to such other party or address as either party may designate in writing, and shall be 
deemed received three (3) days after delivery set forth herein: 

DCTA/NCTC Inter-local Cooperation Agreement- Page 5 37832 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

140



If intended for DCT A: 

Attention: Jim Witt 
President 
Denton County Transportation Authority 
1660 South Sternrnons, Suite 250 
Lewisville, Texas 75067 
972-221-4600 Telephone
972-221-4601 Facsimile

With copy to: 

Peter G. Smith 
Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, L.L.P. 
1800 Lincoln Plaza 
500 North Akard 
Dallas, Texas 75201 

If intended NCTC: 
Roy Culberson 
North Central Texas College/Corinth Campus 
1500 North Corinth Street 
Corinth, Texas 76208-5408 

With copy to: 

Robbie Baugh and Dr. Janie Neighbors 
North Central Texas College 
1525 West California Street 
Gainesville, Texas 76240 

5.8 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in separate 
counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such 
counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Each counterpart may consist 
of any number of copies hereof each signed by less than all, but together signed by all of the 
parties hereto. 

5.9 Exhibits. The Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein. 

5 .10 Recitals. The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein and made a part 
hereof for all purposes. 

5 .11 Authorization. Each party represents that it has full capacity and authority to 
grant all rights and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under this Agreement. 

DCTA/NCTC Inter-local Cooperation Agreement- Page 6 37832 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

141



5.12 Survival of Covenants. Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
obligations of the parties, as well as any rights and benefits of the parties, pertaining to a period 
of time following the termination of this Agreement shall survive termination hereof. 

5.13 Approval of Parties. Whenever this Agreement requires or permits the approval or 
consent to be given by a party, the parties agree that such approval or consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

5.14 No Third-Party Beneficiary. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as 
creating or giving rise to any rights of third-parties or any persons other than the Parties hereto. 

5.15 Third-Party Subcontractors. DCTA has the right to contract with a third-party 
or other contractors to perform all or any part of the service under this Agreement. The terms 
and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding on such third-party contractors. 

(Signature to Follow) 

DCTA/NCTC Inter-local Cooperation Agreement- Page 7 37832 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

142



By: 

�o�

EXECUTED this _\_��_ day of Al>�u�\ , 2009.

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

By:_�"-=-<-�.------------
J�-

EXECUTED this �\_2. __ day of �10:;,l 

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COLLEGE 

By:��
Name: Eddie Hadlock 
Title: President

, 2009. 

DCTA/NCTC Inter-local Cooperation Agreement- Page 8 37832 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

143



Block 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

z 

z 
(!) 
(/) .. 

6:30 AM 

0 
0::: 
<( 
>
UJ 
> 
<( 
UJ 
....I 

6:40 AM 

ct! 
2 

C: ..5!:! 
Cl) C') 

"C C: 
- ct! 
0 ·-

(!) i= 
7:00 AM 

8:00 AM 

9:00 AM 

10:00 AM 

11:00AM 

12:00 PM 

1:00 PM 

2:00 PM 

3:00 PM 

4:00 PM 

Average school days per long semester 

Total Hours per long semester 

Total Miles per long semester 

(.) 
1-
(.) 
z 

7:10 AM 

8:10 AM 

9:10 AM 

10:10 AM 

11 :10 AM 

12:10 PM 

1:10 PM 

2:10 PM 

3:10 PM 

4:10 PM 

89 

890:00:00 

30,171 

Cl) 
Cl)� 
:= 0::: 

i:i � 
·- �:s: ...
Cl) ct! 

....I a.

Exhibit A 

Schedule 

7:30 AM 

8:30 AM 

9:30 AM 

10:30 AM 

11:30AM 

12:30 PM 

1:30 PM 

2:30 PM 

3:30 PM 

4:30 PM 

Cl) 
Cl)� 
:= 0::: 

i:i � 
·- �:s: ...
Cl) ct! 

....I a.

7:30 AM 

8:30 AM 

9:30 AM 

10:30 AM 

11:30AM 

12:30 PM 

1:30 PM 

2:30 PM 

3:30 PM 

4:30 PM 

(.) 
1-
(.) 
z 

7:50 AM 

8:50 AM 

9:50 AM 

10:50 AM 

11:50 AM 

12:50 PM 

1 :50 PM 

2:50 PM 

3:50 PM 

4:50 PM 

ct! 
2 

C: ..5!:! 
Cl) O') 

"C C: 
- ct! 
0 ·-

(!) i= 
8:00 AM 

9:00 AM 

10:00 AM 

11:00 AM 

12:00 PM 

1 :00 PM 

2:00 PM 

3:00 PM 

4:00 PM 

5:00 PM 

0 
0::: 

� 
UJ 
> 
c2 
0::: 
<( 

5:20 PM 

....I (/) 
<( 0::: 
I- ::::, 
oo 
I- :r:

10:00:00 

(/) 
UJ 
....I 

� 
37 

33 

33 

33 

33 

33 

33 

33 

34 

37 

339 

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 2

144



LAKEWOOD
VILLAGE

CARROLLTON

HASLET

AUBREY

COPPELL

JUSTIN

NEW FAIRVIEW

ROANOKE

SOUTHLAKE

PILOT POINT

DENTON

GRAPEVINE

LEWISVILLE

CORINTH

HIGHLAND
VILLAGE

KRUGERVILLE

KRUM

LAKE DALLAS

OAK POINT

SANGER

ARGYLE

DALLAS

FORT WORTH

CELINA

FRISCO

PLANO

THE COLONY

LITTLE
ELM

Lewisville
Lake

Ray Roberts Lake

Grapevine Lake

DENTON�COUNTY

DALLAS�COUNTY

DENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTYDENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTY

D
E

N
TO

N
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

W
IS

E
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

D
E

N
TO

N
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

C
O

LL
IN

�C
O

U
N

T
Y

COOKE�COUNTY
DENTON�COUNTY

MedPark
Station
2, 4, NC-N

North Carrollton/Frankford
(DART Station)

Downtown Carrollton
(DART Station)

1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, NCTC, TWU, UNT

Downtown Denton Transit
Center (DDTC)

HVCS, HVCOD, NC-N

Highland Village/
Lewisville Lake Station

22

Old Town
Station

21, 22

Hebron
Station

DART

Trinity Mills
Station

Fox Ave

N Sum
m

it Ave
N Sum

m
it Ave

W Main St

Lake Park RdOa
krid

ge Blvd

FM 407

S M
ill St

E Purnell St

W Jones St

Bellaire Blvd

 S Old Orchard Ln

He
bro

n Pk
wy

E Main St

Valley Pkw
y

Main St

Main St

N M
ill St

Ga
rd

en
 R

id
ge

 B
lv

d

College Pkwy

Valley Ridge Blvd

Church St

Kealy Ave

M
cG

ee
 L

n

Ki
rk

pa
tri

ck
 L

n

W Round Grove Rd
E Round Grove Rd

E Corpo
ra

te
Dr

Vista Ridge Mall Dr

Bennett Ln

Ch
in

n
Ch

ap
el

Rd

Justin Rd Justin Rd

Long
Prairie Rd

Harlington Dr
Brazos Blvd

Ga
rden Ridge Blvd

Vi
lla

ge
Pk

w
y

Highland Shores Blvd

Hi
gh

la
nd

 V
illa

ge
 R

d

Highland Village Rd

W University Dr

Barcelona St

M
esa

Dr

N
Bo

nn
ie

Br
ae

St
S

Bo
nn

ie
Br

ae
St

Scripture St

E Hickory StW Hickory St

E McKinney St

E McKinney St

E Sycamore St

W Oak St W Oak St

Alliance Blvd

Eagle Pkwy

Allia
nce

Gate
way

Fw
y

Keller Haslet Rd
Westport Pkwy

Ol
d

Bl
ue

M
ou

nd
Rd

He
rit

ag
e

Pk
wy

S
W

oo
dr

ow
Ln

Dallas Dr

B
el

lA
ve

S
Br

ad
sh

aw
St

Ra
ilr

oa
d

Av
e

Du
nc

an
St

Wilson St

Morse St

Bu
sh

ey
St

Ne
w

to
n

St

Br
in

ke
rR

d

Colorado
Blvd

Lil
lia

n
M

ille
r P

kw
y

Med
pa

rk
Dr

State
School Rd

Robinson Rd

Po
st

Oa
k Dr

Teasley Ln

Teasley Ln

Shady Shores Rd

Co
rin

th
St

Walton Dr
Corinth Pkwy

W Shady Shores Rd

S
Sh

ad
y

Sh
or

es
Rd

Ga
rz

a
Rd

Main St

Cross Timbers R
d

Timber Creek Rd

W Corporate Dr

Edm
onds Ln

Valley View Dr

M
acArthur Blvd

Oa
kb

en
d

Dr

Uecke r Dr

De
nt

on
Ta

p
Rd

Sa
m

Ra
yb

ur
n T

oll
wa

y

Stemmons Fwy

W Hebron Pkwy

Old
Denton

Rd

Rosemeade Pkwy

Di
ck

er
so

n
Pk

w
y

Pr
es

ide
nt

Ge
or

ge
Bu

sh
Tp

k

President George Bush Tpk

Whitlock Ln

Broadw
ay

St

Keller Springs Rd

Lu
na

Rd

W Belt Line Rd

E Belt Line Rd
N

Jo
se

y
Ln

M
cC

oy
Rd

Ke
lly

Bl
vd

Ke
lly

Bl
vd

Frankford Rd

M
ar

sh
Ln

N
Jo

se
y

Ln

Keller Springs Rd

M
id

w
ay

Rd

Da
lla

s
No

rth
To

llw
ay

Da
lla

s
No

rth
To

llw
ay

Dalla
s Nort

h Tol
lway

Da
lla

s
Pk

w
y

Plano Pkwy

Parker Rd

Pl
an

o
Pk

w
y

Sam Rayburn Tollway

N
Josey Ln

M
ain

St

Pa
ig

e
RdS Colony Blvd

N Colony Blvd

Old Alton Rd

Hi
llt

op
Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

John W. Carpenter Fwy

W Byron Nelson Blvd

Avondale Haslet Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

No
rth

Fw
y

Panther Creek Pkwy

Cotton Gin Rd

Te
el

Pk
w

y

Lebanon Rd

Main St

W Lebanon Rd

Le
ga

cy
Dr

Stonebrook Pkwy

Eldorado Pkwy

S
M

ai
n

St

E
Sh

er
m

an
Dr

W Sherman Dr

Spring Hill Rd

E Cha
pm

an
Dr

W Chapman Dr

N
5th

St

Ho
pk

in
s

Rd

FM
15

6

Ganzer Rd W

Milam Rd E

Fir
st

St McCart St

W University Dr

Spring Side Rd

W
es

tc
ou

rt
Rd

Un
de

rw
oo

d
Rd

Airport Rd

Fo
rt W

ort
h Dr

Country
Club Rd

Co
un

try
Cl

ub
Rd

Te
as

le
y

Ln

Hobson Ln

E University Dr

Lo
cu

st
 S

t
El

m
 S

t

E Windsor Dr

Hercules Ln

N
Lo

cu
st

St

Ol
d

No
rth

Rd

E
Sh

er
m

an
DrN Elm St

Meadows Oak Dr

Parkridge
Dr

Spencer Rd

W
Heb

ro
n

Pk
w

y

Unicorn
Lake Blvd

Wind River Ln

Morse St

Sh
ad

y Oaks Dr

S
Tr

in
ity

Rd

Grissom Rd

Mills Rd

N
M

ay
hi

ll
Rd

S
M

ay
hi

ll
Rd

Oriole Ln

Ca
rd

in
al

Dr

Au
dr

a
Ln

Fa
llm

ea
do

w
St

W Windsor Dr

St
ua

rt
Rd

Sa
m

Ba
ss

Bl
vd

Londonderry Ln

Mingo Rd

Pe
rta

in
St

M
oz

in
go

St

N
Be

ll
Av

e

Coronado Dr

Cobblestone Row

Ev
er

s
Pk

w
y

Gardenview St

Charlotte St

S
Av

e
G

W Prairie St

No
rth

 Te
xa

s 
Bl

vd

S
Av

e
C

S
W

el
ch

St

W Highland St

S
Ca

rro
ll

Bl
vd

W Mulberry St

Eagle Dr

Ri
dg

ev
ie

w
Dr

Lakeway
Dr

Lakepointe Dr

W
aters

Ridge Dr

Lakeside Cir

S
Railroad St

La
ke

y
St

Vintage Blvd

N
Ru

dd
el

lS
t

N 
Ol

d 
Or

ch
ar

d 
Ln

Pr
es

id
en

tG
eo

rg
e

Bu
sh

Tp
k

Crescent StFu
lto

n
St

M
al

on
e

St

Sa
n Ja

cin
to Blvd

Se
llm

ey
er

 L
n

C ivic Cir

W College St

M
anco Rd

Surf St

Luther Ln

Pa
rk

er
 S

qu
ar

e 
Rd

380

380

380

77

377

377

377

377

377

377

377

77

380

380

35E

35E

35E

35E

35W

35W

35

35

288

121

121
114

114

114

170

121

121

121

26

288

Vista Ridge
Mall

Walmart

Addison
Airport

Walmart

Lewisville
High School

Medical Center
of LewisvillePublic

Library

Senior
Citizen
Center

Recreation
Center

PediPlaceNorth Central
Texas College

Flower Mound
Campus

Zone
Action

Park

University
Village

Shopping
Center

Fort Worth
Alliance
Airport

TCC Hadley CEATL
Alliance Corporate
Training Center

Alliance Opportunity
Center

Galderma
Laboratories LP

Presbyterian
HospitalTexas Health

Presbyterian
Park & Ride

Denton
Enterprise

Airport

Medical City Denton

Integrity Transitional
Hospital

Mayhill Hospital

Univ. of
North Texas

UNT
Apogee
Stadium

Fouts
Field

North Central
Texas College

City Hall East
Courthouse Square

Emily Fowler Library
Senior Center

North
Library

Texas
Woman’s

University

Denton
High 
School

Kroger
Rayzor
Ranch

North Texas
Fairgrounds

UNT Discovery
Park

Denton Housing Authority

County Courthouse

Denton County
Admin. Annex

Camp
Copass

Ryan
High
School

MLK Center

Social
Security

Office

Golden
Triangle

Mall

Fred Moore
High School

Texas
Workforce
Solutions

City
Hall

Big Sandy
Park

Lake
Park

Lake Environmental
Learning Area

Central
Park

Indian Creek
Golf Club

Memorial
Park

Rustic
Timbers

Park

Clear Creek
Natural Heritage

Center

Sycamore
Bend Park

Fred Moore Park

Evers
Park

North Lakes
Park

Oakmont
Country

Club

Corinth
Community

Park

Willow
Grove
Park

Copperas
Branch
Park

Oakland
Park

Hickory
Creek
Park

Pilot
Knoll
Park

Westlake
Park

Briercliff
Park

0 1 2 3 4 5

Miles

0 1 2 3

Miles

To Fort Worth
(See inset for 63/64)

To Carrollton
& Dallas

1

2

3

21,22

North Central Texas College South

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

Non-Stop Service

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

HospitalPoint of Interest

A-train StationTimepoint

Hospital

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Timepoint HVCOD Zone

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

Lyft Zone

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

1 1

11

1

1

1

1

Timepoint1
A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

Hospital

Point of Interest

1,2,3

Legend

NORTH NORTE

NCTC South Schedule: Friday

NCTC South Schedule: Monday-Thursday

3

NCTC
Flower
Mound

3

NCTC
Flower
Mound

2

Summit
at

Civic

2

Summit
at

Civic

2

Summit
at

Civic

2

Summit
at

Civic

1

HV/LL
Station

(Arrives)

1

HV/LL
Station

(Arrives)

1

HV/LL
Station

(Departs)

1

HV/LL
Station

(Departs)

6:40 
7:29 
8:14 
9:03 
9:48 

10:37 
11:22 
12:11 
12:56 

1:45 
2:30 
3:19 
4:04 
5:19 

6:50 
7:39 
8:24 
9:13 
9:58 

10:47
11:32 
12:22 
1:06 
1:55 
2:40 
3:29 
4:14 
5:29 

7:02 
7:51 
8:36 
9:25 

10:10 
10:59 
11:44 
12:33 

1:18 
2:07 
2:52 
3:41 
4:26 
5:41 

7:14 
8:03 
8:48 
9:37 

10:22 
11:11 
11:56 
12:45 
1:30 
2:19 
3:04 
3:53 
4:38 
5:53 

7:25 
8:14 
8:59 
9:48 

10:33 
11:22 
12:07 
12:56 

1:41 
2:30 
3:15 
4:04 
4:49 
6:04 

6:40 
7:29 
8:14 
9:03 
9:48 

10:37 
11:22 
12:11 
12:56 

1:45 
2:30 
3:19 

6:50 
7:39 
8:24 
9:13 
9:58 

10:47
11:32 
12:22 
1:06 
1:55 
2:40 
3:29 

7:02 
7:51 
8:36 
9:25 

10:10 
10:59 
11:44 
12:33 

1:18 
2:07 
2:52 
3:41 

7:14 
8:03 
8:48 
9:37 

10:22 
11:11 
11:56 
12:45 
1:30 
2:19 
3:04 
3:53 

7:25 
8:14 
8:59 
9:48 

10:33 
11:22 
12:07 
12:56 

1:41 
2:30 
3:15 
4:04 

A
M

A
M

PM
PM

Outbound from Highland Village/Lewisville Lake Station

Outbound from Highland Village/Lewisville Lake Station

ID: 124101 ID: 770300 ID: 163102 ID: 770300 ID: 124101

ID: 124101 ID: 770300 ID: 163102 ID: 770300 ID: 124101

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 3

145



LAKEWOOD
VILLAGE

CARROLLTON

HASLET

AUBREY

COPPELL

JUSTIN

NEW FAIRVIEW

ROANOKE

SOUTHLAKE

PILOT POINT

DENTON

GRAPEVINE

LEWISVILLE

CORINTH

HIGHLAND
VILLAGE

KRUGERVILLE

KRUM

LAKE DALLAS

OAK POINT

SANGER

ARGYLE

DALLAS

FORT WORTH

CELINA

FRISCO

PLANO

THE COLONY

LITTLE
ELM

Lewisville
Lake

Ray Roberts Lake

Grapevine Lake

DENTON�COUNTY

DALLAS�COUNTY

DENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTYDENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTY

D
E

N
TO

N
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

W
IS

E
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

D
E

N
TO

N
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

C
O

LL
IN

�C
O

U
N

T
Y

COOKE�COUNTY
DENTON�COUNTY

MedPark
Station
2, 4, NC-N

North Carrollton/Frankford
(DART Station)

Downtown Carrollton
(DART Station)

1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, NCTC, TWU, UNT

Downtown Denton Transit
Center (DDTC)

HVCS, HVCOD, NC-N

Highland Village/
Lewisville Lake Station

22

Old Town
Station

21, 22

Hebron
Station

DART

Trinity Mills
Station

Fox Ave

N Sum
m

it Ave
N Sum

m
it Ave

W Main St

Lake Park RdOa
krid

ge Blvd

FM 407

S M
ill St

E Purnell St

W Jones St

Bellaire Blvd

 S Old Orchard Ln

He
bro

n P
kw

y

E Main St

Valley Pkw
y

Main St

Main St

N M
ill St

Ga
rd

en
 R

id
ge

 B
lv

d

College Pkwy

Valley Ridge Blvd

Church St

Kealy Ave

M
cG

ee
 L

n

Ki
rk

pa
tri

ck
 L

n

W Round Grove Rd
E Round Grove Rd

E Corpo
ra

te
 D

r

Vista Ridge Mall Dr

Bennett Ln

Ch
in

n 
Ch

ap
el

 R
d

Justin Rd Justin Rd

Long Prairie Rd

Harlington Dr
Brazos Blvd

Ga
rden Ridge Blvd

Vi
lla

ge
 P

kw
y

Highland Shores Blvd

Hi
gh

la
nd

 V
illa

ge
 R

d

Highland Village Rd

W University Dr

Barcelona St

M
esa Dr

 N
 B

on
ni

e 
Br

ae
 S

t
S 

Bo
nn

ie
 B

ra
e 

St

Scripture St

E Hickory StW Hickory St

E McKinney St

E McKinney St

E Sycamore St

W Oak St W Oak St

Alliance Blvd

Eagle Pkwy

Allia
nce 

Gate
way 

Fw
y

Keller Haslet Rd
Westport Pkwy

Ol
d 

Bl
ue

 M
ou

nd
 R

d

He
rit

ag
e 

Pk
wy

S 
W

oo
dr

ow
 L

n

Dallas Dr

B
el

l A
ve

S 
Br

ad
sh

aw
 S

t

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Av
e

Du
nc

an
 S

t

Wilson St

Morse St

Bu
sh

ey
 S

t

Ne
w

to
n 

St

Br
in

ke
r R

d

Colorado Blvd

Lil
lia

n 
M

ille
r P

kw
y

Med
pa

rk 
Dr

State  School Rd

Robinson Rd

Po
st 

Oa
k D

r

Teasley Ln

Teasley Ln

Shady Shores Rd

Co
rin

th
 S

t

Walton Dr
Corinth Pkwy

W Shady Shores Rd

S 
Sh

ad
y 

Sh
or

es
 R

d

Ga
rz

a 
Rd

Main St

Cross Timbers R
d

Timber Creek Rd

W Corporate Dr

Edm
onds Ln

Valley View Dr

M
acArthur Blvd

Oa
kb

en
d 

Dr

Uecke r Dr

De
nt

on
 Ta

p 
Rd

Sa
m

 R
ay

bu
rn

 To
llw

ay

Stemmons Fwy

W Hebron Pkwy

Old Denton Rd

Rosemeade Pkwy

Di
ck

er
so

n 
Pk

w
y

Pr
es

ide
nt

 G
eo

rg
e 

Bu
sh

 Tp
k

President George Bush Tpk

Whitlock Ln

Broadw
ay St

Keller Springs Rd

Lu
na

 R
d

W Belt Line Rd

E Belt Line Rd

N 
Jo

se
y 

Ln

M
cC

oy
 R

d

Ke
lly

 B
lv

d

Ke
lly

 B
lv

d

Frankford Rd

M
ar

sh
 L

n

N 
Jo

se
y 

Ln

Keller Springs Rd

M
id

w
ay

 R
d

Da
lla

s 
No

rth
 To

llw
ay

Da
lla

s 
No

rth
 To

llw
ay

Dalla
s N

ort
h To

llw
ay

Da
lla

s 
Pk

w
y

Plano Pkwy

Parker Rd

Pl
an

o 
Pk

w
y

Sam Rayburn Tollway

N Josey Ln

M
ain St

Pa
ig

e 
RdS Colony Blvd

N Colony Blvd

Old Alton Rd

Hi
llt

op
 R

d

John W. Carpenter Fwy

John W. Carpenter Fwy

W Byron Nelson Blvd

Avondale Haslet Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

No
rth

 F
w

y

Panther Creek Pkwy

Cotton Gin Rd

Te
el

 P
kw

y

Lebanon Rd

Main St

W Lebanon Rd

Le
ga

cy
 D

r

Stonebrook Pkwy

Eldorado Pkwy

S 
M

ai
n 

St

E 
Sh

er
m

an
 D

r

W Sherman Dr

Spring Hill Rd

E C
ha

pm
an

 Dr

W Chapman Dr

N 5th St

Ho
pk

in
s 

Rd

FM
 15

6

Ganzer Rd W

Milam Rd E

Fir
st

 S
t McCart St

W University Dr

Spring Side Rd

W
es

tc
ou

rt 
Rd

Un
de

rw
oo

d 
Rd

Airport Rd

Fo
rt W

ort
h D

r

Country 
Club Rd

Co
un

try
 C

lu
b 

Rd

Te
as

le
y 

Ln

Hobson Ln

E University Dr

Lo
cu

st
 S

t
El

m
 S

t
E Windsor Dr

Hercules Ln

N 
Lo

cu
st

 S
t

Ol
d 

No
rth

 R
d

E 
Sh

er
m

an
 D

rN Elm St

Meadows Oak Dr

Parkridge Dr

Spencer Rd

W Heb
ro

n 
Pk

w
y

Unicorn L ake Blvd

Wind River Ln

Morse St

Sh
ad

y Oaks Dr

S 
Tr

in
ity

 R
d

Grissom Rd

Mills Rd

N 
M

ay
hi

ll 
Rd

S 
M

ay
hi

ll 
Rd

Oriole Ln

Ca
rd

in
al

 D
r

Au
dr

a 
Ln

Fa
llm

ea
do

w
 S

t

W Windsor Dr

St
ua

rt 
Rd

Sa
m

 B
as

s 
Bl

vd

Londonderry Ln

Mingo Rd

Pe
rta

in
 S

t

M
oz

in
go

 S
t

N 
Be

ll 
Av

e
Coronado Dr

Cobblestone Row

Ev
er

s 
Pk

w
y

Gardenview St

Charlotte St

S 
Av

e 
G

W Prairie St

No
rth

 Te
xa

s 
Bl

vd

S 
Av

e 
C

S 
W

el
ch

 S
t

W Highland St

S 
Ca

rro
ll 

Bl
vd

W Mulberry St

Eagle Dr

Ri
dg

ev
ie

w
 D

r

Lakeway Dr

Lakepointe Dr

W
aters  Ridge Dr

Lakeside Cir

S Railroad St

La
ke

y 
St

Vintage Blvd

N 
Ru

dd
el

l S
t

N 
Ol

d 
Or

ch
ar

d 
Ln

Pr
es

id
en

t G
eo

rg
e 

Bu
sh

 T
pk

Crescent StFu
lto

n 
St

M
al

on
e 

St

Sa
n J

aci
nto Blvd

Se
llm

ey
er

 L
n

C ivic Cir

W College St

M
anco Rd

Surf St

Luther Ln

Pa
rk

er
 S

qu
ar

e 
Rd

380

380

380

77

377

377

377

377

377

377

377

77

380

380

35E

35E

35E

35E

35W

35W

35

35

288

121

121
114

114

114

170

121

121

121

26

288

Vista Ridge
Mall

Walmart

Addison
Airport

Walmart

Lewisville
High School

Medical Center
of LewisvillePublic

Library

Senior
Citizen
Center

Recreation
Center

PediPlaceNorth Central
Texas College

Flower Mound
Campus

Zone
Action

Park

University
Village

Shopping
Center

Fort Worth
Alliance
Airport

TCC Hadley CEATL
Alliance Corporate
Training Center

Alliance Opportunity
Center

Galderma
Laboratories LP

Presbyterian
HospitalTexas Health

Presbyterian
Park & Ride

Denton
Enterprise

Airport

Medical City Denton

Integrity Transitional
Hospital

Mayhill Hospital

Univ. of
North Texas

UNT
Apogee
Stadium

Fouts
Field

North Central
Texas College

City Hall East
Courthouse Square

Emily Fowler Library
Senior Center

North
Library

Texas
Woman’s

University

Denton
High 
School

Kroger
Rayzor
Ranch

North Texas
Fairgrounds

UNT Discovery
Park

Denton Housing Authority

County Courthouse

Denton County
Admin. Annex

Camp
Copass

Ryan
High
School

MLK Center

Social
Security

Office

Golden
Triangle

Mall

Fred Moore
High School

Texas
Workforce
Solutions

City
Hall

Big Sandy
Park

Lake
Park

Lake Environmental
Learning Area

Central
Park

Indian Creek
Golf Club

Memorial
Park

Rustic
Timbers

Park

Clear Creek
Natural Heritage

Center

Sycamore
Bend Park

Fred Moore Park

Evers
Park

North Lakes
Park

Oakmont
Country

Club

Corinth
Community

Park

Willow
Grove
Park

Copperas
Branch
Park

Oakland
Park

Hickory
Creek
Park

Pilot
Knoll
Park

Westlake
Park

Briercliff
Park

0 1 2 3 4 5

Miles

0 1 2 3

Miles

To Fort Worth
(See inset for 63/64)

To Carrollton
& Dallas

1

2

3

21,22

LAKEWOOD
VILLAGE

CARROLLTON

HASLET

AUBREY

COPPELL

JUSTIN

NEW FAIRVIEW

ROANOKE

SOUTHLAKE

PILOT POINT

DENTON

GRAPEVINE

LEWISVILLE

CORINTH

HIGHLAND
VILLAGE

KRUGERVILLE

KRUM

LAKE DALLAS

OAK POINT

SANGER

ARGYLE

DALLAS

FORT WORTH

CELINA

FRISCO

PLANO

THE COLONY

LITTLE
ELM

Lewisville
Lake

Lewisville
Lake

Ray Roberts Lake

Grapevine Lake

DENTON�COUNTY

DALLAS�COUNTY

DENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTYDENTON�COUNTY

TARRANT�COUNTY

D
E

N
TO

N
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

W
IS

E
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

D
E

N
TO

N
�C

O
U

N
T

Y

C
O

LL
IN

�C
O

U
N

T
Y

COOKE�COUNTY
DENTON�COUNTY

MedPark
Station
2, 4

North Carrollton/Frankford
(DART Station)

Downtown Carrollton
(DART Station)

1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8

Downtown Denton
Transit Center (DDTC)

22

Old Town
Station

21, 22

Hebron
Station

DART

Trinity Mills
Station

HVCS, HVCOD, NC-S

Highland Village/
Lewisville Lake Station

Hedgerow Ln

Lake Park RdOa

kridge Blvd

W Jones St

E Main St

N M
ill St

Ke
al

y 
Av

e

Justin Rd

Highland Village Rd

Hickory St
Sycamore St

Alliance Blvd

Eagle Pkwy

Allia
nce 

Gate
way 

Fw
y

Keller Haslet Rd
Westport Pkwy

Ol
d 

Bl
ue

 M
ou

nd
 R

d

He
rit

ag
e 

Pk
wy

S 
W

oo
dr

ow
 L

n

Dallas Dr

Be
ll A

v e

S 
Br

ad
sh

aw
 S

t

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Av
e

Wilson St
Morse St

Bu
sh

ey
 S

t

Br
in

ke
r R

d

Colorado  Blvd

Li
llia

n 
M

ille
r P

kw
y

Med
pa

rk 
Dr

State Scho
o l Rd

Robinson Rd

Po
st 

Oak Dr

Teasley Ln

Shady Shores RdCo
rin

th
 S

t
Walton Dr

Corinth Pkwy

W Shady Shores Rd

S 
Sh

ad
y 

Sh
or

es
 R

d

Ga
rz

a 
Rd

Main St

Stemmons Fwy

Old Denton Rd Rosemeade Pkwy

Di
ck

er
so

n 
Pk

w
y

Pr
es

ide
nt

 G
eo

rg
e 

Bu
sh

 Tp
k

President George Bush 

Whitlock Ln

Broadw
ay St

Keller Springs Rd

Lu
na

 R
d

W Belt Line Rd
E Belt Line Rd

N 
Jo

se
y 

Ln

M
cC

oy
 R

d

Ke
lly

 B
lv

d

Ke
lly

 B
lv

d

Frankford Rd

M
ar

sh
 L

n

N 
Jo

se
y 

Ln

Keller Springs Rd
M

id
w

ay
 R

d

Da
lla

s 
No

rth
 To

llw
ay

Da
lla

s 
No

rth
 To

llw
ay

Dalla
s N

ort
h To

llw
ay

Da
lla

s 
Pk

w
y

Plano Pkwy

Parker Rd

Pl
an

o 
Pk

w
y

Sam Rayburn Tollway

N Josey Ln

M
ain St

Pa
ig

e 
RdS Colony Blvd

N Colony Blvd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

John W. Carpenter Fwy

W
 Byron Nelson Blvd

Avondale Haslet Rd

John W. Carpenter Fwy

No
rth

 F
w

y

Panther Creek Pkwy

Cotton Gin Rd

Te
el

 P
kw

y

Lebanon Rd

Main St

W Lebanon Rd

Le
ga

cy
 D

r

Stonebrook Pkwy

Eldorado Pkwy

S 
M

ai
n 

St

E 
Sh

er
m

an
 D

r

W Sherman Dr

Spring Hill Rd

E C
ha

pm
an

 Dr

W Chapman Dr

N 5th St

Ho
pk

in
s 

Rd

FM
 15

6

Ganzer Rd W

Milam Rd E

Fir
st

 S
t

McCart St

W University Dr

Spring Side Rd

W
es

tc
ou

rt 
Rd

Fo
rt W

ort
h D

r

E University Dr

Lo
cu

st
 S

t
El

m
 S

t

E 
Sh

er
m

an
 D

rN Elm St

Lake Sharon Dr

Spencer Rd

Wind River Ln

Sh

ady Oaks Dr

S 
M

ay
hi

ll 
Rd

W Windsor Dr

N 
Be

ll 
Av

e

Lakeside Cir

S Railroad St

Pr
es

id
en

t  G
eo

rg
e 

Bu
sh

 Tp

k

Sa
n 

Ja
cin

to Blvd

Garden Ridge Blvd

Church Dr

Meadowview Dr

Teasley Dr

Turbeville Dr

Hickory Creek Rd Carlisle Dr

380

380

380

77

377

377

377

377

377

377

377

77

380

380

35E

35E

35E

35W

35W

35

35

288

121

121114

114

114

170

121

121

121

26

288

Addison
Airport

Fort Worth
Alliance
Airport

TCC Hadley CEATL
Alliance Corporate
Training Center

Alliance Opportunity
Center

Galderma
Laboratories LP

Denton
Enterprise

Airport

Medical City Denton

Integrity Transitional
Hospital

Mayhill Hospital

North Central
Texas College

City Hall East

Courthouse Square

Emily Fowler Library
Senior Center

Texas
Woman’s

University

Denton Housing Authority

County Courthouse

MLK Center

Social
Security
Office

Golden
Triangle

Mall

Fred Moore
High School

Texas
Workforce
Solutions

Big Sandy
Park

Lake
Park

Lake Environmental
Learning Area

Indian Creek
Golf Club

Clear Creek
Natural Heritage

Center

Sycamore
Bend Park

Fred Moore Park

North Lakes
Park

Oakmont
Country

Club

Corinth
Community

Park

Willow
Grove
Park

Copperas
Branch
Park

Oakland
Park

Hickory
Creek
ParkPilot

Knoll
Park

Westlake
Park

Briercliff
Park

0 1 2 3 4 5

Miles

0 1 2 3

Miles

To Carrollton
& Dallas

1

4

3

2

Help us conserve! Please return this schedule to the rack when you are finished, or keep it for future use.

DCTA may conduct schedule modifications throughout the year. Visit RideDCTA.net for the latest schedules and maps.

North Central Texas College North

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

Non-Stop Service

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

HospitalPoint of Interest

A-train StationTimepoint

Hospital

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Timepoint HVCOD Zone

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

Lyft Zone

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

1 1

11

1

1

1

1

Timepoint1
A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

Hospital

Point of Interest

1,2,3

Legend

NORTH NORTE

NCTC North Schedule: Friday 

NCTC North Schedule: Monday-Thursday

1

DDTC
(Departs)

1

DDTC
(Departs)

1

DDTC
(Arrives)

1

DDTC
(Arrives)

3

NCTC
Corinth

3

NCTC
Corinth

3

NCTC
Corinth

3

NCTC
Corinth

2

MedPark
Station

2

MedPark
Station

2

MedPark
Station

2

MedPark
Station

4

HV/LL 
Station

(Arrives)

4

HV/LL
Station

(Arrives)

4

HV/LL
Station

(Departs)

4

HV/LL
Station

(Departs)

6:40 
8:14 
9:48 

11:22 
12:56 
2:30 
4:30 

—

6:55 
8:29 

10:03 
11:37 
1:11 
2:45 
4:45

— 

7:10 
8:44 

10:28 
11:52 
1:26 
3:00 
5:00

— 

7:25 
8:59 

10:33 
12:07 

1:41 
3:15 
5:15

— 

6:40 
8:14 
9:48 

11:22 
12:56 
2:30 

6:55 
8:29 

10:03 
11:37 
1:11 
2:45 

7:10 
8:44 

10:18 
11:52 
1:26 
3:00 

7:25 
8:59 

10:33 
12:07 

1:41 
3:15 

Outbound from DDTC

Outbound from DDTC

Inbound to DDTC

Inbound to DDTC

A
M

A
M

PM
PM

7:29 
9:03 

10:37 
12:11 
1:45 
3:19 
5:19
6:04 

7:44 
9:18 

10:52 
12:26 
2:00 
3:34 
5:34
6:25 

7:59 
9:33 

11:07 
12:41 
2:15 
3:49 
5:49
6:40 

8:14 
9:48 

11:22 
12:56 
2:30 
4:04 
6:04 
6:55

7:29 
9:03 

10:37 
12:11 
1:45 
3:19 

7:44 
9:18 

10:52 
12:26 
2:00 
3:34 

7:59 
9:33 

11:07 
12:41 
2:15 
3:49 

8:14 
9:48 

11:22 
12:56 
2:30 
4:04 

A
M

A
M

PM
PM

ID: 770540 ID: 770541 ID: 136101 ID: 124101

ID: 770540 ID: 770541 ID: 136101 ID: 124101

ID: 124101 ID: 136101 ID: 770541 ID: 770540

ID: 124101 ID: 136101 ID: 770541 ID: 770540

North Central Texas College South

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of InterestBus Stop

Non-Stop Service

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes Park & Ride Lot

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

HospitalPoint of Interest

A-train StationTimepoint

Hospital

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

Bus Stop

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Hospital

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

Timepoint

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA
Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

Point of Interest

A-train Station

Timepoint HVCOD Zone

©2018 DCTA  •  Design by Smartmaps, Inc.

A-train Station

Lyft Zone

Transfer Point

Connecting Routes

1 1

11

1

1

1

1

Timepoint1
A-train Station

Connecting Routes1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

1,2,3

Hospital

Point of Interest

1,2,3

Legend

NORTH NORTE

NCTC South Schedule: Friday

NCTC South Schedule: Monday-Thursday

3

NCTC
Flower
Mound

3

NCTC
Flower
Mound

2

Summit
at

Civic

2

Summit
at

Civic

2

Summit
at

Civic

2

Summit
at

Civic

1

HV/LL
Station

(Arrives)

1

HV/LL
Station

(Arrives)

1

HV/LL
Station

(Departs)

1

HV/LL
Station

(Departs)

6:40 
7:29 
8:14 
9:03 
9:48 

10:37 
11:22 
12:11 
12:56 

1:45 
2:30 
3:19 
4:04 
5:19 

6:50 
7:39 
8:24 
9:13 
9:58 

10:47 
11:32 
12:22 
1:06 
1:55 
2:40 
3:29 
4:14 
5:29 

7:02 
7:51 
8:36 
9:25 

10:10 
10:59 
11:44 
12:33 

1:18 
2:07 
2:52 
3:41 
4:26 
5:41 

7:14 
8:03 
8:48 
9:37 

10:22 
11:11 
11:56 
12:45 
1:30 
2:19 
3:04 
3:53 
4:38 
5:53 

7:25 
8:14 
8:59 
9:48 

10:33 
11:22 
12:07 
12:56 

1:41 
2:30 
3:15 
4:04 
4:49 
6:04 

6:40 
7:29 
8:14 
9:03 
9:48 

10:37 
11:22 
12:11 
12:56 

1:45 
2:30 
3:19 

6:50 
7:39 
8:24 
9:13 
9:58 

10:47 
11:32 
12:22 
1:06 
1:55 
2:40 
3:29 

7:02 
7:51 
8:36 
9:25 

10:10 
10:59 
11:44 
12:33 

1:18 
2:07 
2:52 
3:41 

7:14 
8:03 
8:48 
9:37 

10:22 
11:11 
11:56 
12:45 
1:30 
2:19 
3:04 
3:53 

7:25 
8:14 
8:59 
9:48 

10:33 
11:22 
12:07 
12:56 

1:41 
2:30 
3:15 
4:04 

A
M

A
M

PM
PM

Outbound from Highland Village/Lewisville Lake Station

Outbound from Highland Village/Lewisville Lake Station

ID: 124101 ID: 770300 ID: 163102 ID: 770300 ID: 124101

ID: 124101 ID: 770300 ID: 163102 ID: 770300 ID: 124101

DCTA may conduct schedule modifications throughout the year. Visit RideDCTA.net for the latest schedules and maps.

ENG Route NC.indd   2 8/9/18   8:07 AM

Regular Item 5, Exhibit 3

146



 
 

 

Regular Item 6 

 
Board of Directors Memo                            April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval to Amend City of McKinney Interlocal Agreement Providing Service to the 
McKinney Urban Transit District (MUTD) by Authorizing a Month-to-Month Extension through September 30, 
2020 
 
Background 
In May 2017, the DCTA board approved an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with the City of McKinney, effective June 
1, 2017, to provide public transportation services to operate as Collin County Transit (CCT) in the McKinney 
Urban Transit District (MUTD). The MUTD added Prosper to its member cities in June 2019, which also include 
Celina, Lowry Crossing, McKinney, Melissa, and Princeton. Services include demand-response transit (Access) 
and an FTA-compliant taxi voucher program through Irving Holdings. The program supports MUTD member 
city residents who are 65 years of age or older, disabled, or low-income (up to 150% of federal poverty 
guidelines). Passengers can request a trip to and from MUTD member cities and anywhere within Collin County. 
MUTD ridership increased by 117% in FY 2019 over FY 2018.  
 
The term of the original ILA with the City of McKinney was for one year with the option to renew for 
successive one-year terms at $350,000 per year. The ILA has been amended twice and extended within the 
current term parameters of the agreement, as depicted in the table below.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCTA staff is working with the City of McKinney to revise the current services provided based on their 
changing and expanding needs. The intent of both parties is to execute a new interlocal agreement consistent 
with those changing needs. As the current agreement expires on May 31, 2020, staff brought forward an 
information item in March to brief the Board of Directors on the initial request for a six-month extension to 
continue negotiations with the City of McKinney while ensuring there is no lapse in service.  
  
 
Identified Need 
The City of McKinney Interlocal Agreement expires on May 31, 2020. DCTA staff recommends a month-to-
month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow time to establish a new service rate and 
administrative fee in order to comply with DCTA's cost allocation model and administrative fee policy. 
 
 
Financial Impact 
The new fee shall cover all expenses associated with the agreement and shall have no negative financial impact 
on DCTA. 
 
 

City of McKinney ILA Amendments Changes to Terms of ILA Budget per Year 
June 1, 2017 – May 31, 2018 Original Agreement $350,000 
October 1, 2017  Revised hours and days of service to 

include Saturdays 
No change 

February 13, 2018 Added required FTA clauses and clarified 
scope of services related to buses 

No change 

June 1, 2018 – May 31, 2019 One-year extension with same terms No change 
June 1, 2019 – May 31, 2020 One-year extension with same terms No change 

147



 
 

 

Regular Item 6 

 
Recommendation 
DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow 
time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with DCTA's cost allocation 
model and administrative fee policy. 
 
 
Exhibits 
Exhibit 1: City of McKinney Original Interlocal Agreement 
Exhibit 2: City of McKinney 2019 Extension Letter 
Exhibit 3: Map of MUTD Service Area 
Exhibit 4: City of McKinney Budget Cycle 
 

 
 
Submitted By: ____________________________ 
 Lindsey Baker, Director of Strategic Partnerships 
 
  
Reviewed By: ____________________________ 
 Kristina Holcomb, Deputy CEO  
 
 
Approval:  ____________________________ 
 Raymond Suarez, CEO 

 

148



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

149



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

150



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

151



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

152



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

153



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

154



Exhibit A 
Scope of Services for Transit Services 

Overall Intent 

The intent of this Agreement is for DCT A to provide or cause to be provided transit services for 
Elderly and Disabled residents through a contract with the City of McKinney acting on behalf of 
the McKinney Urban Transit District. This service will include a taxi voucher program and the 
provision of DCT A operated vehicles to address specific mobility needs within established hours 
and days of service. OCTA will provide supporting service to facilitate the implementation of the 
program and program compliance. This exhibit establishes a framework for the initiation of 
service. Changes required to meet the needs of the program may be made by mutual written 
agreement of the DCT A President and the City Manager or their designees. 

Program Management 

Overall Program Management. DCT A will be responsible for the overall management of the 
program and the successful delivery of the services within this scope of services. 

Budget Management. OCT A will track service costs of each participating municipality to ensure 
the budgeted funds will be sustainable over the allotted period. Service cost reporting and all 
requested backup shall be made available to the City on a monthly basis. Service cost reporting 
for each monthly period, for all participating members of the MUTO, shall be submitted with the 
monthly DCT A invoice. The initial budget is $350,000 for the first twelve-month period. 

Eligibility Certification. DCT A will certify the eligibility of qualified residents based on the 
current policy established by the McKinney Urban Transit District. Initial certification will be 
conducted at a minimum of four locations within the service area prior to the launch of service. 
After service implementation, certification will be conducted via mail, web, email, phone, or in 
person at OCTA offices. Additional on-site eligibility opportunities will be coordinated with City 
of McKinney staff. OCTA will utilize its appeal process for any appeals submitted by potential 
passengers under this program. 

Hardship Requests. A passenger wishing to claim a specific hardship will be referred to City of 
McKinney staff (or other designated entity) for review. Based on this recommendation, OCTA 
will modify the match requirement in accordance with City of McKinney directives. 

Compliance Reporting. OCTA will support audit, TxDOT, FTA, and National Transit Database 
reporting and compliance requirements. 

Customer Service. DCT A will provide a phone number and electronic access for the receipt of 
customer requests in concert with the contract provider. 

PAGE 1 EXHIBIT"A" 

OCTA AND CITY OF MCKINNEY, TEXAS 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

155



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

156



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

157



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

158



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

159



Regular Item 6, Exhibit 1

160



DCT _A DEN10N COUN I Y
f#-71 TRANSPORTATION 

-� AUTHORITY 

February 20, 2019 

Paul G. Grimes 
City Manager 
City of McKinney 
222 N. Tennessee St. 
McKinney, Texas 75069 

Re: Denton County Transportation Authority/City of McKinney Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreement dated May 15, 2017 (the "Agreement") 

Mr. Grimes, 

Please allow this letter to serve as DCT A's notice that it desires to extend the Term of 
the Agreement for a period of one ( 1) year, effective June 1, 2019. 

Section 2. 1 of the Agreement states, in part, " ... After the initial term, this Agreement 
shall automatically renew for successive one-year terms upon the mutual agreement of 
both Parties (each a Renewal Term). The Parties shall effectuate this extension in 
writing signed by the Parties." 

If the City also agrees to extend the term of the Agreement, please sign below and return 
this notice to me by email. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Please contact me if you have questions. 

Sincerely, 

Raymond Suarez, 
Chief Executive Officer 

AGREED TO: �:y of(?Cexas 
Paul G. Grimes, City Manager 

Dated: zliJ::: . 2019 

1955 Lakeway Drive, Ste 260, Lewisville, rx 75057 • P.O Box 96, Lewisville.TX 75067 • RideDCIA net• HopOn80,1rdBlog.com • Connecl with us: 0 0 (0. Ii)

Regular Item 6, Exhibit 2

161



McKinney Urban Transit District Service Area 

MUTD Cities 

City of Celina  
City of Lowry Crossing 
City of McKinney 
City of Melissa 
City of Princeton 
Town of Prosper 

Regular Item 6, Exhibit 3

162



City of McKinney
Budget Department

Budget Kickoff 2020-21

Regular Item 6, Exhibit 4

163



FY 2020‐21 Budget Process
Planning

• January & February

Planning
• January & February

Department’s 
Budget

•March through May

Department’s 
Budget

•March through May

City Manager’s 
Budget

•June & July

City Manager’s 
Budget

•June & July

City Council’s Budget
•August & September

City Council’s Budget
•August & September

Adopted Budget
•September 30

Adopted Budget
•September 30

Regular Item 6, Exhibit 4

164



FY21 Budget Milestones

 Guidelines‐March 3 (Adopted)
 Budget Kickoff‐March 4
 Budgets Due‐April 3
 Citizen Input Hearing‐April 21
Midyear Update‐June 16
 Budget Work Session‐Aug 7
 Budget Adoption‐Sept 15

Regular Item 6, Exhibit 4

165



 
 

 

Regular Item 7 

Board of Directors Memo                            April 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Board Strategic Guidance Session: DCTA’s 5-year Look-back 
 
 
As DCTA staff begins the FY 2021 budget process, staff will provide information regarding the past 5 years of 
performance data, major events that have influenced agency and operational performance, a summary of the 
progress made over the past 18 months and a summary look-back at the creation and progress to date of the 
North Texas Mobility Corporation, Local Government Corporation 

 
 
Identified Need 
Provides the Board of Directors DCTA’s 5-year look-back for strategic guidance.  
 
Recommendation 
For information only.  No action required. 
 
Exhibits 
Exhibit 1: Historical Events Impacting DCTA Finances and Operations 
Exhibit 2: Ridership and Performance Measures 
Exhibit 3: Financial Information 
Exhibit 4: NTMC Historical Perspective and Progress to Date 
 
 
 
Submitted By: ____________________________ 
 Raymond Suarez 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

166



DATE EVENT IMPACT
May 2011 A-train Service Launch
October 2013 IH35 Construction Begins On/Off ramp access to stations

June 2014
City of Lewisville Recreational Parking 
Lot Construction

Access to HV/LV station impacted

April 2015
Downtown Denton Hickory Street 
Construction 

Significantly impacted On Time Performance, Ridership, Customer Complaints

May 2015 Memorial Day Flood

Service suspended 5/29 through 6/6. Service restored 6/8. Total cost of repairs approx. $4M. DCTA 
share, $1M 
- $3M expensed in FY17 to Rail Operating Expense
- $795k expensed in FY18 to Rail Operating Expense

2015-2019
Uber & Lyft ramp up nationwide as 
consumer adoption increase impacting 
bus and rail ridership nationwide

Steady drop in ridership nationwide of both bus and rail. 13% drop in bus ridership nationwide due 
to TNCs with impacts to revnue and ridership

January 2016 Demolition of Garden Ridge Bridge Access to HV/Lake Lewisville Station impacted use of A-train and declines in ridership

June 2016 Avg. Unleaded Fuel $1.90/gallon
Sustained lower gas prices and access to less expenses cars & auto financing rates and longer terms 
negatively impacting ridership; Some help for rail at Hebron -- neglibile rail impact at MedPark

2016-2019
City of Denton Construction, University 
Drive Construction by Segments

Many bus stops not accessible, OTP issues due to traffic; Began January 2016 which significantly 
impacted ontime performance, ridership and customer complaints

May 2017
Regional Fare Increase/Local Fare 
Decrease

Fare increases have a negative affect on ridership up to 3%; Impacted A-train adding to decreased 
ridership (16% decrease from FY17 to FY18 weekday avg)

August 2017 Hurricane Harvey (fuel shortages)
Establised need for additional fueling facility at Rail Facility. Regular fuel deliveries were stalled, so 
fuel purchased from area gas stations. 

November 2017 Opening of IH35 in Lewisville
Decreased Fare Box, Decreased Ridership, Service Logistic Changes, OTP isuues. Low gas prices, 
ease of commute to downtown dallas also impacted A-train ridership (16% decrease from FY17 to 
FY18 weeday avg.)

FY2017
Changed carrier for excess rail liability 
insurance

$672k increase in insurance expense category from FY16 (prior year's expenses had been recorded 
in Purchased Transportation under DART contract)

2017-2019
I-35E Widening Project from Mayhill 
Road to Loop 288

Significantly impacted On Time Performance, Ridership, Customer Complaints

2017-2019 PTC Installation and Testing
Construction & Testing caused major impacts to signal system over prolonged period of time 
causing performance issues; Rail corridor travel time increased from Denton to Carrollton -- 6.57% 
avg weekday ridership decrease from FY18 to FY19

Historical Events Impacting DCTA Finances & Operations
Regular Item 7, Exhibit 1

167



2017-2019
Online Sales begin to significantly 
impact retail sales and malls and local 
retailers

Steady drop in ridership as less workers needed to the malls and retailers

January 2018
West Denton Hickory Street 
Construction 

Negatively impacted ridership, OTP and customer complaints

March 2018
Construction of Loop 288 and Brinker 
Bridges/Underpasses 

Negatively impacted ridership, OTP and customer complaints

FY2018 Decrease in contract service hours
Negatively impacted revenue.FY18 contract service hours decrease by 13% from 64,944 in FY17 to 
56,629 in FY18

January 2019 New Fare Structure
FY19 fare per rider increased as existing passengers began purchasing local passes from each 
agency rather than regional pass from another agency ($313k increased revenue from FY18)

August 2019 Bonnie Brae Construction Negatively impacted ridership, OTP and customer complaints

2019 Mayhill Road Widening Project Access to MedPark Rail Station negatively impacted ridership, OTP and customer complaints

2018-2019
UNT Union Circle reconstruction, 
Welch, Avenue C

Significantly impacted On Time Performance, Ridership, Customer Complaints (Welch closed Dec. 
2019; Union Circle curb construction March 2020; Ave. C closed Sept. 2018-Feb. 2019 for gateway 
installation)

2018 -2019
A-train Crossing Replacement
Maintenance

Negatively impacted expeses but improved safety. $600K (included removal of Eagle Point which 
was $100K)

2018 -2019
A-train brake overhauls, electronics
upgrades

Impacted expenses from prior years as fleet age requires new maintenance expenses. $570k 
expensed in FY18 to Rail Operating Expense
$996k expensed in FY19 to Rail Operating Expense

FY2019 Rail Impact Fee 5 years of impact fees booked in FY19. $981k increase in FY19 Rail Operating Expense

FY2019
Rail Purchase Transportation (PT) 
Contract

Contract escalations; increase in car miles and train hours 
- Increase to Rail PT expense $600k over FY18

FY2020 Budget
Rail Purchase Transportation (PT) 
Contract

Contract escalations; increase in car miles
- Increase to Rail PT expense $650k over FY19 actual

Ongoing PTC degradation on commute time Major impact to ridership & revenue with an 11 minute add to commute time

FY2020 - Ongoing
The A-train system is now 9 years old 
and requires more maintenance

As additional maintenance is required to maintain the system in a state of good repair, operating 
expenses will increase

Historical Events Impacting DCTA Finances & Operations
Regular Item 7, Exhibit 1

168



Regular Item R7 Exhibit 2 

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 NOTES

FIXED ROUTE
UNT Service           1,763,363           1,754,699          1,909,259            1,856,751            1,774,197 
NCTC Service 17,488              20,250 5,664 13,588 12,797 
Connect Service            589,404              549,531             487,664 -                        -   
Denton Connect -                        -   -               375,404              431,781 
Lewisville Connect -                        -   -   94,540              122,456 
Highland Village Connect -                        -   -   3,290 1,822 
North Texas Xpress -                        -   6,449 8,440 12,804 North Texas Xpress service began September 26th, 2016
DEMAND RESPONSE
Access ADA & Non-ADA              76,698 -                        -   -                        -   
Denton Demand Response - 15,853 16,401 17,447 18,205 
Lewisville Demand Response - 14,146 13,528 9,924 18,359 
Highland Village Demand Response - 3,635 2,448 4,144 -   
Frisco Demand Response - 3,410 4,720 6,001 6,706 Frisco Demand Response service began December 2015
CCT Demand Response -                      -   -   43 2,496 CCT Demand Response service began June 2017; data is not available prior to FY18
A-TRAIN
A-train             555,423             545,250             504,958              419,335             393,700 
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES
CCT Taxi Service -                        -   833 4,738 9,065 CCT Taxi service began May 2017
Highland Village Lyft -                        -   -   89 1,134 Highland Village Lyft service began February 2018
Frisco Lyft -                        -   -                        -   808 Frisco Lyft service began September 2018
Frisco Taxi Service -                        -   1,716 2,838 4,647 Frisco Taxi service began March 2017
UNT Lyft -                        -   -                        -   890 UNT Lyft service began December 2018
Alliance Lyft -                        -   -                        -   1,101 Alliance Lyft service began February 2019
VANPOOL
Vanpool              148,102             199,044             145,020             128,089 128,171 
TOTAL RIDERSHIP 3,150,478 3,105,818 3,098,660 2,944,661 2,941,139 

FIXED ROUTE
UNT Service 34.15 32.68 35.72 43.39 40.02 
NCTC Service 4.21 4.23 2.40 2.85 2.67 
Connect Service 9.55 8.65 6.71 -                        -   
Denton Connect -                        -   -   7.14 7.80 
Lewisville Connect -                        -   -   4.06 4.87 
Highland Village Connect -                        -   -   0.44 0.34 
North Texas Xpress -                        -   1.65 2.17 3.31 North Texas Xpress service began September 26th, 2016
DEMAND RESPONSE
Access ADA & Non-ADA 4.00 -                        -   -                        -   
Denton Demand Response - 1.49 1.59 1.88 2.07 
Lewisville Demand Response - 1.94 1.65 1.68 2.43 
Highland Village Demand Response - 0.88 0.76 1.50 -   
Frisco Demand Response - 1.44 1.63 1.98 2.05 Frisco Demand Response service began December 2015
CCT Demand Response -                      -   -   0.53 2.30 CCT Demand Response service began June 2017; data is not available prior to FY18
A-TRAIN
A-train 42.24 40.15 37.38 31.75 29.08 
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES
CCT Taxi Service -                        -   4.54 2.61 2.61 CCT Taxi service began May 2017
Highland Village Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Highland Village Lyft service began February 2018; Lyft does not report revenue hours
Frisco Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Frisco Lyft service began September 2018; Lyft does not report revenue hours
Frisco Taxi Service -                        -   0.12 1.32 1.70 Frisco Taxi service began March 2017
UNT Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  UNT Lyft service began December 2018; Lyft does not report revenue hours
Alliance Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Alliance Lyft service began February 2019; Lyft does not report revenue hours
VANPOOL
Vanpool 13.38 13.53 9.87 8.58 7.18 
TOTAL PASSENGERS PER REVENUE HOUR 19.58 17.77 15.55 15.66 14.92 

RIDERSHIP

PASSENGERS PER REVENUE HOUR

 Prior to FY16, Access/Demand Response service data was not recorded by member city.   

RIDERSHIP & PERFORMANCE MEASURES
BASED ON COST ALLOCATION MODELS SUMMARY BY SERVICE

 Prior to FY18, Connect service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY16, Access/Demand Response service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY18, Connect service data was not recorded by member city.   

169



Regular Item 7, Exhibit 2  

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 NOTES

RIDERSHIP & PERFORMANCE MEASURES
BASED ON COST ALLOCATION MODELS SUMMARY BY SERVICE

FIXED ROUTE
UNT Service 3.17 3.04 3.34 4.27 4.05 
NCTC Service 0.22 0.22 0.15 0.14 0.15 
Connect Service 0.79 0.72 0.57 -                        -   
Denton Connect -                        -   -   0.66 0.68 
Lewisville Connect -                        -   -   0.32 0.38 
Highland Village Connect -                        -   -   0.04 0.03 
North Texas Xpress -                        -   0.06 0.08 0.12 North Texas Xpress service began September 26th, 2016
DEMAND RESPONSE
Access ADA & Non-ADA 0.32 -                        -   -                        -   
Denton Demand Response - 0.14 0.15 0.14 0.15 
Lewisville Demand Response - 0.14 0.14 0.16 0.22 
Highland Village Demand Response - 0.15 0.15 0.17 -   
Frisco Demand Response - 0.10 0.12 0.12 0.12 Frisco Demand Response service began December 2015
CCT Demand Response -                      -   -   0.02 0.15 CCT Demand Response service began June 2017; data is not available prior to FY18
A-TRAIN
A-train 1.70 0.85 0.95 1.28 1.23 
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES
CCT Taxi Service -                        -   0.14 0.12 0.14 CCT Taxi service began May 2017
Highland Village Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Highland Village Lyft service began February 2018; Lyft does not report revenue miles
Frisco Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Frisco Lyft service began September 2018; Lyft does not report revenue miles
Frisco Taxi Service -                        -   1.56 0.14 0.13 Frisco Taxi service began March 2017
UNT Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  UNT Lyft service began December 2018; Lyft does not report revenue miles
Alliance Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Alliance Lyft service began February 2019; Lyft does not report revenue miles
VANPOOL
Vanpool 0.24 0.24 0.18 0.19 0.18 
TOTAL PASSENGERS BY REVENUE MILE 1.23 0.98 0.98 1.00 0.96 

FIXED ROUTE
UNT Service  $             77.27  $             81.56  $             78.89  $             84.02  $             90.13 
NCTC Service 78.44 89.43 95.48 96.62 100.20 
Connect Service 79.86 86.23 85.06 -                        -   
Denton Connect -                        -   -   87.84 93.91 
Lewisville Connect -                        -   -   103.96 101.24 
Highland Village Connect -                        -   -   89.37 98.91 
North Texas Xpress -                        -   103.04 109.86 120.71 North Texas Xpress service began September 26th, 2016
DEMAND RESPONSE
Access ADA & Non-ADA 92.24 -                        -   -                        -   
Denton Demand Response - 92.76 94.53 109.53 147.51 
Lewisville Demand Response - 108.06 97.95 107.54 113.03 
Highland Village Demand Response - 85.85 90.60 124.93 -   
Frisco Demand Response - 133.84 118.61 118.23 113.80 Frisco Demand Response service began December 2015
CCT Demand Response -                      -   -   391.55 169.58 CCT Demand Response service began June 2017; data is not available prior to FY18
A-TRAIN
A-train             1,059.47 954.19             1,348.57            1,094.24             1,233.92 
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES
CCT Taxi Service -                        -   166.07 77.88 60.61 CCT Taxi service began May 2017
Highland Village Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Highland Village Lyft service began February 2018; Lyft does not report revenue hours
Frisco Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Frisco Lyft service began September 2018; Lyft does not report revenue hours
Frisco Taxi Service -                        -   3.13 34.53 46.97 Frisco Taxi service began March 2017
UNT Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  UNT Lyft service began December 2018; Lyft does not report revenue hours
Alliance Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Alliance Lyft service began February 2019; Lyft does not report revenue hours
VANPOOL
Vanpool 14.88 14.49 9.22 8.08 7.90 
TOTAL COST PER REVENUE HOUR  $          156.04  $          148.24  $          159.82  $           156.21  $          168.44 

PASSENGERS BY REVENUE MILE

 COST PER REVENUE HOUR 

 Prior to FY16, Access/Demand Response service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY18, Connect service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY16, Access/Demand Response service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY18, Connect service data was not recorded by member city.   

170



FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 NOTES

RIDERSHIP & PERFORMANCE MEASURES
BASED ON COST ALLOCATION MODELS SUMMARY BY SERVICE

FIXED ROUTE
UNT Service  $ 7.18  $ 7.59  $ 7.38  $ 8.26  $ 9.12 
NCTC Service 4.05 4.74 5.88 4.85 5.74 
Connect Service 6.61 7.15 7.20 -                        -   
Denton Connect -                        -   -   8.06 8.18 
Lewisville Connect -                        -   -   8.09 7.90 
Highland Village Connect -                        -   -   7.81 8.74 
North Texas Xpress -                        -   4.02 4.26 4.50 North Texas Xpress service began September 26th, 2016
DEMAND RESPONSE
Access ADA & Non-ADA 7.29 -                        -   -                        -   
Denton Demand Response - 8.50 9.15 8.16 10.81 
Lewisville Demand Response - 7.66 8.18 10.07 10.15 
Highland Village Demand Response - 15.10 17.48 13.78 -   
Frisco Demand Response - 9.49 8.77 7.11 6.50 Frisco Demand Response service began December 2015
CCT Demand Response -                      -   -   18.20 11.15 CCT Demand Response service began June 2017; data is not available prior to FY18
A-TRAIN
A-train 42.70 20.10 34.18 43.96 52.36 
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES
CCT Taxi Service -                        -   5.14 3.44 3.36 CCT Taxi service began May 2017
Highland Village Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Highland Village Lyft service began February 2018; Lyft does not report revenue miles
Frisco Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Frisco Lyft service began September 2018; Lyft does not report revenue miles
Frisco Taxi Service -                        -   39.31 3.60 3.71 Frisco Taxi service began March 2017
UNT Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  UNT Lyft service began December 2018; Lyft does not report revenue miles
Alliance Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Alliance Lyft service began February 2019; Lyft does not report revenue miles
VANPOOL
Vanpool 0.27 0.26 0.17 0.17 0.20 
TOTAL COST PER REVENUE MILE  $ 9.77  $ 8.15  $            10.10  $            10.01  $            10.87 

FIXED ROUTE
UNT Service  $             72.75  $ 78.12  $             76.04  $            80.06  $             85.69 
NCTC Service 73.85 85.61 90.38 90.58 93.52 
Connect Service 75.19 82.19 79.44 -                        -   
Denton Connect -                        -   -   80.33 88.45 
Lewisville Connect -                        -   -   91.75 93.74 
Highland Village Connect -                        -   -   82.91 89.74 
North Texas Xpress -                        -   99.80 106.39 116.86 North Texas Xpress service began September 26th, 2016
DEMAND RESPONSE
Access ADA & Non-ADA 77.90 -                        -   -                        -   
Denton Demand Response - 82.13 79.02 89.67 89.63 
Lewisville Demand Response - 86.43 78.01 80.95 87.16 
Highland Village Demand Response - 67.06 63.38 80.29 -   
Frisco Demand Response - 92.41 84.82 96.48 94.30 Frisco Demand Response service began December 2015
CCT Demand Response -                      -   -   191.06 105.76 CCT Demand Response service began June 2017; data is not available prior to FY18
A-TRAIN
A-train 979.81              882.09              1,153.77 993.71             1,120.90 
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES
CCT Taxi Service -                        -   166.07 77.88 60.61 CCT Taxi service began May 2017
Highland Village Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Highland Village Lyft service began February 2018; Lyft does not report vehicle hours
Frisco Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Frisco Lyft service began September 2018; Lyft does not report vehicle hours
Frisco Taxi Service -                        -   3.13 34.53 46.97 Frisco Taxi service began March 2017
UNT Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  UNT Lyft service began December 2018; Lyft does not report vehicle hours
Alliance Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Alliance Lyft service began February 2019; Lyft does not report vehicle hours
VANPOOL
Vanpool 14.88 14.49 9.22 8.08 7.90 
TOTAL COST PER VEHICLE HOUR  $          145.04  $          138.53  $          147.84  $           142.01  $          153.38 

COST PER REVENUE MILE

 COST PER VEHICLE HOUR 

 Prior to FY18, Connect service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY16, Access/Demand Response service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY18, Connect service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY16, Access/Demand Response service data was not recorded by member city.   

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 2  

171



FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 NOTES

RIDERSHIP & PERFORMANCE MEASURES
BASED ON COST ALLOCATION MODELS SUMMARY BY SERVICE

FIXED ROUTE
UNT Service  $ 6.53  $ 7.19  $ 7.09  $ 7.85  $ 8.69 
NCTC Service 3.68 4.56 5.50 4.67 5.41 
Connect Service 6.02 6.28 6.26 -                        -   
Denton Connect -                        -   -   7.63 7.75 
Lewisville Connect -                        -   -   5.96 6.80 
Highland Village Connect -                        -   -   7.00 7.15 
North Texas Xpress -                        -   3.92 4.16 4.42 North Texas Xpress service began September 26th, 2016
DEMAND RESPONSE
Access ADA & Non-ADA 6.23 -                        -   -                        -   
Denton Demand Response - 7.31 7.37 7.34 9.29 
Lewisville Demand Response - 6.44 7.62 8.27 8.85 
Highland Village Demand Response - 11.19 11.99 10.17 -   
Frisco Demand Response - 6.63 6.02 5.33 5.01 Frisco Demand Response service began December 2015
CCT Demand Response -                      -   -   9.49 6.25 CCT Demand Response service began June 2017; data is not available prior to FY18
A-TRAIN
A-train 40.89 19.24 32.56 42.03 49.98 
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES
CCT Taxi Service -                        -   5.14 3.44 3.36 CCT Taxi service began May 2017
Highland Village Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Highland Village Lyft service began February 2018; Lyft does not report vehicle miles
Frisco Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Frisco Lyft service began September 2018; Lyft does not report vehicle miles
Frisco Taxi Service -                        -   39.31 3.60 3.71 Frisco Taxi service began March 2017
UNT Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  UNT Lyft service began December 2018; Lyft does not report vehicle miles
Alliance Lyft -                        -   -                        -   -  Alliance Lyft service began February 2019; Lyft does not report vehicle miles
VANPOOL
Vanpool 0.27 0.26 0.17 0.17 0.20 
TOTAL COST PER VEHICLE MILE  $ 9.09  $ 7.60  $ 9.38  $ 9.23  $            10.18 

FIXED ROUTE
UNT Service 2.26$  2.50$  2.21$   $ 1.94  $ 2.25 
NCTC Service 18.64 21.15 39.85 33.92 37.50 
Connect Service 8.36 9.97 12.68 -                        -   
Denton Connect -                        -   -   12.30 12.04 
Lewisville Connect -                        -   -   25.60 20.80 
Highland Village Connect -                        -   -   204.27 291.55 
North Texas Xpress -                        -   62.50 50.61 36.45 North Texas Xpress service began September 26th, 2016
DEMAND RESPONSE
Access ADA & Non-ADA 23.06 -                        -   -                        -   
Denton Demand Response - 62.29 59.43 58.25 71.21 
Lewisville Demand Response - 55.79 59.53 64.05 46.47 
Highland Village Demand Response - 97.57 119.40 83.49 -   
Frisco Demand Response - 93.14 72.85 59.60 55.63 Frisco Demand Response service began December 2015
CCT Demand Response -                      -   -   737.57 73.64 CCT Demand Response service began June 2017; data is not available prior to FY18
A-TRAIN
A-train 25.08 23.77 36.08 34.46 42.43 
SPECIALIZED MOBILITY SERVICES
CCT Taxi Service -                        -   36.58 29.82 23.24 CCT Taxi service began May 2017
Highland Village Lyft -                        -   -   10.88 17.06 Highland Village Lyft service began February 2018
Frisco Lyft -                        -   -                        -   14.79 Frisco Lyft service began September 2018
Frisco Taxi Service -                        -   25.13 26.21 27.63 Frisco Taxi service began March 2017
UNT Lyft -                        -   -                        -   28.36 UNT Lyft service began December 2018
Alliance Lyft -                        -   -                        -   40.01 Alliance Lyft service began February 2019
VANPOOL
Vanpool 1.11 1.07 0.93 0.94 1.10 
TOTAL COST PER PASSENGER TRIP  $ 7.97  $ 8.34  $            10.29  $ 9.97  $ 11.29 

 Prior to FY18, Connect service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY16, Access/Demand Response service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY18, Connect service data was not recorded by member city.   

 Prior to FY16, Access/Demand Response service data was not recorded by member city.   

COST PER VEHICLE MILE

 COST PER PASSENGER TRIP 

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 2  

172



Regular Item 7, Exhibit 3

FY 2015
Budget

FY 2015
Actuals

FY 2016
Budget

FY 2016
Actuals

FY 2017
Budget

FY 2017
Actuals

FY 2018
Budget

FY 2018
Actuals

DCTA
FY 2019 
Budget

DCTA
FY 2019
Actuals

NTMC
FY 2019 
Budget

(June-Sept 2019)

NTMC 
FY 2019
Actuals

Total
FY 2019
Budget

Total 
FY 2019
Actuals

DCTA
FY 2020

Working Budget

NTMC
FY 2020

Working Budget

Total
FY 2020

Working
Budget

OPERATING REVENUE 
Passenger Revenues (Bus Farebox) 635,517$  672,797$  668,231$ 635,375$ 636,871$ 580,365$  527,390$  552,310$  433,248$  613,408$  -$  -$  433,248$  613,408$  624,049$ -$  624,049$
Passenger Revenues (Rail Farebox) 879,860 806,043 874,678 771,096 809,137 712,360 547,200 562,424 447,200 744,283 - - 447,200 744,283 588,272 - 588,272 
Contract Service Revenue 3,259,635 2,935,371 3,534,517 3,383,656 3,824,987 3,716,481 3,508,104 3,416,001 4,132,383 4,201,278 - - 4,132,383 4,201,278 4,416,160 - 4,416,160 
Total Operating Revenue 4,775,012 4,414,211 5,077,426 4,790,127 5,270,995 5,009,206 4,582,694 4,530,735 5,012,831 5,558,969 - - 5,012,831 5,558,969 5,628,481 - 5,628,481

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salary & Wages 6,590,219 6,468,716 7,003,152 7,238,839 8,092,485 8,323,691 9,198,754 8,916,929 7,679,667 7,601,304 2,023,816 2,111,894 9,703,483 9,713,198 3,735,192 6,151,398 9,886,590 
Benefits 2,529,775 1,877,436 2,414,863 1,905,407 2,827,844 2,102,290 2,703,518 2,220,684 2,607,469 2,080,421 650,326 574,074 3,257,795 2,654,495 1,260,999 2,309,426 3,570,425
Services 2,188,534 2,722,176 2,624,383 2,598,749 3,098,447 6,209,389 8,465,147 4,348,623 4,634,656 6,173,872 29,154 28,449 4,663,810 6,202,321 3,903,117 95,040 3,998,157 
Materials and Supplies 3,888,524 2,528,741 2,413,022 2,036,382 3,281,014 2,317,170 3,123,778 2,508,020              3,165,045 2,445,770 - - 3,165,045 2,445,770 3,094,917 - 3,094,917
Utilities 452,149 472,391 511,361 404,896 481,264 427,013 460,164 439,476 503,723 445,809 - - 503,723 445,809 527,988 - 527,988 
Insurance, Casualties and Losses 778,013 780,112 800,215 849,981 1,539,494 1,600,932 1,726,783 1,707,909 1,767,923 1,655,084 40,408 42,105 1,808,331 1,697,189 1,752,329 132,636 1,884,965
Purchased Transportation Services 9,963,588 10,080,919             10,633,624              10,666,292             10,934,513 10,587,125 9,628,343 8,980,451 10,342,159 9,755,585 - - 10,342,159 9,755,585 10,601,706             - 10,601,706
Miscellaneous 255,476 186,598 260,430 184,509 381,655 203,467 423,326 274,072 535,869 278,188 74,147 3,780 610,016 281,968 387,237 93,200 480,437
Leases and Rentals 207,205 124,645 144,183 158,251 306,776 248,128 265,880 213,497 234,974 221,903 - - 234,974 221,903 229,633 - 229,633 
Depreciation 9,503,440 9,337,505 10,017,196 9,854,907 10,339,740             9,986,476 10,679,875             10,202,356              10,790,950             9,813,483 - - 10,790,950             9,813,483 10,612,052 - 10,612,052 

Total Operating Expenses 36,356,923  34,579,239  36,822,429  35,898,213  41,283,232  42,005,681  46,675,568             39,812,017  42,262,435  40,471,419  2,817,851  2,760,302  45,080,286  43,231,721  36,105,170  8,781,700  44,886,870  

Operating Income / (Loss) (31,581,911) (30,165,028)            (31,745,003)             (31,108,086)             (36,012,237)             (36,996,475)            (42,092,874)            (35,281,282)             (37,249,604)            (34,912,449)             (2,817,851) (2,760,302)              (40,067,455)            (37,672,751)             (30,476,689)           (8,781,700) (39,258,389)            

NON-OPERATING REVENUE / (EXPENSE)
Investment Income 33,000 24,772 20,000 59,364 40,000 122,250 78,000 350,924 200,000 597,793 - - 200,000 597,793 400,000 - 400,000 
Misc. Revenues 6,300 147,360 1,500 156,067 1,001,500 408,658 738,255 860,988 86,761 223,924 - - 86,761 223,924 52,000 - 52,000 
Sales Tax Revenue 22,180,196 23,261,748 23,067,403             24,658,546             25,624,601             26,790,098            26,649,585             27,937,707             28,450,180             28,735,382              - - 28,450,180             28,735,382              29,019,184              - 29,019,184 
Federal Grants & Reimbursements 7,592,667 6,227,397 12,625,651 10,587,248             15,753,477 11,429,852 8,668,022 7,116,197 6,858,947 9,146,240 - - 6,858,947 9,146,240 10,103,440              - 10,103,440 
State Grants & Reimbursements 2,415,963 1,395,467 227,029 312,428 1,541,533 3,434 310,610 - 1,303,696 1,706,197 - - 1,303,696 1,706,197 780,389 - 780,389
Long Term Debt Interest/Expense (2,721,899) (1,211,899) (1,156,422) (1,156,229) (1,098,412) (1,098,107) (1,008,084)             (1,040,263)              (974,984) (972,668) - - (974,984) (972,668) (909,480) - (909,480) 
Total Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense) 29,506,227  29,844,846  34,785,161  34,617,424  42,862,699             37,656,185  35,436,388  35,225,553  35,924,600             39,436,868             -  -  35,924,600             39,436,868             39,445,533  - 39,445,533  

Income (Loss) Before Transfers (2,075,684)              (320,182) 3,040,158 3,509,338 6,850,462 659,710 (6,656,486)             (55,729) (1,325,004) 4,524,419 (2,817,851) (2,760,302)              (4,142,855) 1,764,117 8,968,844              (8,781,700) 187,144 

Transfers Out - - - - - - - - (2,817,851) (2,760,302)              - - (2,817,851) (2,760,302)             (8,781,700) - (8,781,700) 
Transfers In - - - - - - - - - - 2,817,851 2,760,302 2,817,851 2,760,302 - 8,781,700 8,781,700 
Total Transfers -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (2,817,851)  (2,760,302)  2,817,851  2,760,302  -   -   (8,781,700)  8,781,700  -  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (2,075,684)$            (320,182)$ 3,040,158$             3,509,338$             6,850,462$             659,710$  (6,656,486)$           (55,729)$  (4,142,855)$             1,764,117$ -$  -$  (4,142,855)$             1,764,117$ 187,144$  -$  187,144$  

Transfer to Capital Projects (22,516,242)$          (3,890,610)$           (9,271,359)$            (12,119,481)$            (24,793,967)$         (9,505,421)$            (15,633,998)$          (2,872,254)$            (8,303,877)$           (5,856,783)$           (9,959,417)$            

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - DCTA 24.75 27.25              29.75 36.25 42.50              43.00             

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - TMDC/NTMC 132.50             146.00            167.00            155.00            142.50            142.00            

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - DCTA
(A) Addition of Procurement Specialist (now Senior Procurement Specialist) and VP Strategic Planning & Development (converted to Deputy CEO)
(B) Addition of Data & Business Analyst, AVP Bus Operations & Maintenance, Intern (0.5 FTE)
(C) Addition of Grants Manager (previously performed by HR position), Business Manager of Bus Operations & Maintenance, Intern (0.5 FTE)
(D) Addition of Director of Strategic Partnerships, Business Manager of Bus Operations & Maintenance (2), Network Administrator, Director of Railway Systems, AVP of Regulatory Compliance, converted Intern position to Communications Coordinator position (net 0.5 FTE)
(E) 

(F) Addition of HR Assistant (0.5 FTE)

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - TMDC/NTMC
(G) Addition of Dispatcher, Maintenance Technician, and Bus Operators (10 FTEs) to accomodate 19k increased service hours (increased frequency on Routes 1 & 6, modified service on Routes 7 & 8, increased midday frequency on Connect Route 21, 22 and 23)
(H) Addition of Dispatcher, Bus Operators (12.5 FTEs) to accomodate 27k increased service hours (improved frequency on Route 2, 4, 6 and 8, Discovery Park UNT Campus Shuttle extended operating hours & addition of Saturday service, and contracted with the City of Frisco for Demand Response services)
(I) Addition of Mechanics (4), Customer Service Rep (2) and Bus Operators (15 FTEs) to accomodate 31k increased service hours (launch of Connect Shuttle & Community On-Demand Pilot services in HV, implemented Comprehensive Operational Analysis recommendations in Lewisville, and launched North Texas Xpress)
(J) Reduction of Mechanics (2) and Bus Operators (10 FTEs) due to 19k decreased service hours (reduction of HV Connect Shuttle hours, introduced Lyft discount program that replaced HV Demand Response service and implemented Comprehensive Operational Analysis recommendations in Denton)
(K) Reduction of Bus Operators (12.5 FTEs) due to 29k decreased service hours (discontinued Sam Bass route, consolidated Center Place East & West to one route and improved operational efficiencies resulting in the need for fewer operators)
(L) Three FTEs moved to DCTA Bus Operations Management: Service Planner, Operations Analysts (2); addition of 1.5 FTEs - Recruiter/HR Generalist, Operations Specialist (convert from 0.5 FTE), Bus Operations Buyer

Deletion of the Chief Operating Officer position; Addition of a Bus Operations Intern (0.5 FTE), Mobility as a Service Coordinator, Financial Analyst, and Receptionist; Conversion of a Construction Inspector 0.75 FTE into a Project Management Specialist 1.0 FTE and conversion of a Community Relations Intern 0.5 FTE into a Community Relations Coordinator 1.0 FTE; and three FTEs moved from 
third party contract bus operations: Service Planner, Operations Analysts (2)

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Change in Net Position - Budget v. Actual History

Description

173



NTMC HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVE & PROGRESS TO DATE
April 23, 2020

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

174



DEVELOPMENT OF NTMC

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

175



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

DEVELOPMENT OF NTMC

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 3

NTMC was developed in order to better govern six main areas of Bus Operations. Those six areas include:

• Increasing Operational Efficiencies
• Oversight and support
• Streamline workflows
• Improve operational performance (OTP, pullout, service)
• Reduce road calls and missed trips
• Lower cost of operations over time

• Improving Passenger Experience
• Increased operator engagement and targeted training
• Focus on customer complaint root cause and resolution
• Streamlined communications channels between frontline staff and management

• Focusing on Employee Relations
• Maintain existing benefits
• Decrease attrition rate
• Improve morale and culture instilling brand pride
• Implementation of Servant Leadership and drastically improve communications with frontline staff and 

management

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

176



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

DEVELOPMENT OF NTMC CON’T

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 4

• Localizing Control Over Strategy, Operations and Performance of Staff
• Implementation of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)
• Greater control over quality of data
• Ability to performance manage

• Ensuring Accuracy and Consistency of Pertinent Agency Information
• Improve data quality, integrity and timeliness
• Determine appropriate data sets and necessary reporting processes
• Manage data files, reports and storage
• Develop data reporting standards
• Identify opportunities to leverage technology to automate and enhance effectiveness and efficiency

• Positioning the Agency to Move to a MaaS / Broker of Services Model
• Gain a better understanding of ridership data to determine opportunities to migrate to MaaS

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

177



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

178



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

ACTIONS TAKEN

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 6

• Cancelled contract with First Transit

• Established LGC and initial NTMC Board of Directors

• Restructured organizational responsibilities

• Gained better knowledge of organizational, processes and 
technological needs to support a go-forward plan

• Assessed core capabilities, skill levels and training requirements

• Identified key gaps that need to be addressed in order to make the 
organization more effective and scalable

• Developed Task Force groups to identify performance 
barriers/blockers

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

179



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

PURPOSE OF TASK FORCES

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 7

• Deep Dive into Barriers
• Identification of barriers from all departments/divisions
• Review of cross-functional impacts due to inefficiencies and lack of technology

• Asking “Why” to Understand Inefficiencies
• Walking through processes to identify issues
• Talking with staff to understand the hands-on impacts on processes

• Information to Chart a Path Forward 
• Addressing the short-term, medium-term and long-term needs in critical 

functional areas and across the organizations (NTMC/DCTA)

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

180



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

RESULTS OF TASK FORCES

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 8

Identification of Issues
• More than 260 individual findings identified

• Roughly 61% of the 260 issues have been resolved

• More than 90 standard operating procedures identified
• Roughly 10% of the process to develop the 90 SOPs has been 

completed

• Identified deficiencies in training and skillsets of workforce

A Better Understanding
• Existing inefficiencies and next steps (too manual)

• Necessary steps for development of future RFP and critical information to 
analyze contract vs in-house services

• Major pain points that negatively impact the agency

• Gaps in enterprise application and technology 

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

181



TASK FORCE OVERVIEW

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

182



TASK FORCE OVERVIEW

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 10

Strategically Assign Vehicles to Service + Parts

Procurement and Contract Strategy

Workforce Sustainability

Purchase Orders to Accounts Payable

Payroll Processes

SOP Development

Technology Gaps {Across All Task Forces}

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

183



STRATEGICALLY ASSIGN VEHICLES TO SERVICE + PARTS

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 11

• Pain Points
• Pullout
• On-time performance
• Vehicle availability
• Parts availability

• Overview
• More than 70 issues identified by the task force
• 100% of issues addressed

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

184



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

STRATEGICALLY ASSIGN VEHICLES TO SERVICE + PARTS CON’T

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 12

• Short-term Needs
• Address parts currently on order and determine arrival timeline
• Revise parts request purchase process
• Need for a Parts Clerk to manage inventory and overall process
• Assign vehicles to service type

• Long-term Needs
• Create a master list of each vehicle and all necessary parts (OEM)
• Develop timeline for frequently-used parts and identify required purchase 

process based on the item
• Identify software solution to manage inventory and work orders
• Address technology deficiencies and enterprise applications

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

185



PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT STRATEGY

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 13

• Pain Points
• Lengthy procurement processes
• Confusion on federal and non-federal funding usage for specific 

procurements
• Access to buy boards and other third-party procurements

• Overview
• More than 50 issues identified by the task force
• 50% of issues addressed

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

186



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT STRATEGY CON’T

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 14

• Short-term Needs
• Review and address critical procurements related to parts
• Determine management roles for all contract service agreements
• Update board memo documentation and discussion process for purchased 

and/or renewed goods/services (3-months prior to expiration date)
• Provide re-training for staff members and resend required forms/documents

• Medium-term Needs
• Address federal funding options to streamline certain procurements
• Consider outsourcing some procurements through other transit agencies or 

member cities and buy boards

• Long-term Needs 
• Create consistency across all contracts (i.e. terms, pricing, invoice 

structure)
• Development of mandatory contract language
• Identify contract management software solutions

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

187



WORKFORCE SUSTAINABILITY

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 15

• Pain Points
• High job vacancies
• High employee turnover
• Lack of trained/skilled workforce
• Highly manual effort across the board
• Data quality

• Overview
• More than 60 issues identified by the task force
• 40% of issues addressed

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

188



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

WORKFORCE SUSTAINABILITY CON’T

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 16

• Short-term Needs
• Address NTMC as a brand (how they are represented to future employees)
• Better understand existing staff roles and responsibilities

• Identify staffing needs based on workload
• Identify workflow issues due to current staffing levels
• Identify missed opportunities due to current staffing levels

• Develop tracking document for recruitment/hiring efforts
• Research CDL issues and possible solutions

• Medium-term Needs
• Develop comprehensive recruitment strategy
• Develop recruitment table-top and distribution materials
• Start process for long-term CDL solution
• Review reporting processes and how we track feedback from operators
• Develop operator-assisted service change process where feedback is 

captured from key operators

• Long-term Needs 
• Determine how to reinforce culture
• Identify ways to introduce and encourage Servant Leadership
• Identify training opportunities for administrative staff

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

189



PURCHASE ORDERS TO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 17

• Pain Points
• Highly manual processes
• Accuracy and quality of data and back-up support
• Misapplication of account numbers
• Lack of training and process organization wide

• Overview
• More than 45 issues identified by the task force
• 40% of issues addressed

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

190



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

PURCHASE ORDERS TO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CON’T

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 18

• Short-term Needs
• Additional purchasing training for staff
• Review administrative process/timing and operational needs
• Review internal purchase processes to encourage PO purchases vs p-card purchases
• Review and adjust the process for operational invoice receipt and payment process
• Hire procurement coordinator to assist with all operational purchases

• Long-term Needs 
• System for tracking goods/services purchased based on supply chain and services 

rendered
• Development of flowchart to document records retention processes and schedule
• Fully utilize Sungard to assist the PO/invoice process
• Workshop the Bus Operations budget with Finance staff to determine appropriate 

coding for FY ‘21 purchases
• Revamp budget education materials and conduct training, to include overall budget, 

AP timelines, purchases, records retention, and Sungard
• Explore communication between Transit Fleet PO# and Sungard PO#
• Resolve technology gaps in Enterprise Solutions

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

191



PAYROLL PROCESSES

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 19

• Pain Points
• Accuracy
• Data quality
• Timeliness
• High manual effort

• Overview
• More than 35 issues identified by the task force
• 60% of issues addressed

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

192



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

PAYROLL PROCESSES CON’T

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 20

• Short-term Needs
• Establishment of key due dates and “closed office hours” to address high priorities
• Streamline timesheet review process
• Increased accountability for managers
• Update staff training on Kronos and related items
• Addressing overtime due to safety concerns

• Medium-term Needs
• Address Kronos capabilities and potential add-ons to existing system
• Ongoing Kronos trainings as new add-ins are applied

• Long-term Needs 
• Drive bids for work assignments
• Review software capabilities (i.e. Trapeze, Remix, Kronos)

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

193



SOP DEVELOPMENT

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 21

• Pain Points
• Overall operational performance issues
• Data quality/timeliness
• Employee morale/pride
• Lack of management/leadership direction
• Impacts on major leading and lagging performance indicators

• Overview
• More than 90 SOPs identified by the NTMC Leadership Team
• All short-term needs have been addressed

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

194



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

SOP DEVELOPMENT CON’T

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 22

• Short-term Needs
• Develop list of existing and needed SOPs
• Determine last date of revision for existing SOPs
• Prioritize SOP list 

• Medium-term Needs
• Develop SOP template
• Begin process of writing prioritized SOPs (first tier priorities)

• Long-term Needs 
• Develop annual revision cycle for all final SOPs
• Develop ongoing training and audit for adherence of information 

reporting and metrics
• Develop staging site on S:Drive for all final SOPs
• Develop cheat sheet for all SOPs and the location on the S:Drive

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

195



CURRENT STATE

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

196



• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

CURRENT STATE

DCTA • NTMC Historical Perspective & Progress to Date • April 23, 2020 24

• Task Forces still working to address remaining issues that have been identified

• Improvements in several major areas

• Reduced service cost and realigned service with expected ridership going forward
• Improved employee turnover
• Improved employee morale
• Resolved several ongoing issues 

• Better prepared for Transformation Initiative (efficiency study)

• Improved relationship and cooperation with frontline staff and ATU national leadership

• Significantly increased knowledge of deficiencies and next steps required

• We have a better understanding of a path forward and handle on data, operational 
performance, etc.

• Cross-functional teamwork is at an all-time high

• Top three remaining issues:
• Closing the skill gap
• Standard Operating Procedures
• Automation

Regular Item 7, Exhibit 4

197



DCTA Board Agenda Outlook 
As of 4/17/2020 

 

MAY 28, 2020 JUNE 25, 2020 JULY 23, 2020 
CONSENT 
 Approval of Minutes 
 Monthly Financial Statements: 

(Monthly Financials, Capital Projects 
Budget Report)  

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
 Monthly Financial Reports: (Sales Tax, 

MaaS Update, Budget Transfers)  
 Transformation Initiative Update  
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
Discussion Topics 
 Discount Fare Programs Overview 
 Board Strategic Visioning Session 

(facilitated) 
 NTMC Discussion 
 
 
Action  
 Canopy Remediation Contract (new 

contract)  
 City of Lewisville Trail Maintenance 

Agreement ILA  
 Printer Contract Award (expires July 

2020) 
 Web Services Award (expires Sept 2020 

– need overlap of contractors) 
 Insurance Broker Services Contract 

(expires August 2020)  
 Purchase of Transit Vehicles (new 

contract)  
 Dart Access Agreement 
 NTMC Board of Directors Proposed 

Certificate of Formation Modifications 
 
Information 
 Local & Regional Transportation 

Updates and Legislative Issues 
 Monsignor King/Our Daily Bread 

Ridership & Fare Discussion 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT 
 Approval of Minutes 
 Monthly Financial Statements: 

(Monthly Financials, Capital Projects 
Budget Report,  

 
 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
 Monthly Financial Reports: (Sales Tax, 

MaaS Update, Budget Transfers)  
 

 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
Discussion Topics 
 Public Transit Agency Safety Plan 

 
 
 
Action  
 Transformation Initiative Consultant 

and Task Order #1 
 
 
 
Information 
 Local & Regional Transportation 

Updates and Legislative Issues 
 

CONSENT 
 Approval of Minutes 
 Monthly Financial Statements: 

(Monthly Financials, Capital Projects 
Budget Report)  
 Quarterly Investment Report 
 Quarterly Grants Report  
 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
 Monthly Financial Reports: (Sales 

Tax, MaaS Update, Budget Transfers)    
 

 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
Discussion Topics 

 
 
 
Action  
 Web Services Contract (expires 

September 2020) 
 Lakeway Admin Building Lease 

Extension Contract (expires 
September 2020) 
 Public Transit Agency Safety Plan 

 
 
Information 
 Local & Regional Transportation 

Updates and Legislative Issues 
 

 

198


	ADPD6C3.tmp
	Provides the Board a review of DCTA’s financial position and the agency’s performance to budget.

	C2 EXHIBIT 1(b)_Capital Projects Budget Report for March 2020.pdf
	March 20

	INFO 1_EXHIBIT 1_Monthly Sales Tax Report.pdf
	DCTA FY20
	Member Cities FY20
	TX Transit Auth.

	INFO 2_Exhibit 2 - DCTA Purchasing List (Apr 2020 - Dec 2020) - FINAL - 4.15.2020.pdf
	Updated Draft

	INFO 4_EXHIBIT 3_MK101 Ridership Report.pdf
	Sheet 1

	ADPB795.tmp
	Establishes an administrative fee for contracted services provided to entities other than DCTA’s three member cities based on a minimum cost recovery rate.
	Upon approval of this policy, DCTA will renegotiate existing contracts for service to align with this policy.

	ADP411.tmp
	DCTA provides public transportation alternatives to improve mobility, air quality, economic development and livability in the areas it serves.  DCTA supports utilization of these services through contracts in partnership with Universities, Colleges an...
	Contracts for service delivered to local Universities and Colleges, within member cities must recover a minimum of 75% of total operating and capital costs.  Contracts for services delivered outside member cities must recover 100% of total operating a...
	An overhead percentage shall be calculated annually based on DCTA’s cost allocation model to determine the percentage of allocated, indirect costs in proportion to direct costs.  A three percent (3%) fee shall be added to this overhead percentage for ...
	The President/CEO or designee is authorized to implement this policy and to issue more detailed procedures to facilitate implementation of the policy as needed.  All agreements developed under this policy and any proposed deviations from this policy w...

	ADP51B6.tmp
	To ensure continuation of service to North Central Texas College (NCTC), NCTC desires to extend the current agreement.
	DCTA staff recommends an extension of the contract every 30 days, effective July 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020, to give DCTA adequate time to provide guidance on a new hourly rate for service, to include an administrative fee.
	DCTA staff recommends an extension of the contract every 30 days, effective July 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020, to give DCTA adequate time to provide guidance on a new hourly rate for service, to include an administrative fee.

	R5 Exhibit 3 NCTC Campus Shuttle Maps.pdf
	ENG Route NC-S - For Web
	ENG Route NCTC North - For Web

	ADP6EE0.tmp
	The City of McKinney Interlocal Agreement expires on May 31, 2020. DCTA staff is working with City staff to amend the current services provided based on their changing and expanding needs. The intent of both parties is to execute a new interlocal agre...
	DCTA staff recommends an extension of the contract every 30 days, effective June 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020, to give DCTA adequate time to provide guidance on a new hourly rate for service, to include an administrative fee.

	R7 Exhibit 2 Ridership & Performance Measures.pdf
	PERFORMANCE MEASURE TRENDS

	ADP1E2D.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	DEVELOPMENT OF NTMC
	DEVELOPMENT OF NTMC
	DEVELOPMENT OF NTMC CON’T
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	ACTIONS TAKEN
	PURPOSE OF TASK FORCES
	RESULTS OF TASK FORCES
	TASK FORCE OVERVIEW
	TASK FORCE OVERVIEW
	STRATEGICALLY ASSIGN VEHICLES TO SERVICE + PARTS
	STRATEGICALLY ASSIGN VEHICLES TO SERVICE + PARTS CON’T
	PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT STRATEGY
	PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT STRATEGY CON’T
	WORKFORCE SUSTAINABILITY
	WORKFORCE SUSTAINABILITY CON’T
	PURCHASE ORDERS TO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
	PURCHASE ORDERS TO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CON’T
	PAYROLL PROCESSES
	PAYROLL PROCESSES CON’T
	SOP DEVELOPMENT
	SOP DEVELOPMENT CON’T
	CURRENT STATE
	CURRENT STATE

	R7 Exhibit 1 Historical Events Impacting DCTA Finances  Operations_.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADP833E.tmp
	The City of McKinney Interlocal Agreement expires on May 31, 2020. DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with ...
	SDCTA staff is working with City staff to amend the current services provided based on their changing and expanding needs. The intent of both parties is to execute a new interlocal agreement consistent with those changing needs. To ensure continuatio...
	DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with DCTA's cost allocation model and administrative fee policy.
	SDCTA staff recommends an extension of the contract every 30 days, effective June 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020, to give DCTA adequate time to provide guidance on a new hourly rate for service, to include an administrative fee.

	ADP376D.tmp
	The City of McKinney Interlocal Agreement expires on May 31, 2020. DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with ...
	DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with DCTA's cost allocation model and administrative fee policy.

	ADP4D82.tmp
	North Central Texas College (NCTC) desires to extend the current agreement.
	DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with DCTA's cost allocation model and administrative fee policy.
	DCTA staff recommends a month-to-month extension, not to extend beyond September 30, 2020, to allow time to establish a new service rate and administrative fee in order to comply with DCTA's cost allocation model and administrative fee policy.




